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Q1 - (MAY19 EXAM - Marks 5) 

Mr. Unique commenced business on 01/04/2017 with Rs 20,000 represented by 5,000 units of the product 

@ Rs 4 unit. During the year 2017-18, he sold 5,000 units @ Rs 5 per unit. During 2017-18, he withdraws 

Rs 4,000. 

 31/03/2018: Price of the product @ 4.60 per unit 

 Average price indices: 01/04/2017: 100 & 31/3/2018: 120 

Find Out: 

(i) Financial capital maintenance at Historical Cost 

(ii) Financial capital maintenance at Current Purchasing Power 

(iii) Physical Capital Maintenance 

 

Solution 

Historical Cost Capital Maintenance 

Opening Equity = Rs 20,000 represented by 5,000 units at Rs 4 per unit.  

Closing Equity = Rs 21,000 (Rs 25,000 – Rs 4,000) represented entirely by cash.  

Retained Profit = Rs 21,000 – Rs 20,000 = 1,000 

The company can start year 2018 by purchasing 5250 units at Rs 4 per unit (5250 x 4) once again for selling 

them at Rs 5 per unit. The whole process can repeat endlessly if there is no change in purchase price of the 

product.  

 

Financial Capital Maintenance – Current Purchasing Power 

If the average price indices at the beginning and at the end of year are 100 and 120 respectively. 

Opening Equity                         = Rs 20,000 represented by 5,000 units at Rs 4 per unit.  

Opening equity at closing price = (Rs 20,000 / 100) x 120 = Rs 24,000 (5,000 x Rs 4.80)  

Closing Equity at closing price  

              = Rs 21,000 (Rs 25,000 – Rs 4,000) represented entirely by cash.  

 

Retained Profit                         = Rs 21,000 – Rs 24,000 = (-) Rs 3,000  

FRAMEWORK FOR PREPARATION AND  

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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The negative retained profit indicates that the trader has failed to maintain his capital. The available fund 

Rs. 21,000 is not sufficient to buy 5,000 units again at increased price Rs 4.80 per unit. In fact, he should 

have restricted his drawings to Rs 1,000 (Rs 4,000 – Rs 3,000).  

Had the trader withdrawn Rs 1,000 instead of Rs 4,000, he would have left with Rs 24,000, the fund required 

to buy 5,000 units at Rs 4.80 per unit. 

 

Physical Capital Maintenance 

If the price of the product at the end of year is 4.60 per unit.  

In other words, the specific price index applicable to the product is 115. 

Current cost of opening stock = (Rs 20,000 / 100) x 115 = 5,000 x Rs 4.60 = Rs 23,000  

Current cost of closing cash = Rs 21,000 (Rs 25,000 – Rs 4,000) 

Opening equity at closing current costs = Rs 23,000  

Closing equity at closing current costs = Rs 21,000  

Retained Profit = Rs 21,000 – Rs 23,000 = (Rs 2,000)  

The negative retained profit indicates that the entity has failed to maintain his capital. The available fund 

Rs 21,000 is not sufficient to buy 5,000 units again at increased price Rs 4.60 per unit. The drawings should 

have been restricted to Rs 2,000 (Rs 4,000 – Rs 2,000).  

Had the entity withdrawn Rs 2,000 instead of Rs 4,000, it would have left with Rs 23,000, the fund required 

to buy 5,000 units at Rs 4.60 per unit. 

 

Capital maintenance can be computed under all three bases as shown below:  
Historical costs 
 

 Rs Rs 
Closing capital (At historical cost)  21,000 

Less: Capital to be maintained  20,000 

Retained profit  1000 

 
Financial Capital Maintenance at current purchasing power 
 

 Rs Rs 

Closing capital (At closing price)   21,000 

Less: Capital to be maintained    

Opening capital (At closing price)  24,000  

Introduction (At closing price)  Nil 24,000 

Retained profit   -3000 
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Physical Capital Maintenance 
 Rs Rs 

Closing capital (At current cost)   21,000 

Less: Capital to be maintained    

Opening capital (At current cost)  23,000  

Introduction (At current cost)  Nil (23,000) 

Retained profit   (2,000) 
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Q2 - (RTP – Nov. 19) 

An entity has taken a loan facility from a bank that is to be repaid within a period of 9 months from the end 

of the reporting period. Prior to the end of the reporting period, the entity and the bank enter into an 

arrangement, whereby the existing outstanding loan will, unconditionally, roll into the new facility which 

expires after a period of 5 years.  

(a) Should the loan be classified as current or non-current in the balance sheet of the entity?  

(b) Will the answer be different if the new facility is agreed upon after the end of the reporting period?  

(c) Will the answer to (a) be different if the existing facility is from one bank and the new facility is from 

another bank?  

(d) Will the answer to (a) be different if the new facility is not yet tied up with the existing bank, but the 

entity has the potential to refinance the obligation? 

 
Solution 

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:  

1. it expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;  

2. it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;  

3. the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

4. it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 

settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.  

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current.  

 

Accordingly, following will be the classification of loan in the given scenarios:  

a) The loan is not due for payment at the end of the reporting period. The entity and the bank have 

agreed for the said roll over prior to the end of the reporting period for a period of 5 years. Since 

the entity has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period, the loan should be classified as non-current.  

 

TOPIC 1.   
 

INDAS-1 

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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b) Yes, the answer will be different if the arrangement for roll over is agreed upon after the end of the 

reporting period because as per paragraph 72 of Ind AS 1, “an entity classifies its financial liabilities 

as current when they are due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, even if: 

(a) the original term was for a period longer than twelve months, and (b) an agreement to refinance, 

or to reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed after the reporting period and before 

the financial statements are approved for issue.” As at the end of the reporting period, the entity 

does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. Hence the loan is to be classified as current.  

 

c) Yes, loan facility arranged with new bank cannot be treated as refinancing, as the loan with the 

earlier bank would have to be settled which may coincide with loan facility arranged with a new 

bank. In this case, loan has to be repaid within a period of 9 months from the end of the reporting 

period, therefore, it will be classified as current liability.  

 

d)    Yes, the answer will be different and the loan should be classified as current. This is because, as 

per paragraph 73 of Ind AS 1, when refinancing or rolling over the obligation is not at the discretion of 

the entity (for example, there is no arrangement for refinancing), the entity does not consider the 

potential to refinance the obligation and classifies the obligation as current.  
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Q3 

On 31 March 20X1, the inventory of ABC includes spare parts which it had been supplying to a number of 

different customers for some years. The cost of the spare parts was Rs 10 million and based on retail prices 

at 31 March 20X1, the expected selling price of the spare parts is Rs 12 million. On 15 April 20X1, due to 

market fluctuations, expected selling price of the spare parts in stock reduced to Rs 8 million. The estimated 

selling expense required to make the sales would Rs 0.5 million. Financial statements were authorised by 

Board of Directors on 20th April 20X1.  

As at 31st March 20X2, Directors noted that such inventory is still unsold and lying in the warehouse of 

the company. Directors believe that inventory is in a saleable condition and active marketing would result 

in an immediate sale. Since the market conditions have improved, estimated selling price of inventory is Rs 

11 million and estimated selling expenses are same Rs. 0.5 million.  

What will be the value inventory at the following dates : 

(a) 31st March 20X1  

(b) 31st March 20X2  

Solution 

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:  

5. it expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;  

6. it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;  

7. the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

8. it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 

settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.  

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current.  

Accordingly, following will be the classification of loan in the given scenarios:  

a) The loan is not due for payment at the end of the reporting period. The entity and the bank have agreed 

for the said roll over prior to the end of the reporting period for a period of 5 years. Since the entity has an 

unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period, the loan should be classified as non-current.  

b) Yes, the answer will be different if the arrangement for roll over is agreed upon after the end of the 

reporting period because as per paragraph 72 of Ind AS 1, “an entity classifies its financial liabilities as 

current when they are due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, even if: (a) the 

TOPIC 2.   
 

INDAS-2 

INVENTORIES 



 

9 
 

original term was for a period longer than twelve months, and (b) an agreement to refinance, or to 

reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed after the reporting period and before the financial 

statements are approved for issue.” As at the end of the reporting period, the entity does not have an 

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

Hence the loan is to be classified as current.                                                                                                     

c) Yes, loan facility arranged with new bank cannot be treated as refinancing, as the loan with the earlier 

bank would have to be settled which may coincide with loan facility arranged with a new bank. In this case, 

loan has to be repaid within a period of 9 months from the end of the reporting period, therefore, it will be 

classified as current liability.                                                                                                                             

d) Yes, the answer will be different and the loan should be classified as current. This is because, as per 

paragraph 73 of Ind AS 1, when refinancing or rolling over the obligation is not at the discretion of the 

entity (for example, there is no arrangement for refinancing), the entity does not consider the potential to 

refinance the obligation and classifies the obligation as current.  

 
Q. 4 
 
Night Ltd. sells beer to customers; some of the customers consumes the beer in the bars run by Night 

Limited. While leaving the bars, the consumers leaves the empty bottles in the bars and the company takes 

possession of these empty bottles. The company has laid down a detailed internal record procedure for 

accounting for these empty bottles which are sold by the company by calling is an asset of the company; 

(i) Decide whether the stock of empty is an asset of the company; 

(ii) If so, whether the stock of empty bottles existing as on the date of Balance Sheet is to be considered 

as inventories of the company and valued as per Ind AS-2 or to be treated as scrap and shown at 

realized value with corresponding credit to ‘Other Income’? 

 

Solution: 

(i) Tangible objects or intangible rights carrying probable future benefits, owned by an enterprise are 

called assets. Night Ltd. sell these empty bottles by calling tenders. It means furthers benefits are 

accured on its sale. Therefore, empty bottles are assets for the company. 

(ii) As per Ind AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories”, inventories are sheets held for sale in the ordinary course 

of business. Stock of empty bottles existing on the Balance Sheet date is the inventory and Night Ltd. 

has detailed controlled recording and accounting procedure which duly signify its materiality. Hence 

Stock of empty bottles cannot be considered as scrap and should be valued as inventory in accordance 

with Ind AS 2. 
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Q5 - (RTP NOV. 19) 

Following is the balance sheet of Kuber Limited for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 

 

 20X2 20X1 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

PPE 

Intangible Assets 

Other Financial Assets 

DTA (Net) 

Other Non Current Assets 

 

Current Assets 

Financial Assets 

Investments 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Other Current Assets 

 

 

13000 

50 

145 

855 

800 

 

 

 

2300 

200 

195 

 

 

12500 

30 

170 

750 

770 

 

 

 

2500 

460 

85 

 17565 17265 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
 
Liabilities 
Long Term Borrowings 
Other Non-Current Liabilities 
 
Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 
Trade Payables 
Bank Overdraft 
Other Current Liabilities 
 

 
 

300 
12000 

 
 

2000 
2740 

 
 
 

150 
75 
300 

 
 

300 
8000 

 
 

5000 
3615 

 
 
 

90 
60 
200 

 17565 17265 
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Solution 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

   
Cash flow from operating activities 

Net Profit after taxation 

Add – Tax Paid 

Add – Depreciation & Amortisation (500+20) 

Less - Profit on sale of plant (70-60) 

Less- Increase in DTA(855-750) 

 

Add – Decrease in Financial Assets (170-145) 

Less- Increase in other non current asset(800-770) 

Less – increase in other current assets(195-85) 

Less – Decrease in other non current liab.(3615-2740) 

Add – Increase in other current liab.(300-20) 

Add – Increase in Trade Payables(150-90) 

 

Less - Income taxes paid 

 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

 

4450 

105 

520 

-10 

-105 

 

25 

-30 

-110 

-875 

100 

60 

 

-105 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4025 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Sale of Machineries 

Purchase of Machine [13000 – (12500 – 500 – 60)} 

Purchase of Intangible Assets [50-(30-20)] 

Sale of Fin. Assets (2500 – 2300) 

Cash Outflow from Investing Activites 

 

70 

-1060 

 

-40 

200 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-830 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Dividend Paid 

Long term borrowings Paid (5000 – 2000) 

Cash Outflow from Financing Act.  

 

-450 

-3000 

 

 

 

-3450 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Eq.  -255 

Cash and Cash Eq at Begn. of year (460-60)  400 

Cash and Cash Eq at end of year (220-75)  145 
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Q6 (RTP NOV. 19) 

During 20X4-X5, Cheery Limited discovered that some products that had been sold during 20X3-X4 were 

incorrectly included in inventory at 31st March, 20X4 at 6,500.  

Cheery Limited’s accounting records for 20X4-X5 show sales of 104,000, cost of goods sold of 86,500 

(including 6,500 for the error in opening inventory), and income taxes of 5,250.  

In 20X3-X4, Cheery Limited reported: 

Sales 73500 

Cost of Goods Sold -53500 

Profit before Income Taxes 20000 

Income Taxes -6000 

Profit  14000 

Basic & Diluted EPS 2.8 

 

The 20X3-X4 opening retained earnings was 20,000 and closing retained earnings was 34,000. Cheery 

Limited’s income tax rate was 30% for 20X4-X5 and 20X3-X4. It had no other income or expenses.  

Cheery Limited had 50,000 (5,000 shares of 10 each) of share capital throughout, and no other components 

of equity except for retained earnings.  

State how the above will be treated /accounted in Cheery Limited’s Statement of profit and loss, statement 

of changes in equity and in notes wherever required for current period and earlier period(s) as per relevant 

Ind AS. 

Solution 

Cheery Limited 

Extract from the Statement of profit and loss 

  Restated 

 20X4-X5 20X3-X4 

Sales 104000 73500 

TOPIC 4.   
 

INDAS-8 
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Cost of Goods Sold 80000 60000 

Profit berofe Income Taxes 24000 13500 

Income Taxes 7200 4050 

Profit  16800 9450 

Basic and Diluted EPS 3.36 1.89 

 

Cheery Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

 Share 

Capital 

Retained 

Earnings 

Total 

Balances at 31st March, 20X3 50000 20000 7000 

Profit for the year ending 31st March, 

20X4 as restated  

 9450 9450 

Balance at 31st March, 20X4 50000 29450 79450 

Profit for the year ending 31st March, 

20X5  

 16800 16800 

Balance at 31st March 20X5 50000 46250 96250 

 

Extract from the Notes  

Some products that had been sold in 20X3-X4 were incorrectly included in inventory at 31st March, 20X4 

at 6,500. The financial statements of 20X3-X4 have been restated to correct this error. The effect of the 

restatement on those financial statements is summarized below: 

 Effect on 20X3-X4 

Increase in cost of goods sold -6500 

Decrease in income tax expenses 1950 

Decrease in profit -4550 

Decrease in Basic and Diluted EPS -0.91 

Decrease in Inventory -6500 

Decrease in Income Tax Payable 1950 

Decrease in Equity -4550 
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Q 7 - (RTP – NOV. 19) 

ABC Ltd. received a demand notice on 15th June, 2017 for an additional amount of 28,00,000 from the Excise 

Department on account of higher excise duty levied by the Excise Department compared to the rate at which 

the company was creating provision and depositing the same. The financial statements for the year 2016-17 

are approved on 10th August, 2017. In July, 2017, the company has appealed against the demand of 28,00,000 

and the company has expected that the demand would be settled at 15,00,000 only. Show how the above 

event will have a bearing on the financial statements for the year 2016-17. Whether these events are 

adjusting or non-adjusting events and explain the treatment accordingly. 

Answer: 

Ind AS 10 defines ‘Events after the Reporting Period’ as follows:  

Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end 

of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors 

in case of a company, and, by the corresponding approving authority in case of any other entity for issue. 

Two types of events can be identified: 

(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting events 

after the reporting period); and  

(b) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after 

the reporting period)  

 

In the instant case, the demand notice has been received on 15th June, 2017, which is between the end of the 

reporting period and the date of approval of financial statements. Therefore, it is an event after the reporting 

period. This demand for additional amount has been raised because of higher rate of excise duty levied by 

the Excise Department in respect of goods already manufactured during the reporting period. Accordingly, 

condition exists on 31st March, 2017, as the goods have been manufactured during the reporting period on 

which additional excise duty has been levied and this event has been confirmed by the receipt of demand 

notice. Therefore, it is an adjusting event.  

In accordance with the principles of Ind AS 37, the company should make a provision in the financial 

statements for the year 2016-17, at best estimate of the expenditure to be incurred, i.e., 15,00,000. 
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Q 8 - (MTP – MARCH 19)10 Marks 

QA Ltd. is in the process of computation of the deferred taxes as per applicable Ind AS and wants guidance 

on the tax treatment for the following:  

(i) QA Ltd. does not have taxable income as per the applicable tax laws, but pays 'Minimum Alternate Tax’ 

(MAT) based on its books profits. The tax paid under MAT can be carried forward for the next 10 years 

and as per the Company's projections submitted to its bankers, it is in a position to get credit for the 

same by the end of eighth year. The Company is recognising the MAT credit as a current asset under 

IGAAP. The amount of MAT credit as on 31st March, 2016 is Rs. 8.5 crores and as on 31st March, 2017 

is Rs. 9.75 crores;  

(ii) The Company measures its head office property using the revaluation model. The property is revalued 

every year as on 31st March. On 31st March, 2016, the carrying value of the property (after revaluation) 

was Rs. 40 crores whereas its tax base was Rs. 22 crores. During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the 

Company charged depreciation in its Statement of Profit and Loss of Rs. 2 crores and claimed a tax 

deduction for tax depreciation of Rs. 1.25 crores. On 31st March, 2017, the property was revalued to 

Rs.45 crores. As per the tax laws, the revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment does not affect taxable 

income at the time of revaluation.  

The Company has no other temporary differences other than those indicated above. The Company wants 

you to compute the deferred tax liability as on 31st March, 2017 and the charge/credit to the Statement 

of Profit and Loss and/or Other Comprehensive Income for the same. Consider the tax rate at 20%.  

 
Solution: 
(a) Computation of Deferred Tax Liability  

(i) MAT credit as on 31st December of Rs. 9.75 crore will be presented in the Balance Sheet as 

Deferred tax asset. DTA in the current year will be Rs. 1.25 crore (Rs. 9.75 crore – Rs. 8.50 crore)  

(ii)  

(a) In case defer tax is created only on account of depreciation 

 

TOPIC 6.   
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 Carrying 

value 

without 

revaluati

on 

Value 

as per 

tax 

record

s 

Tax 

base 

Taxable / 

(deductible

) 

temporary 

difference 

Total 

Deferred tax 

liability/ 

(asset) @ 20% 

Credit to 

P&L during 

the year 

A b c D E= b-d F = e x 20% G 

31st March, 

2016. 

22 crore 22 

crore 

22 

crore 

Nil nil Nil 

Less: 

Depreciatio

n for the 

year 2016-

17  

(2 crore) (1.25 

crore) 

    

Carrying 

value as on 

31st March, 

2017  

20 crore 20.75 

crore 

20.75 

crore 

(0.75 crore) DTA 

(0.15 crore) 

DTA (0.15 

crore) 

 

(b) Computation of tax effect taking into account the revalued figures and adjusting impact of tax effect on 

account of difference in depreciation 

S. No. Carryi

ng 

value 

after 

revalua

tion 

Value 

as per 

tax 

recor

ds 

Tax 

base 

Taxable / 

(deductib

le) 

temporar

y 

difference 

Total 

Deferre

d tax 

liability

/ (asset) 

@ 20% 

Credit 

to P&L 

during 

the year 

Charged to 

OCI during 

the year 

a b c d E= b-d F = e x 

20% 

g H 

I  31st 

March, 

2016  

40 

crore 

22 

crore 

22 

cror

e 

18 crore DTL 3.6 

crore 

- DTL 3.6 

crore 

I

V  

Revalued 

again on 

31.3.2017 

(It is 

assumed 

45 

crore 

20.75 

crore 

(22-

1.25)  

20.7

5 

cror

e 

24.25 

crore 

DTL 

4.85 

crore 

DTA 

(0.15 

crore) 

(Refer 

DTL 5 

crore 

(Refer Note 

below) [5 

DTL (B/F) 
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that 

revaluatio

n has been 

done after 

taking 

into 

considerat

ion the 

impact of 

depreciati

on for the 

current 

year)  

table (a) 

above)  

– 0.15 DTA 

= 4.85 

DTL]  

V  Additional 

DTL/DT

A required 

during the 

year (IV-I)  

 DTL 

1.25 

crore 

DTA 

(0.15 

crore) 

(Refer 

table (a))  

DTL (1.40 

crore) 

(Refer Note  

 

Note:  

As per para 65 of Ind AS 12, when an asset is revalued for tax purposes and that revaluation is related to an 

accounting revaluation of an earlier period, or to one that is expected to be carried out in a future period, the 

tax effects on account of revaluation of asset and the adjustment of the tax base are recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur.  

Here, it is important to understand that only the tax effects on account of revaluation of asset and the 

adjustment of the tax base are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, tax effects on account 

of depreciation of asset and the adjustment of the tax base are recognized in profit and loss.  

Accordingly, first of all the tax effect has been calculated assuming that there is no revaluation (Refer Table 

(a) above) [Since the information for the carrying value before revaluation has not been mentioned, it is 

assumed to be equal to the carrying amount as per the tax records]. Later the DTA arrived due to difference 

in depreciation is adjusted with the DTL created due to revaluation. DTA of Rs. 0.15 crore on account of 

depreciation will be charged to Profit and Loss and DTL of Rs. 1.40 crore will be charged to OCI. Net effect 

in the year 31.3.2017 will be DTL 1.25 crore (DTL 1.4 crore – DTA 0.15 crore) [Refer Table (b) above.  
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Q. 9 (RTP – NOV19) 

An entity is finalising its financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 20X2. Before 31st March, 

20X2, the government announced that the tax rate was to be amended from 40 per cent to 45 per cent of 

taxable profit from 30th June, 20X2.  

The legislation to amend the tax rate has not yet been approved by the legislature. However, the government 

has a significant majority and it is usual, in the tax jurisdiction concerned, to regard an announcement of a 

change in the tax rate as having the substantive effect of actual enactment (i.e. it is substantively enacted).  

After performing the income tax calculations at the rate of 40 per cent, the entity has the following deferred 

tax asset and deferred tax liability balances: 

Deferred Tax Asset 80000 

Deferred Tax Liability 60000 

Of the deferred tax asset balance, ` 28,000 related to a temporary difference. This deferred tax asset had 

previously been recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as a revaluation surplus.  

The entity reviewed the carrying amount of the asset in accordance with para 56 of Ind AS 12 and determined 

that it was probable that sufficient taxable profit to allow utilisation of the deferred tax asset would be 

available in the future.  

Show the revised amount of Deferred tax asset & Deferred tax liability and present the necessary journal 
entries. 

SOLUTION 

Calculation of Deductible temporary differences:  

Deferred tax asset = 80,000  

Existing tax rate = 40%  

Deductible temporary differences = 80,000/40% = 2,00,000  

Calculation of Taxable temporary differences:  

Deferred tax liability = 60,000  

Existing tax rate = 40%  

Deductible temporary differences = 60,000 / 40% = 1,50,000  

Of the total deferred tax asset balance of Rs. 80,000, 28,000 is recognized in OCI  

Hence, Deferred tax asset balance of Profit & Loss is 80,000 - 28,000 = 52,000  

Deductible temporary difference recognized in Profit & Loss is 1,30,000 (52,000 / 40%)  

Deductible temporary difference recognized in OCI is 70,000 (28,000 / 40%)  

The adjusted balances of the deferred tax accounts under the new tax rate are: 

Deferred Tax Asset   

Previously credited to OCI - Equtiy 70000 x 0.45 31500 

Previously recognised income 130000x0.45 58500 
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  90000 

Deferred Tax Liability   

Previously recognised expense 150000x0.45 67500 

The net adjustment to deferred tax expense is a reduction of 2,500. Of this amount, 3,500 is recognised in 

OCl and 1,000 is charged to P&L. 

The amounts are calculated as follows: 

 Carrying Amt. 

at 45% 

Carrying 

Amt. at 40% 

Increase 

(decrease) in DT 

Expense 

Deferred Tax Assets    

Previously credited to OCI - Equtiy 31500 28000 -3500 

Previously recognised income 58500 52000 -6500 

 90000 80000 -10000 

Deferred Tax Liability    

Previously recognised expense 67500 60000 7500 

Net Adjustment   (2500) 

 

An alternative method of calculations:   

DTA shown in OCI 70,000 x (0.45 - 0.40)  3,500  

DTA shown in Profit or Loss 1,30,000 x (0.45-0.40)  6,500  

DTL shown in Profit or Loss 1,50,000 x (0.45 -0.40)  7,500  

 

Journal Entries 

Deferred Tax Assets Dr. 

   To OCI – Revaluation Surplus 

3500  

3500 

Deferred Tax Assets Dr. 

    To Deferred Tax Expenses 

6500  

6500 

Deferred Tax Expense Dr. 

    To Deferred Tax Liability 

7500  

7500 
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Q 10 - (RTP - MAY 19) 

Company X performed a revaluation of all of its plant and machinery at the beginning of 2018-2019. The 

following information relates to one of the machinery: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The useful life of the machinery is 10 years and the company uses Straight line method of depreciation. The 

revaluation was performed at the end of the 4th year. 

How should the Company account for revaluation of plant and machinery and depreciation subsequent to 

revaluation? 

Solution: 

1. According to paragraph 35 of Ind AS 16, when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the 

carrying amount of that asset is adjusted to the revalued amount. At the date of the revaluation, the asset 

is treated in one of the following ways:  

(a) The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the 

carrying amount of the asset. For example, the gross carrying amount may be restated by reference 

to observable market data or it may be restated proportionately to the change in the carrying amount. 

The accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference 

between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset after taking into account 

accumulated impairment losses; or  

(b) The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.  

The amount of the adjustment of accumulated depreciation forms part of the increase or decrease in 

carrying amount that is accounted for in accordance with the paragraphs 39 and 40 of Ind AS 16.  

If the Company opts for the as per option (a), then the revised carrying amount of the machinery will 

be: 

 Amount (Rs 000) 

Gross carrying amount  

Accumulated depreciation (straight-line method)  

Net carrying amount  

Fair value  

Rs 200 

Rs 80 

Rs 120 

Rs 150 

TOPIC 7.   
 

 

INDAS-16 

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
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Gross carrying amount  

Net carrying amount  

Accumulated depreciation  

Plant and Machinery A/c (Gross Block) 

Dr. 

To Accumulated Depreciation  

To Revaluation Reserve  

Rs 250  [(200/120) x 150]  

Rs150   

Rs 100  (Rs 250 – Rs 150)  

 

Rs 50 Rs 20  

Rs 30 

 

If the balance of accumulated depreciation is eliminated as per option (b), then the revised carrying amount 

of the machinery will be as follows:  

Gross carrying amount is restated to Rs 150 to reflect the fair value and Accumulated depreciation is set at 

zero.  

Journal entry 

Accumulated Depreciation 

To Plant and Machinery A/c (Gross Block)  

Dr.  Rs 80  

Rs 80  

Plant and Machinery A/c (Gross Block) Dr. Rs 30  

To Revaluation Reserve   Rs 30 

 

Depreciation  

Option (a) – Since the Gross Block has been restated, the depreciation charge will be Rs 25 per annum (Rs 

250 / 10 years).  

Option (b) – Since the Revalued amount is the revised Gross Block, the useful life to be considered is the 

remaining useful life of the asset which results in the same depreciation charge of Rs 25 per annum as per 

Option A (Rs 150 / 6 years).  

 

Q 11 - (RTP - NOV18) 

The notes to the financial statements say that plant and equipment is held under the ‘cost model’. However, 

property which is owner occupied is revalued annually to fair value. Changes in fair value are sometimes 

reported in profit or loss but usually in ‘other comprehensive income’. Also, the amounts of depreciation 

charge do plant and equipment as a percentage of its carrying amount is much higher than for owner 

occupied property. Another note states that property owned by ABC Ltd. but rent out to others is 

depreciated annually and not fair valued. Mr. Y is of the opinion that there is no consistent treatment of 

PPE items in the accounts. Elucidate how all these treatments comply with the relevant Ind AS. 

Solution: 

The accounting treatment of the majority of tangible non-current assets is governed by Ind AS 16 ‘Property, 

Plant and Equipment’. Ind AS 16 states that the accounting treatment of PPE is determined on a class by 
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class basis. For this purpose, property and plant would be regarded as separate classes. Ind AS 16 requires 

that PPE is measured using either the cost model or the revaluation model. This model is applied on a class 

by class basis and must be applied consistently within a class. Ind AS 16 states that when the revaluation 

model applies, surpluses are recorded in other comprehensive income, unless they are cancelling out a deficit 

which has previously been reported in profit or loss, in which case it is reported in profit or loss. Where the 

revaluation results in a deficit, then such deficits are reported in profit or loss, unless they are cancelling out 

a surplus which has previously been reported in other comprehensive income, in which case they are reported 

in other comprehensive income.  

 

According to Ind AS 16, all assets having a finite useful life should be depreciated over that life. Where 

property is concerned, the only depreciable element of the property is the buildings element, since land 

normally has an indefinite life. The estimated useful life of a building tends to be much longer than for plant. 

These two reasons together explain why the depreciation charge of a property as a percentage of its carrying 

amount tends to be much lower than for plant.  

 

Properties which are held for investment purposes are not accounted for under Ind AS 16, but under Ind AS 

40 ‘Investment Property’. As per Ind AS 40, investment properties should be accounted for under a cost 

model. ABC Ltd. had applied the cost model and thus our investment properties are treated differently from 

the owner occupied property which is annually to fair value.  

 

Q 12 - (RTP-NOV 18) 

ABC Ltd is setting up a new refinery outside the city limits. In order to facilitate the construction of the 

refinery and its operations, ABC Ltd. is required to incur expenditure on the construction/development of 

railway siding, road and bridge. Though ABC Ltd. incurs (or contributes to) the expenditure on the 

construction/development, it will not have ownership rights on these items and they are also available for 

use to other entities and public at large. Whether ABC Ltd. can capitalise expenditure incurred on these 

items as property, plant and equipment (PPE)? If yes, how should these items be depreciated and presented 

in the financial statements of ABC Ltd. as per Ind AS? 

Solution 

Paragraph 7 of Ind AS 16 states that the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised 

as an asset if, and only if:  

 it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and  

 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
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Further, paragraph 9 provides that the standard does not prescribe the unit of measure for recognition, i.e., 

what constitutes an item of property, plant and equipment. Thus, judgement is required in applying the 

recognition criteria to an entity’s specific circumstances.  

Paragraph 16, inter alia, states that the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprise any costs 

directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management.  

In the given case, railway siding, road and bridge are required to facilitate the construction of the refinery 

and for its operations. Expenditure on these items is required to be incurred in order to get future economic 

benefits from the project as a whole which can be considered as the unit of measure for the purpose of 

capitalisation of the said expenditure even though the company cannot restrict the access of others for using 

the assets individually. It is apparent that the aforesaid expenditure is directly attributable to bringing the 

asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management.  

In view of this, even though ABC Ltd. may not be able to recognize expenditure incurred on these assets as 

an individual item of property, plant and equipment in many cases (where it cannot restrict others from 

using the asset), expenditure incurred may be capitalised as a part of overall cost of the project. From this, 

it can be concluded that, in the extant case the expenditure incurred on these assets, i.e., railway siding, road 

and bridge, should be considered as the cost of constructing the refinery and accordingly, expenditure 

incurred on these items should be allocated and capitalised as part of the items of property, plant and 

equipment of the refinery.  

 

Depreciation  

As per paragraph 43 and 47 of Ind AS 16, if these assets have a useful life which is different from the useful 

life of the item of property, plant and equipment to which they relate, it should be depreciated separately. 

However, if these assets have a useful life and the depreciation method that are the same as the useful life 

and the depreciation method of the item of property, plant and equipment to which they relate, these assets 

may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge. Nevertheless, if it has been included in the cost of 

property, plant and equipment as a directly attributable cost, it will be depreciated over the useful lives of 

the said property, plant and equipment.  

 

The useful lives of these assets should not exceed that of the asset to which it relates. 

 

Presentation  

These assets should be presented within the class of asset to which they relate.  
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Question 13 (ICAI Module) 

ABC Ltd. is installing a new plant at its production facility. It has incurred these costs: 

1. Cost of the plant (cost per supplier’s invoice plus taxes)  Rs 25,00,000 

2. Initial delivery and handling costs  Rs 2,00,000 

3. Cost of site preparation  Rs 6,00,000 

4. Consultants used for advice on the acquisition of the plant  Rs 7,00,000 

5. Interest charges paid to supplier of plant for deferred 

credit  

Rs 2,00,000 

6. Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 years  Rs 3,00,000 

7. Operating losses before commercial production  Rs 4,00,000 

 

Please advise ABC Ltd. on the costs that can be capitalized in accordance with Ind AS 16.  

Solution: 

According to Ind AS 16, these costs can be capitalized: 

1.  Cost of the plant  Rs 25,00,000 

2.  Initial delivery and handling costs  Rs 2,00,000 

3.  Cost of site preparation  Rs 6,00,000 

4.  Consultants’ fees  Rs 7,00,000 

5.  Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 years  Rs 3,00,000 

 Rs 43,00,000 

 

Note: Interest charges paid on “Deferred credit terms” to the supplier of the plant (not a qualifying asset) 

of Rs 2,00,000 and operating losses before commercial production amounting to Rs 4,00,000 are not 

regarded as directly attributable costs and thus cannot be capitalized. They should be written off to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred. 

 

Q 14 - (ICAI MODULE) 

A Ltd. has an item of plant with an initial cost of Rs 1,00,000. At the date of revaluation, accumulated 

depreciation amounted to Rs 55,000. The fair value of the asset, by reference to transactions in similar assets, 

is assessed to be Rs 65,000.  

Pass Journal Entries with regard to Revaluation? 

Solution: 

The entries to be passed would be: 
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 Rs Rs 

Accumulated depreciation          Dr.  55,000  

To Asset A/c (Being elimination of accumulated 

depreciation against the cost of the asset) 

 55,000 

Asset A/c                   Dr   

To Revaluation Surplus (Being 

increase of net asset value to Fair 

value) 

 

 

20,000  

20,000 

 

Note: The net result is that the asset has a carrying amount of Rs 65,000 [1,00,000 – 55,000 + 20,000] 

 

Q 15 - (RTP MAY 18) 

A Ltd. purchased some Property, Plant and Equipment on 1st April, 20X1, and estimated their useful lives 

for the purpose of financial statements prepared on the basis of Ind AS: Following were the original cost, 

and useful life of the various components of property, plant, and equipment assessed on 1st April, 20X1: 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment  Original Cost  Estimated useful life  

Buildings  Rs 15,000,000  15 years  

Plant and machinery  Rs 10,000,000  10 years  

Furniture and fixtures  Rs 3,500,000  7 years  

 

A Ltd. uses the straight-line method of depreciation. On 1st April, 20X4, the entity reviewed the following 

useful lives of the property, plant, and equipment through an external valuation expert: 

Buildings  

Plant and machinery  

Furniture and fixtures  

10 years  

7 years  

5 years  

 

There were no salvage values for the three components of the property, plant, and equipment either initially 

or at the time the useful lives were revised.  

Compute the impact of revaluation of useful life on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ending 31st 

March, 20X4.  

 

Solution: 

The annual depreciation charges prior to the change in useful life were 
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Buildings  

Plant and machinery  

Furniture and fixtures  

Rs1,50,00,000/15 = 

Rs1,00,00,000/10 = 

Rs 35,00,000/7 = 

Rs 10,00,000 

Rs 10,00,000 

Rs5,00,000 

Rs 25,00,000 (A) Total =   

 

The impact on Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ending 31st March, 20X4  

= Rs26,00,000 – Rs25,00,000 = Rs1,00,000  

This is a change in accounting estimate which is adjusted prospectively in the period in which the estimate 

is amended and, if relevant, to future periods if they are also affected. Accordingly, from 20X4-20X5 onward, 

excess of Rs1,00,000 will be charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss every year till the time there is any 

further revision. 
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Q 16 - (ICAI) 

B Pvt. Ltd. has a post-employment medical plan which will reimburse 20% of an employee’s post-

employment medical costs if the employee leaves after more than ten and less than twenty years of service 

and 50% of those costs if the employee leaves after twenty or more years of service. Compute the benefit 

attributed for last 20 years, 10 and 20 years and within 10 years?  

 

ANSWER: 

As per Ind AS 19, the benefit will be attributed till the period the employee service will lead to no material 

amount of benefits. And service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier 

years. Therefore, for employees expected to leave after twenty or more years, the entity attributes benefit 

on a straight-line basis. Service beyond twenty years will lead to no material amount of further benefits. 

Therefore, the benefit attributed to each of the first twenty years is 2.5% of the present value of the expected 

medical costs (50% divided by twenty).  

For employees expected to leave between ten and twenty years, the benefit attributed to each of the first ten 

years is 2% (20 % divided by 10) of the present value of the expected medical costs. For these employees, no 

benefit is attributed to service between the end of the tenth year and the estimated date of leaving.  

For employees expected to leave within ten years, no benefit is attributed. 

 

 

Q 17 - (ICAI) 

Cisca Pvt. Ltd. has a headcount of around 1,000 employees in the organisation in 20X0-20X1. As per the 

company policy, the employees are given 35 days of privilege leave (PL), 15 days of sick leave (SL) and 10 

days of casual leave. Out of the total PL and sick leave, 10 and 5 can be carried forward to next year. On the 

basis of past trends, it has been noted that 200 employees will take 5 days of PL and 2 days of SL and 800 

employees will avail 10 as PL and 5 as SL. Also the company has been incurring profits since 20XX. It has 

decided in 20X0-20X1 to distribute profits to its employees @ 4% during the year. However, due to the 

employee turnover in the organisation, the expected pay-out of the Cisca Pvt. Ltd. is expected to be around 

3.5%. The profits earned during 20X0-20X1 isRs2,000 crores.  

 

TOPIC 8.   
 

 
INDAS 19 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
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Cisca Pvt. Ltd. has a post-employment benefit plan also available which is the nature of defined contribution 

plan where contribution to this fund amounts to Rs100 crores which will fall due within 12 months from the 

end of accounting period.  

The company has paid Rs20 crores to its employees in 20X0-20X1.  

What is the treatment for the short-term compensating absences, profit-sharing plan and the defined 

contribution plan by Cisca Pvt. Ltd?  

ANSWER: 

(i) Cisca Pvt. Ltd. will recognise a liability in its books to the extent of 5 days of PL for 200 employees and 

10 days of PL for remaining 800 employees and 2 days of SL for 200 employees and 5 days of SL for 

remaining 800 employees in its books as an unused entitlement that has accumulated in 20X0-20X1. 

 

(ii) Cisca Pvt. Ltd. will recognise Rs70 crores (2,000 x 3.5%) as a liability and expense it books of account.  

 

(iii) When an employee has rendered service to an entity during a period, the entity shall recognise the 

contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:  

 

(a) Under Ind AS 19, the amount of Rs80 crores may be recognised as a liability (accrued expense), after 

deducting any contribution already paid (100-20). However, if the contribution already paid would 

have exceeded the contribution due for service before the end of the reporting period, an entity shall 

recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense); and  

(b) Also, Rs80 crores will be recognised as an expense in this case study which will be disclosed as an 

expense in the statement of profit or loss.  

 

It can also be seen that the contributions are payable within 12 months from the end of the year in 

which the employees render the related service, they will not be discounted. However, where 

contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the 

end of the period in which the employees render the related service, they shall be discounted using 

the discount rate. 

 

Q 18 - (MTP MARCH 19) 

A company has a scheme for payment of settlement allowance to retiring employees. Under the scheme, 

retiring employees are entitled to reimbursement of certain travel expenses for class they are entitled to as 

per company rule and to a lump-sum payment to cover expenses on food and stay during the travel. 

Alternatively, employees can claim a lump sum amount equal to one month pay last drawn. 

The company’s contentions in this matter are: 
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(i) Settlement allowance does not depend upon the length of service of employee. It is restricted to 

employee’s eligibility under the Travel rule of the company or where option for lump-sum payment 

is exercised, equal to the last pay drawn. 

(ii) Since it is not related to the length of service of the employees, it is accounted for on claim basis. 

State whether the contentions of the company are correct as per relevant Accounting Standard. Give 

reasons in support of your answer. 

 

Answer: 

The present case falls under the category of defined benefit scheme under Para 49 of AS 15 (Revised) 

“Employee Benefits”. The said para encompasses cases where payment promised to be made to an employee 

at or near retirement presents significant difficulties in the determination of periodic charge to the statement 

of profit and loss. The contention of the Company that the settlement allowance will be accounted for on 

claim basis is not correct even if company’s obligation under the scheme is uncertain and requires estimation. 

In estimating the obligation, assumptions may need to be made regarding future conditions and events, 

which are largely outside the company’s control. Thus, 

1) Settlement allowance payable by the company is a defined retirement benefit, covered by AS 15 

(Revised).  

2) A provision should be made every year in the accounts for the accruing liability on account of 

settlement allowance. The amount of provision should be calculated according to actuarial 

valuation.  

3) Where, however, the amount of provision so determined is not material, the company can follow 

some other method of accounting for settlement allowances.  

 

Q19 - (MTP AUG 18) 

An employee Roshan has joined a company XYZ Ltd. in the year 2018. The annual emoluments of Roshan 

as decided is Rs. 14,90,210 in the year 2018. The company has announced a policy of giving a lump sum 

payment of 25% of the last drawn annual salary of the employee for each completed year of service if the 

employee retires after completing minimum 5 years of service starting from 2019 onwards. The salary of 

the Roshan is expected to grow @ 10% per annum.  

The company has inducted Roshan in the beginning of the year and it is expected that he will complete the 

minimum five year term before retiring.  

What is the amount the company should charge in its Profit and Loss account every year as cost for the 

Defined Benefit obligation? Also calculate the current service cost and the interest cost to be charged per 

year assuming a discount rate of 8%.  

(P.V factor for 8% - 0.735, 0.794, 0.857, 0.926, 1)  

Solution: 
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(a) Calculation of Defined Benefit Obligation  

Expected last drawn salary  = Rs. 14,90,210 x 110% x 110% x 110% x 110% x 110%  

= Rs. 24,00,000  

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) = Rs. 24,00,000 x 25% x 5 = Rs. 30,00,000  

Amount of Rs. 6,00,000 will be charged to Profit and Loss Account of the company every year as cost for 

Defined Benefit Obligation.  

Calculation of Current Service Cost 

Yea

r 

Equal apportioned amount of 

DBO [i.e. Rs. 30,00,000/5 

years] 

Discounting @ 8% 

PV factor 

Current service 

cost (Present 

Value) 

a b c d = b x c 

1 6,00,000 0.735 (4 Years) 4,41,000 

2 6,00,000 0.794 (3 Years) 4,76,400 

3 6,00,000 0.857 (2 Years) 5,14,200 

4 6,00,000 0.926 (1 Year) 5,55,600 

5 6,00,000 1 (0 Year) 6,00,000 

 

Calculation of Interest Cost to be charged per year 

Year Opening balance Interest cost Current service cost Closing balance 

a b c = b x 8% d e = b + c + d 

1 0 0 4,41,000 4,41,000 

2 4,41,000 35,280 4,76,400 9,52,680 

3 9,52,680 76,214 5,14,200 15,43,094 

4 15,43,094 1,23,447 5,55,600 22,22,141 

5 22,22,141 1,77,859* 6,00,000 30,00,000 

 

*Due to approximations used in calculation, this figure is adjusted accordingly. 

 

Q 20 - (RTP – Nov.19) 

(All numbers in ` ’000 unless otherwise stated)  

ABL Ltd. operates a defined retirement benefits plan on behalf of current and former employees. ABL Ltd. 

receives advice from actuaries regarding contribution levels and overall liabilities of the plan to pay benefits. 

On 1st April, 20X1, the actuaries advised that the present value of the defined benefit obligation was 60,000. 

On the same date, the fair value of the assets of the defined benefit plan was 52,000. On 1st April, 20X1, the 

annual market yield on high quality corporate bonds was 5%. During the year ended 31st March 20X2, ABL 

Ltd. made contributions of 7,000 into the plan and the plan paid out benefits of 4200 to retired members. 

Assume that both these payments were made on 31st March 20X2. The actuaries advised that the current 
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service cost for the year ended 31st March 20X2 was 6,200. On 28th February, 20X2, the rules of the plan 

were amended with retrospective effect. These amendments meant that the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation was increased by 1500 from that date. During the year ended 31st March, 20X2, ABL Ltd. 

was in negotiation with employee representatives regarding planned redundancies. The negotiations were 

completed shortly before the year end and redundancy packages were agreed. The impact of these 

redundancies was to reduce the present value of the defined benefit obligation by 8000. Before 31st March, 

20X2, ABL Ltd. made payments of 7500 to the employees affected by the redundancies in compensation for 

the curtailment of their benefits. These payments were made out of the assets of the retirement benefits plan. 

On 31st March, 20X2, the actuaries advised that the present value of the defined benefit obligation was 

68,000. On the same date, the fair value of the assets of the defined benefit plan were 56,000. 

Solution 

(All numbers in `’000 unless otherwise stated)  

On 31st March 20X2, ABL Ltd. will report a net pension liability in the statement of financial position. The 

amount of the liability will be 12,000 (68,000 – 56,000).  

For the year ended 31st March 20X2, ABL Ltd. will report the current service cost as an operating cost in 

the statement of profit or loss. The amount reported will be ` 6,200. The same treatment applies to the past 

service cost of 1,500.  

For the year ended 31st March 20X2, ABL Ltd. will report a finance cost in profit or loss based on the net 

pension liability at the start of the year of 8,000 (60,000 – 52,000). The amount of the finance cost will be 

400 (8,000 x 5%).  

The redundancy programme represents the partial settlement of the curtailment of a defined benefit 

obligation. The gain on settlement of 500 (8,000 – 7,500) will be reported in the statement of profit or loss.  

Other movements in the net pension liability will be reported as remeasurement gains or losses in other 

comprehensive income.  

For the year ended 31st March 20X2, the remeasurement loss will be 3,400 (refer W.N.). 

Working Note:  

Calculation of remeasurement gain or loss: ‘000 

Liability at the start of the year (60000 – 52000) 8000 

Current Service Cost 6200 

Past Service Cost 1500 

Net Finance Cost 400 

Gain on Settlement -500 

Contribution to Plan -7000 

Remeasurement Loss (B/f) 3400 

Liability at the Start of the Year (68000 – 56000) 12000 
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Q 21 - (NOV18 – EXAMS - 5 Marks) 

How will you recognize and present the grants received from the Government in the following cases as per 

Ind AS 20?  

(i) A Ltd. received one acre of land to setup a plant in backward area (fair value of land Rs 12 lakh and 

acquired value by Government is Rs 8 Iakhs).  

(ii) B Ltd. received an amount of loan for setting up a plant at concessional rate of interest from the 

Government.  

(iii) D Ltd. received an amount of Rs 25 lakh for immediate start-up of a business without any condition. 

(iv) S Ltd. received Rs 10 lakh for purchase of machinery costing RS 80 lakh. Useful life of machinery is 

10 years. Depreciation on this machinery is to be charged on straight line basis.  

(v) Government gives a grant of Rs 25 lakh to U Limited for research and development of medicine for 

breast cancer, even though similar medicines are available in the market but are expensive. The 

company is to ensure by developing a manufacturing process over a period of two years so that the 

cost comes down at least to 50%.    

Solution 

As per the amendment made by MCA in Ind AS 20 on 21st September, 2018, alternatively if the company is 

following the policy of recognising non-monetary grants at nominal value, the company will not recognise 

any government grant. Land will be shown in the financial statements at Rs 1.   

 

(i) The land and government grant should be recognized by A Ltd. at fair value of Rs 12,00,000 and this 

government grant should be presented in the books as deferred income. (Refer footnote 1) 

(ii) As per para 10A of Ind AS 20 ‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government 

Assistance’, loan at concessional rates of interest is to be measured at fair value and recognised as per 

Ind AS 109. Value of concession is the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan 

determined in accordance with Ind AS 109, and the proceeds received. The benefit is accounted for 

as Government grant.  

(iii) Rs 25 lakh has been received by D Ltd. for immediate start-up of business. Since this grant is given 

to provide immediate financial support to an entity, it should be recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss immediately with disclosure to ensure that its effect is clearly understood, as per para 21 of 

Ind AS 20.  

TOPIC 9.   
 

INDAS-20 

ACCOUNTING FOR GOVT. GRANTS &  

DISCLOSURES OF GOVT. ASSISTANCE 
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(iv) Rs 10 lakh should be recognized by S Ltd. as deferred income and will be transferred to profit and 

loss over the useful life of the asset. In this case, Rs 1,00,000 [Rs 10 lakh / 10 years] should be 

credited to profit and loss each year over period of 10 years. (Refer footnote 2)  

(v) As per para 12 of Ind AS 20, the entire grant of Rs 25 lakh should be recognized immediately as 

deferred income and charged to profit and loss over a period of two years based on the related costs 

for which the grants are intended to compensate provided that there is reasonable assurance that U 

Ltd. will comply with the conditions attached to the grant.  
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Q 22 – (RTP MAY 19) 

Supplier, A Ltd., enters into a contract with a customer, B Ltd., on 1st January, 2018 to deliver goods in 

exchange for total consideration of USD 50 million and receives an upfront payment of USD 20 million on 

this date. The functional currency of the supplier is INR. The goods are delivered and revenue is recognised 

on 31st March, 2018. USD 30 million is received on 1st April, 2018 in full and final settlement of the purchase 

consideration. 

State the date of transaction for advance consideration and recognition of revenue. Also state the amount of 

revenue in INR to be recognized on the date of recognition of revenue. The exchange rates on 1st January, 

2018 and 31st March, 2018 are Rs 72 per USD and Rs 75 per USD respectively. 

Solution 

This is the case of Revenue recognised at a single point in time with multiple payments. As per the 

guidance given in Appendix B to Ind AS 21:  

A Ltd. will recognise a non-monetary contract liability amounting Rs1,440 million, by translating USD 20 

million at the exchange rate on 1st January, 2018 ieRs72 per USD.  

A Ltd. will recognise revenue at 31st March, 2018 (that is, the date on which it transfers the goods to the 

customer).  

A Ltd. determines that the date of the transaction for the revenue relating to the advance consideration of 

USD 20 million is 1st January, 2018. Applying paragraph 22 of Ind AS 21, A Ltd. determines that the date 

of the transaction for the remainder of the revenue as 31st March, 2018.  

On 31st March, 2018, A Ltd. will:  

 derecognise the non-monetary contract liability of USD 20 million and recognise USD 20 million of 

revenue using the exchange rate as at 1st January, 2018 ieRs72 per USD; and  

 recognise revenue and a receivable for the remaining USD 30 million, using the exchange rate on 

31st March, 2018 ieRs75 per USD.  

 The receivable of USD 30 million is a monetary item, so it should be translated using the closing rate 

until the receivable is settled.  

 

 

 

 

TOPIC 10.   
 

INDAS-21 

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES 
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Q 23 

Infotech Global Ltd. has a functional currency of USD and needs to translate its financial statements into 

the functional and presentation currency of Infotech Inc. (L$).  

The following is the statement of financial position of Infotech Global Ltd. prior to translation: 

Particulars USD L$ 

PPE 

Receivables 

Total Assets 

50000 

9,35,000 

9,85,000 

 

Issued Capital 

Opening Retained Earnings 

Profit for the Year 

Accounts Payable 

Accrued Liabilities 

Total Equity & Liabilities 

50,000 

28,000 

20,000 

8,40,000 

47,000 

9,85,000 

30,055 

15,274 

Required:  

Translate the statement of financial position of Infotech Global Ltd. into L$ ready for consolidation by 

Infotech Inc. (Share capital and opening retained earnings have been pre- populated.)  

Prepare a working of the cumulative balance of the foreign currency translation reserve.  

Additional information:  

Relevant exchange rates are:  

Rate at beginning of the year L$ 1 = USD 1.22  

Average rate for the year L$ 1 = USD 1.175  

Rate at end of the year L$ 1 = USD 1.13 

 

Solution: 

Translation of the financial statements 

 USD RATE L$ 

Property, plant and equipment 50000 1.13 44248 

Receivables 935000 1.13 827434 

Total Assets 985000  871682 

Issued Capital 50000 - 30055 

Opening retained earnings 28000 - 15274 

Profit for the year 20000 1.175 17021 

Accounts payable 840000 1.13 743363 

Accrued liabilities 47000 1.13 41593 

Total Equity and Liabilities USD  985000 -  
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Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - - 24376 

Total Equity and Liability L$   871682 

 

Working of the cumulative balance of the FCTR: 

Particulars Actual translated 

amount in L$ 

Amount Difference 

translated at closing 

rate of 1.13 

Issued capital 30,055 44,274 14,192 

Opening retained earnings 15,274 24,779 9,505 

Profit for the year 17,021 17,699 678 

[Difference of 1 is rounding] 62,350 86,725 24,375 

 

 

Q 24 - (RTP NOV 19) 

Global Limited, an Indian company acquired on 30th September, 20X1 70% of the share capital of Mark 

Limited, an entity registered as company in Germany. The functional currency of Global Limited is Rupees 

and its financial year end is 31st March, 20X2.  

(a) The fair value of the net assets of Mark Limited was 23 million EURO and the purchase consideration 

paid is 17.5 million EURO on 30th September, 20X1. 

The exchange rates as at 30th September, 20X1 was ` 82 / EURO and at 31st March, 20X2 was ` 84 / 

EURO.  

What is the value at which the goodwill has to be recognised in the financial statements of Global Limited 

as on 31st March, 20X2?  

 

(b) Mark Limited sold goods costing 2.4 million EURO to Global Limited for 4.2 million EURO during the 

year ended 31st March, 20X2. The exchange rate on the date of purchase by Global Limited was ` 83 / 

EURO and on 31st March, 20X2 was ` 84 / EURO. The entire goods purchased from Mark Limited are 

unsold as on 31st March, 20X2. Determine the unrealised profit to be eliminated in the preparation of 

consolidated financial statements. 

Solution 

(a) Para 47 of Ind AS 21 requires that goodwill arose on business combination shall be expressed in the 

functional currency of the foreign operation and shall be translated at the closing rate in accordance with 

paragraphs 39 and 42. In this case the amount of goodwill will be as follows:  

Net identifiable asset Dr.    23 million  
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Goodwill (bal. fig.) Dr.    1.4 million  

To Bank     17.5 million  

To NCI  (23 x 30%)   6.9 million  

Thus, goodwill on reporting date would be 1.4 million EURO x 84 = 117.6 million  

 

(b) Particulars  

EURO in million  

Sale price of Inventory  4.20  

Unrealised Profit [a]  1.80  

Exchange rate as on date of purchase of Inventory [b] 83/Euro 

Unrealized profit to be eliminated [a x b] - 149.40 million  

As per para 39 of Ind AS 21 “income and expenses for each statement of profit and loss presented (ie including 

comparatives) shall be translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions”.  

In the given case, purchase of inventory is an expense item shown in the statement profit and loss account. 

Hence, the exchange rate on the date of purchase of inventory is taken for calculation of unrealized profit 

which is to be eliminated on the event of consolidation. 
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Q 25 

K  Ltd.  began  construction  of  a  new  building  at  an  estimated  cost  of  Rs  7  lakh  on   1
st

April, 2017. 

To finance construction of the building it obtained a specific loan of Rs 2 lakh from a financial institution 

at an interest rate of 9% per annum. 

The company’s other outstanding loans were: 

Amount Rate of Interest per annum 

Rs 7,00,000 12% 

Rs 9,00,000 11% 

The expenditure incurred on the construction was: 

April, 2017 Rs 1,50,000 

August, 2017 Rs 2,00,000 

October, 2017 Rs 3,50,000 

January, 2018 Rs 1,00,000 

The construction of building was completed by 31st January, 2018. Following the provisions of Ind AS 23 

‘Borrowing Costs’, calculate the amount of interest to be capitalized and pass necessary journal entry for 

capitalizing the cost and borrowing cost in respect of the building as on 31st January, 2018.  

Solution: 

Calculation of capitalization rate on borrowings other than specific borrowings 

Amount of loan (Rs) Rate of interest Amount of interest(Rs) 

7,00,000 12% = 84,000 

9,00,000 11% = 99,000 

16,00,000   1,83,000 

Weighted average rate of interest 

(1,83,000/16,00,000) x100 

 = 11.4375% 

 

Computation of borrowing cost to be capitalized for specific borrowings and general 

borrowings based on weighted average accumulated expenses 

TOPIC 11.   
 

 
INDAS-23 

BORROWING COSTS 
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Date of 

incurrence of 

expenditure 

Amount 

spent 

Financed 

through 

Calculation Rs 

1
st
April, 2017 1,50,000 Specific 

borrowing 

 

1,50,000 x 9% x 10/12 

 

11,250 

1
st
August, 2017 2,00,000 Specific 

borrowing 

 

50,000 x 9% x 10/12 

 

3,750 

  General 

borrowing 

 

1,50,000 x 11.4375% x 6/12 

 

8,578.125 

1stOctober, 2017 3,50,000 General 

borrowing 

 

3,50,000 x 11.4375% x 4/12 

 

13,343.75 

1stJanuary, 2018 1,00,000 General 

borrowing 

 

1,00,000 x 11.4375% x 1/12 

 

953.125 

    37,875 

 

Note: Since construction of building started on 1st April, 2017, it is presumed that all the later expenditures 

on construction of building had been incurred at the beginning of the respective month.  

 

Total expenses to be capitalized for building 

 Rs 

Cost of building Rs (1,50,000 + 2,00,000 + 3,50,000 + 1,00,000) 8,00,000 

Add: Amount of interest to be capitalized 37,875 

 8,37,875 

 

Journal Entry 

Date Particulars Rs Rs 

31.1.2018 Building account Dr. 8,37,875  

To Bank account 8,00,0000 

To Interest payable (borrowing cost) 37,875 

(Being expenditure incurred on construction 

of building and borrowing cost thereon 

capitalized) 

 

 

Note: In the above journal entry, it is assumed that interest amount will be paid at the year end. Hence, 

entry for interest payable has been passed on 31.1.2018.  
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Alternatively, following journal entry may be passed if interest is paid on the date of capitalization: 

Date Particulars Rs Rs 

31.1.2018 Building account 

(Being expenditure incurred on construction of 

building and borrowing cost thereon 

capitalized) 

Dr. 8,37,875  

8,37,875 

 

 

Q 26 

Alpha Ltd. on 1stApril 20X1 borrowed 9% ₹30,00,000 to finance the construction of two qualifying assets. 

Construction started on 1st April 20X1. The loan facility was availed on 1st April 20X1 and was utilized as 

follows with remaining funds invested temporarily at 7%.  

Factory Building Office Building 

1st April 20X1  5,00,000 10,00,000 

1st October 20X1  5,00,000 10,00,000 

 

Calculate the cost of the asset and the borrowing cost to be capitalized.   

Solution: 

Particulars Factory Building Office Building 

Borrowing Costs  (10,00,000*9%) 90,000 (20,00,000*9%) 1,80,000 

Less: Investment Income  (5,00,000*7%*6/12) 

(17,500) 

(10,00,000*7%*6/12) 

(35,000) 

 72,500 1,45,000 

Cost of the asset:  

Expenditure incurred  

Borrowing Costs  

Total  

 

10,00,000 

72,500 

10,72,500 

 

20,00,000 

1,45,000 

21,45,000 

 

Q 27 

ABC Inc. constructs a new factory building commencing on 1 September 2014, which continues without 

interruption until after the year end on 31 December 2014. Directly attributable expenditure on this asset is 

Rs 100,000 in September 2014 and Rs 250,000 in each of the months of October to December 2014.  
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ABC Inc. has not taken out any specific borrowings to finance the construction of the asset, however has 

incurred finance costs on its general borrowings during the construction period.  

During the year the ABC Inc. had 10% debentures in issue with a face value of Rs 2,000,000 and an overdraft 

of 500,000, which increased to Rs 750,000 in December 2014. 

Interest was paid on the overdraft at 15% until 1 October 2014, when the rate was increased to 16%. 

Calculate the amount of borrowing cost that can be capitalised in the cost of an asset.  

Answer:  

Step I - Average expenditure on a qualifying asset       Rs 

(1,00,000 + 350,000 + 600,000 + 850,000)/4       475,000 

 

Step II — Capitalisation rate (to be applied on ‘average expenditure’)  

The capitalisation rate of the general borrowings is calculated as:  

= Weighted average borrowing costs incurred during the period X 100  

   Weighted average borrowings during the period  

Weighted average borrowing costs incurred during the period:  

Finance cost on Rs 2,000,000 10% debentures during     66,667  

September — December 2014  

Interest at 15% on overdraft of 500,000 in September 2014     6,250  

Interest at 16% on overdraft of 500,000 in October and November 2014 13,333  

Interest at 16% on overdraft of 750,000 in December 2014     10,000  

Total Finance cost in September to December 2014      96,250  

Weighted average borrowings during period = (2 million x 4) + (500000 x 3) + (750,000 1) 

/4 = 2,562,500  

Capitalisation rate = Total finance costs in period/weighted average borrowings during period = 

96,250/2,562,500 = 3.756%  

 

Step III - Borrowing cost to be capitalised  

The capitalisation rate, therefore, reflects the weighted average cost of borrowings for the 4 month period 

that the asset was under construction. On an annualized basis 3.756% gives a capitalizations rate of 11.268% 

per annum, which is what would be expected on the borrowings profile.  

Borrowing costs to = Weighted average carrying amount of asset capitalisation rate be capitalised  

— [475,000 11.268% x 4/12]  

OR  

[475,000 x 3.756%]  

= 17,841  
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Q 28 (RTP – Nov19) 

On 1st April, 20X1, entity A contracted for the construction of a building for 22,00,000. The land under 

the building is regarded as a separate asset and is not part of the qualifying assets. The building was 

completed at the end of March, 20X2, and during the period the following payments were made to the 

contractor: 

Payment Date Amount  (Rs. in 000) 

1st April 20X1 200 

30th June 20X1 600 

31st December 20X1 1200 

31st March 20X2 200 

Total  2200 

 

Entity A’s borrowings at its year end of 31st March, 20X2 were as follows:  

A 

10%, 4-year note with simple interest payable annually, which relates specifically to the project; debt 

outstanding on 31st March, 20X2 amounted to ` 7,00,000. Interest of ` 65,000 was incurred on these 

borrowings during the year, and interest income of ` 20,000 was earned on these funds while they were held 

in anticipation of payments.  

 

B. 

12.5% 10-year note with simple interest payable annually; debt outstanding at 1st April, 20X1 amounted to 

` 1,000,000 and remained unchanged during the year; and  

 

C. 

10% 10-year note with simple interest payable annually; debt outstanding at 1st April, 20X1 amounted to ` 

1,500,000 and remained unchanged during the year.  

 

What amount of the borrowing costs can be capitalized at year end as per relevant Ind AS? 

Solution: 

As per Ind AS 23, when an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, 

the entity should determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing 

costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the temporary investment 

of those borrowings.  
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The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization, in cases where the funds are borrowed generally, 

should be determined based on the expenditure incurred in obtaining a qualifying asset. The costs incurred 

should first be allocated to the specific borrowings.  

Analysis of expenditure: 

Date Expenditure Amount allocated in 

Gen. Borrowings 

Weighted for period 

outstanding 

1st April  200 0 0 

30th June 600 100* 100x9/12 = 75 

31st Dec 1200 1200 1200x3/12 = 300 

31st March 200 200 200x0/12 = 0 

Total 2200  375 

 

*Specific borrowings of 7,00,000 fully utilized on 1st April & on 30th June to the extent of 5,00,000 hence 

remaining expenditure of 1,00,000 allocated to general borrowings.  

The expenditure rate relating to general borrowings should be the weighted average of the borrowing costs 

applicable to the entity’s borrowings that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made 

specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. 

Capitalisation Rate = (1000000x12.5%) + (1500000x10%) / 1000000+1500000 = 11% 

Borrowing Cost to be Capitalised Amount 

On Specific Loan 65000 

On general borrowing (375000x11%) 41250 

Total  106250 

Less interest income on specific borrowing -20000 

Amount Eligible for Capitalisation 86250 
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Q 29 - (MTP MARCH 19) 

An Indian company has a parent company out side India. Parent company negotiates software licenses with 

end vendor and based on number of licences, parent company get its reimbursement from Indian company. 

Say, license cost of Rs. 12 Lac is charged for calendar year of 2018. Parent company generates is invoice in 

February'18. Indian company accounts full invoice in February'18 and then for Indian financial year, 

accounts Reimbursement expense of Rs. 3. 00 Lac during FY 1718 (for licencing cost relating to period 

January'18 to March'18) and Prepaid expenses of Rs. 9 Lac for licensing cost reimbursement relating to 

April'18 to December'18. Prepaid expense is subsequently reversed and expense of Rs. 9 Lac is accounted 

for in FY 18-19. 

What amount should be disclosed at Related party transaction?          (4 Marks) 

 

SOLUTION 

(b) Paragraph 9 of Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures defines Related Party Transactions as under:  

“A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity 

and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.”  

 

Paragraph 6 of Ind AS 24 states as under:  

“6 A related party relationship could have an effect on the profit or loss and financial position of an 

entity…” 

In the given case, there is a transfer of resources to the extent of Rs.12 lac from the company to the 

parent towards software license. Of this transfer of resources, the company has consumed the benefits 

relating to Rs.3 lac of software license cost which is recognise in profit or loss. The benefits relating to 

Rs.9 lac of software license cost will be consumed in the next reporting period and therefore is 

recognised in balance sheet as prepaid expenses.  

 

Paragraph 18 of Ind AS 24 states as under:  

 

 

TOPIC 12.   
 

 
INDAS-24 

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
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“18 If an entity has had related party transactions during the periods covered by the financial 

statements, it shall disclose the nature of the related party relationship as well as information about 

those transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments necessary for users to understand 

the potential effect of the relationship of the financial statements. At a minimum, disclosures shall 

include:  

a. The amount of the transactions;  

b. The amount of outstanding balances, including commitments, and;  

(i) Their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the 

consideration to be provided in settlement; and  

(ii) Details of any guarantees given or received;  

c. Provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and  

d. The expense recognised during the period in respect of bad and doubtful debts due from related 

parties.”  

 

Therefore, the company has to disclose:  

1. The amount of transaction with the parent of Rs.12 lac towards software license;  

2. Outstanding balance of Rs.9 lac presented as prepaid expense along with the terms and conditions and 

state that the same will be settled in the next reporting period by receipt of software licensing services.  

3. The amount of Rs.3 lac recognised as software license expense in profit or loss for the benefits consumed 

during the period to make it understandable to users.  

 

Paragraph 113 of Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements states as under:  

“113 An entity shall present notes in a systematic manner. An entity shall cross-reference each line items in 

the balance sheet and in the statement of profit and loss, and in the statement of changes in equity and of 

cash flows to any related information in the notes.”  

Therefore, the company shall cross-reference the software license expense recognised in profit or loss and 

prepaid expenses recognised in balance sheet to the notes disclosing related party transactions. 

 

Q 30 - (RTP NOV19) 

Uttar Pradesh State Government holds 60% shares in PQR Limited and 55% shares in ABC Limited. PQR 

Limited has two subsidiaries namely P Limited and Q Limited. ABC Limited has two subsidiaries namely A 

Limited and B Limited. Mr. KM is one of the Key management personnel in PQR Limited. 

(a) Determine the entity to whom exemption from disclosure of related party transactions is to be given. 

Also examine the transactions and with whom such exemption applies.  

(b) What are the disclosure requirements for the entity which has availed the exemption? 
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Answer: 

(a) As per para 18 of Ind AS 24, ‘Related Party Disclosures’, if an entity had related party transactions during 

the periods covered by the financial statements, it shall disclose the nature of the related party relationship 

as well as information about those transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary 

for users to understand the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements.  

However, as per para 25 of the standard a reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements in 

relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with:  

(i) a government that has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, the reporting entity; and  

(ii) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control or joint control of, or 

significant influence over, both the reporting entity and the other entity  

According to the above paras, for Entity P’s financial statements, the exemption in paragraph 25 applies to:  

(i) Transactions with Government Uttar Pradesh State Government; and  

(ii) Transactions with Entities PQR and ABC and Entities Q, A and B.  

Similar exemptions are available to Entities PQR, ABC, Q, A and B, with the transactions with UP State 

Government and other entities controlled directly or indirectly by UP State Government. However, that 

exemption does not apply to transactions with Mr. KM. Hence, the transactions with Mr. KM needs to be 

disclosed under related party transactions.  

 

(b) It shall disclose the following about the transactions and related outstanding balances referred to in 

paragraph 25:  

(a) The name of the government and the nature of its relationship with the reporting entity (ie control, joint 

control or significant influence);  

(b) The following information in sufficient detail to enable users of the entity’s financial statements to 

understand the effect of related party transactions on its financial statements:  

(i) The nature and amount of each individually significant transaction; and  

(ii) For other transactions that are collectively, but not individually, significant, a qualitative or quantitative 

indication of their extent. 
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Q 31- (FR Old Syllabus) 

 

From the following information, you are required to calculate the basic and diluted earnings per share: 

Net Profit for 2013-14   Rs. 11 Lacs 

Net Profit for 2014-15   Rs. 15 Lacs 

No. of Shares issued before right issue   5 Lacs 

Right Issue   One for every 5 held 

Right Issue price   Rs. 15 Per share 

Last date of exercising right option   01-06-2014 

Fair Value of Shares before right issue  Rs. 21 per Share 

(Answer: EPS – 13-14 Restated 2.1; FY 14-15 EPS – 2.55)   

 

Q 32 - (RTP MAY19) 

An entity issues 2,000 convertible bonds at the beginning of Year 1. The bonds have a three-year term, and 

are issued at par with a face value of Rs 1,000 per bond, giving total proceeds of Rs 2,000,000. Interest is 

payable annually in arrears at a nominal annual interest rate of 6 per cent. Each bond is convertible at any 

time up to maturity into 250 ordinary shares. The entity has an option to settle the principal amount of the 

convertible bonds in ordinary shares or in cash. 

When the bonds are issued, the prevailing market interest rate for similar debt without a conversion option 

is 9 per cent. At the issue date, the market price of one ordinary share is Rs 3. Income tax is ignored. 

Calculate basic and diluted EPS when 

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 

entity Year 1  

Ordinary shares outstanding  

Convertible bonds outstanding  

Rs 1,000,000 

 

1,200,000 

2,000 

TOPIC 13.   
 

 
INDAS-33 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 
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Solution: 

Allocation of proceeds of the bond issue: 

Liability component (Refer Note 1)  Rs 1,848,122 

Equity component  Rs151,878 

 Rs2,000,000 

 

The liability and equity components would be determined in accordance with Ind AS 32. These amounts are 

recognised as the initial carrying amounts of the liability and equity components. The amount assigned to 

the issuer conversion option equity element is an addition to equity and is not adjusted. 

Basic earnings per share Year 1: 

 Rs 1,000,000/ 1,200,000= Rs 0.83 per ordinary share 

 

Diluted earnings per share Year 1: 

It is presumed that the issuer will settle the contract by the issue of ordinary shares. The dilutive effect is 

therefore calculated in accordance with the Standard. 

Rs1,000,000 + Rs166,331/1,200,000 + 500,000= Rs 0.69 per ordinary share 

 

Notes: 

1. This represents the present value of the principal and interest discounted at 9% – Rs 2,000,000 payable 

at the end of three years; Rs 120,000 payable annually in arrears for three years. 

2. Profit is adjusted for the accretion of Rs 166,331 (Rs 1,848,122 × 9%) of the liability because of the 

passage of time. However, it is assumed that interest @ 6% for the year has already been adjusted. 

3. 500,000 ordinary shares = 250 ordinary shares x 2,000 convertible bonds 
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Q 33 

Company A expects to earn Rs 15,000 pre-tax profit each quarter and has a corporate tax slab of 20 percent 

on the first Rs 20,000 of annual earnings and 40 per cent on all additional earnings. Actual earnings match 

expectations. Calculate the amount of income tax to be shown in each quarter. 

Solution: 

The following table shows the amount of income tax expense that is reported in each quarter: 

 

Expected Total Income = 15,000 x 4 = Rs 60,000 

Expected Tax as per slabs = 20,000 x 20% + 40,000 x 40% = Rs 20,000 

Average Annual Income tax rate = 20,000/60,000 x 100 = 33.33% 

 Amt (Rs) 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Profit before tax 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

Tax expense 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 

 

 

Q 34 - (RTP – Nov19) 

An entity reports quarterly, earns 1,50,000 pre-tax profit in the first quarter but expects to incur losses of 

50,000 in each of the three remaining quarters. The entity operates in a jurisdiction in which its estimated 

average annual income tax rate is 30%.  

The management believes that since the entity has zero income for the year, its income-tax expense for the 

year will be zero. State whether the management’s views are correct. If not, then calculate the tax expense 

for each quarter as well as for the year as per Ind AS 34. 

Solution 

As per para 30 (c) of Ind AS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’, income tax expense is recognised in each 

interim period based on the best estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for the 

full financial year.  

 

 

TOPIC 14.   
 

 
INDAS-34 

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING 
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Accordingly, the management’s contention that since the net income for the year will be zero no income tax 

expense shall be charged quarterly in the interim financial report, is not correct.  

The following table shows the correct income tax expense to be reported each quarter in accordance with 

Ind AS 34: 

Period  Pre-Tax Earnings Effective Tax Rate Tax Expense 

First Quarter 150000 30% 45000 

Second Quarter -50000 30% -15000 

Third Quarter  -50000 30% -15000 

Fourth Quarter -50000 30% -15000 

Annual 0  0 
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       Student Notes:-   
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Q 35 

X Ltd. purchased a Property, Plant and Equipment four years ago for Rs. 150 lakhs and depreciates it at 

10% p.a. on straight line method. At the end of the fourth year, it has revalued the asset at Rs. 75 lakhs and 

has written off the loss on revaluation to the profit and loss account. However, on the date of revaluation, 

the market price is Rs. 67.50 lakhs and expected disposal costs are Rs. 3 lakhs. What will be the treatment 

in respect of impairment loss on the basis that fair value for revaluation purpose is determined by market 

value and the value in use is estimated at Rs. 60 lakhs? (5 Marks) 

SOLUTION 

Treatment of Impairment Loss  

As per para 57 of AS 28 “Impairment of assets”, if the recoverable amount (higher of net selling price and its 

value in use) of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset should be reduced 

to its recoverable amount. In the given case, net selling price is Rs. 64.50 lakhs (Rs. 67.50 lakhs – Rs. 3 lakhs) 

and value in use is Rs. 60 lakhs. Therefore, recoverable amount will be Rs. 64.50 lakhs. Impairment loss will 

be calculated as Rs. 10.50 lakhs [Rs. 75 lakhs (Carrying Amount after revaluation - Refer Working Note) 

less Rs. 64.50 lakhs (Recoverable Amount)].  

Thus impairment loss of Rs.10.50 lakhs should be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss immediately since there was downward revaluation of asset which was already charged to Statement 

of Profit and Loss.  

Working Note:  

Calculation of carrying amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment at the end of the fourth year 

on revaluation 

(Rs. in lakhs)  

Purchase price of a Property, Plant and Equipment  

Less: Depreciation for four years [(150 lakhs / 10 years) x 4 years]  

Carrying value at the end of fourth year  

Less: Downward revaluation charged to profit and loss account  

Revalued carrying amount  

150.00 

(60.00) 

90.00 

(15.00) 

75.00 

 

 

TOPIC 15.   
 

 
INDAS-36 

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 
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Q 36 

ABC Ltd. has three cash-generating units: A, B and C, the carrying amounts of which as on March 31, 20X1 

are as follows: 

 

Cash-generating 

units 

Carrying 

amount 

(Rs in crores) 

Remaining useful life 

A 

B 

C 

500 

750 

1,100 

10 

20 

20 

 

ABC Ltd. also has two corporate assets having a remaining useful life of 20 years. 

(Rs in crores)  

Corporate 

asset 

Carrying 

amount 

Remarks 

X 

 

 

Y 

600 

 

 

200 

The carrying amount of X can be allocated on a 

reasonable basis (i.e., pro rata basis) to the individual 

cash-generating units.  

The carrying amount of Y cannot be allocated on a 

reasonable basis to the individual cash- generating 

units.  

 

Recoverable amount as on March 31, 20X1 is as follows: 

Cash-generating units Recoverable amount (Rsin crores) 

A 

B 

C 

ABC Ltd. 

600 

900 

1,400 

3,200 

 

Calculate the impairment loss, if any. Ignore decimals.  

Solution 

Allocation of corporate assets  

The carrying amount of X is allocated to the carrying amount of each individual cash- generating unit. A 

weighted allocation basis is used because the estimated remaining useful life of A’s cash-generating unit is 

10 years, whereas the estimated remaining useful lives of B and C’s cash-generating units are 20 years. 
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(Rs in crores)  

Particulars A B C Total 

Carrying amount  

 

Useful life  

 

Weight based on useful life  

 

Carrying amount (after assigning 

weight)  

Pro-rata allocation of X  

 

Allocation of carrying amount of X  

Carrying amount (after allocation of 

X)  

500 

 

10 years 

 

1 

 

500 

 

12% 

(500/4,20

0) 

72 

572 

750 

 

20 years 

 

2 

 

1,500 

 

36% 

(1,500/4,20

0) 

216 

966 

1,100 

 

20 years 

 

2 

 

2,200 

 

52% 

(2,200/4,200

) 

312 

1,412 

2,350 

 

— 

 

— 

 

4,200 

 

100% 

 

600 

2,950 

 

Calculation of impairment loss  

Step I: Impairment losses for individual cash-generating units and its allocation  

(a) Impairment loss of each cash-generating units 

(Rs in crores)  

 

Particulars  A  B  C  

Carrying amount (after allocation of 

X)  

Recoverable amount  

Impairment loss  

572  

600  

-  

966  

900  

66  

1,412  

1400  

12  

 

(b) Allocation of the impairment loss 

(Rs in crores)  

 

Allocation to  B   C   

X 

Other assets in cash- generating 

units 

Impairment loss 

15  

51  

66  

(66 x 216/966)  

(66 x 750/ 966)  

3  

9  

12  

(12 x 312/1,412)  

(12 x 1,100/ 

1,412)  
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Step II: Impairment losses for the larger cash-generating unit, i.e., ABC Ltd. as a whole 

 

(Rs in crores)  

Particulars  A B C X Y ABC Ltd. 

Carrying amount  500 750 1,100 600 200 3,150 

Impairment loss (Step I)  - (51) (9) (18) - (78) 

Carrying amount (after 

Step I)  

500 699 1,091 582 200 3,072 

Recoverable amount  3,200 

Impairment loss for the ‘larger’ cash-generating unit  Nil 

 

 

Q 37 

Parent acquires an 80% ownership interest in Subsidiary for Rs 2,100 on April 1, 20X1. At that date, 

Subsidiary’s net identifiable assets have a fair value of Rs 1,500. Parent chooses to measure the non-

controlling interests as the proportionate interest of Subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. The assets of 

Subsidiary together are the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent 

of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Because other cash-generating units of Parent are 

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, the goodwill of Rs 500 related to those synergies 

has been allocated to other cash-generating units within Parent. On March 31, 20X2, Parent determines 

that the recoverable amount of cash-generating unit Subsidiary is ₹ 1,000. The carrying amount of the net 

assets of Subsidiary, excluding goodwill, is Rs 1,350. Allocate the impairment loss on March 31, 20X2. 

 

Solution: 

Non-controlling interests is measured as the proportionate interest of Subsidiary’s net identifiable assets, 

i.e., Rs 300 (20% of Rs 1,500). Goodwill is the difference between the aggregate of the consideration 

transferred and the amount of the non-controlling interests (Rs 2,100 + Rs 300) and the net identifiable 

assets (Rs 1,500), i.e., Rs 900.  

 

Since, the assets of Subsidiary together are the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that are 

largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets; therefore, Subsidiary is a cash-

generating unit. Because other cash-generating units of Parent are expected to benefit from the synergies of 

the combination, the goodwill of Rs 500 related to those synergies has been allocated to other cash-

generating units within Parent. Because the cash-generating unit comprising Subsidiary includes goodwill 

within its carrying amount, it should be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if there is an 

indication that it may be impaired.  
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Testing Subsidiary (cash-generating unit) for impairment  

Goodwill attributable to non-controlling interests is included in Subsidiary’s recoverable amount of Rs 1,000 

but has not been recognised in Parent’s consolidated financial statements. Therefore, the carrying amount 

of Subsidiary should be grossed up to include goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests, before 

being compared with the recoverable amount of Rs 1,000. Goodwill attributable to Parent’s 80% interest in 

Subsidiary at the acquisition date is Rs 400 after allocating Rs 500 to other cash-generating units within 

Parent. Therefore, goodwill attributable to the 20% non-controlling interests in Subsidiary at the acquisition 

date is Rs 100.  

 

Testing subsidiary for impairment on March 31, 20X2 

On March 31, 20X2 Goodwill of 

subsidiary(Rs) 

Net identifiable 

assets(Rs) 

Total(Rs) 

Carrying amount  400 1,350 1,750 

Unrecognised non-controlling 

interests  

100 - 100 

Adjusted carrying amount  500 1,350 1,850 

Recoverable amount  1,000 

Impairment loss  850 

 

Allocating the impairment loss  

The impairment loss of Rs 850 should be allocated to the assets in the unit by first reducing the carrying 

amount of goodwill.  

 

Therefore, Rs 500 of the Rs 850 impairment loss for the unit is allocated to the goodwill. If the partially-

owned subsidiary is itself a cash-generating unit, the goodwill impairment loss should be allocated to the 

controlling and non-controlling interests on the same basis as that on which profit or loss is allocated. In 

this case, profit or loss is allocated on the basis of relative ownership interests. Because the goodwill is 

recognised only to the extent of Parent’s 80% ownership interest in Subsidiary, Parent recognises only 80% 

of that goodwill impairment loss (i.e., Rs 400).  

The remaining impairment loss of Rs 350 is recognised by reducing the carrying amounts of Subsidiary’s 

identifiable assets.  

 

Allocation of the impairment loss for Subsidiary on March 31, 20X2 Allocation of the impairment 

loss for Subsidiary on March 31, 20X2 



 

68 
 

On March 31, 20X2 Goodwill of 

subsidiary (Rs) 

Net identifiable 

assets (Rs) 

Total (Rs) 

Carrying amount  400 1,350 1,750 

Impairment loss  (400) (350) (750) 

Carrying amount after 

impairment loss  

- 1,000 1,000 

 

 

Q 38 

Assuming in the above example, as on March 31, 20X3, there is no change in the estimated future cash flows 

and discount rate. Fair value less costs to sell as on March 31, 20X3 is Rs 40 crores. How should it be dealt 

with under Ind AS 36? 

 

Financial 

year 

Estimated cash flows(Rs in 

crores) 

Present value factor 

@ 10% 

Present 

value 

20X3-20X4 30 0.9091 27.27  

20X4-20X5 40 0.8264 33.06  

20X5-20X6 10 0.7513 7.51  

67.84  

 

Solution 

The recoverable amount of the machinery is Rs 67.84 crores (higher of value in use of Rs 67.84 crores and 

fair value less costs to sell of Rs 40 crores). Carrying amount of the machinery is Rs 60 crores (after providing 

for two years depreciation @ Rs 20 crores per annum).  

 

However, as per paragraph 116 of Ind AS 36, an impairment loss is not reversed just because of the passage 

of time (sometimes called the ‘unwinding’ of the discount), even if the recoverable amount of the asset 

becomes higher than its carrying amount.  

 

Therefore, the impairment loss of Rs 4.69 crores should not be reversed. 

 

 

Q 39 

A Ltd. purchased an asset of Rs 100 lakhs on April 1, 20X0. It has useful life of 4 years with no residual 

value. Recoverable amount of the asset is as follows: 
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As on Recoverable amount 

March 31, 20X1 Rs 60 lakhs 

March 31, 20X2 Rs  40 lakhs 

March 31, 20X3 Rs  28 lakhs 

 

Calculate the amount of impairment loss or its reversal, if any, on March 31, 20X1, March 31, 20X2 and 

March 31, 20X3.  

 

Solution: 

As on March 31, 20X1s 

Carrying amount of the asset (opening balance)  Rs 100 lakhs  

Depreciation (Rs 100 lakhs/4 years)  Rs 25 lakhs  

Carrying amount of the asset (closing balance)  Rs 75 lakhs  

Recoverable amount (given)  Rs 60 lakhs  

 

Therefore, an impairment loss of Rs lakhs should be recognised as on March 31, 20X1. Depreciation for 

subsequent years should be charged on the carrying amount of the asset (after providing for impairment 

loss), i.e., Rs 60 lakhs.  

As on March 31, 20X2 

Carrying amount of the asset (opening balance)  Rs 60 lakhs  

Depreciation (Rs  60 lakhs/3 years)  Rs 20 lakhs  

Carrying amount of the asset (closing balance)  Rs 40 lakhs  

Therefore, no impairment loss should be recognised as on March 31, 20X2.  

As on March 31, 20X3 

Carrying amount of the asset (opening balance)  Rs 40 lakhs  

Depreciation (Rs 40 lakhs/2 years)  Rs 20 lakhs  

Carrying amount of the asset (closing balance)  Rs 20 lakhs  

Recoverable amount (given)  Rs 28 lakhs 

 

Since, the recoverable amount of the asset exceeds the carrying amount of the asset by Rs 8 lakhs, impairment 

loss recognised earlier should be reversed. However, reversal of an impairment loss should not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment 

loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.  

Carrying amount as on March 31, 20X3 had no impairment loss being recognised would have been Rs 25 

lakhs. Therefore, the reversal of an impairment loss of Rs 5 lakhs should be done as on March 31, 20X3. 
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Q 40 

On March 31, 20X1, XYZ Ltd. makes following estimate of cash flows for one of its asset located in USA: 

Year  Cash flows  

20X1-20X2  US $ 80 

20X2-20X3  US $ 100 

20X3-20X4  US $ 20 

 

Following information has been provided: 

Particulars  India  USA  

Applicable discount rate  15%  10%  

 

Exchange rates are as follows: 

As on  Exchange rate  

March 31, 20X1  Rs 45/US $ 

As on  Expected Exchange rate 

March 31, 20X2  

March 31, 20X3  

March 31, 20X4  

Rs  48/US $ 

Rs 51/US $ 

Rs 55/US $ 

Calculate value in use as on March 31, 20X1. 

 

Solution 

Year  Cash flows 

(US $) 

Present value 

factor @ 10% 

Discounted 

cashflows (US $) 

20X1-20X2  80 0.9091 72.73 

20X2-20X3  100 0.8264 82.64 

20X3-20X4  20 0.7513 15.03 

Total Discounted cash flows in US $ 170.40  

Exchange rate as on March 31, 20X1, i.e., date of calculating value in use ₹ 

45/US $  

Value in use as on March 31, 20X1 ₹ 7,668  
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Q 41 

Aakash Limited is the owner of CGU (Cash Generating Unit) block of assets whose current carrying cost is 

Rs. 1,000 lacs. Current carrying cost of CGU block of assets as per Accounting and Tax records are after 

charging depreciation of the current year. The company after the detailed study by its technical team, has 

assessed the present value recoverable amount of this CGU block of assets at Rs. 550 lacs. The value of block 

of assets as per the Income Tax records is Rs. 800 lacs. The approving authority of the company has issued 

a signed statement confirming that impairment in the value of CGU is only a temporary phenomenon which 

is reversible in subsequent periods and also assuring virtual certainty of taxable incomes in the foreseeable 

future. You are required to show Deferred Tax workings as per Accounting Standards in force, given the 

tax rate of 30% plus 10% surcharge thereon. The depreciation rate for tax purpose is 15% and that as per 

books is 13.91%. 

(Nov. 2015 – 4 Marks)(Answer: DTL Reversed – 72.73 and DTA Created – 82.50) 

 

Q 42 - (RTP – May19) 

Elia limited is a manufacturing company which deals in to manufacturing of cold drinks and beverages. It is 

having various plants across India. There is a Machinery A in the Baroda plant which is used for the purpose 

of bottling. There is one more machinery which is Machinery B clubbed with Machinery A. Machinery A 

can individually have an output and also sold independently in the open market. Machinery B cannot be sold 

in isolation and without clubbing with Machine A it cannot produce output as well. The Company considers 

this group of assets as a Cash Generating Unit and an Inventory amounting to Rs 2 Lakh and Goodwill 

amounting to Rs 1.50 Lakhs is included in such CGU.Machinery A was purchased on 1st April 2013 for Rs 

10 Lakhs and residual value is Rs 50 thousands. Machinery B was purchased on 1st April, 2015 for Rs 5 

Lakhs with no residual value. The useful life of both Machine A and B is 10 years. The Company expects 

following cash flows in the next 5 years pertaining to Machinery A. The incremental borrowing rate of the 

company is 10%. 

Year  Cash Flows from Machinery A  

1  

2  

3  

4  

5  

Total  

1,50,000  

1,00,000  

1,00,000  

1,50,000  

1,00,000 (excluding Residual Value)  

6,00,000  

On 31st March, 2018, the professional valuers have estimated that the current market value of Machinery 

A is Rs 7 lakhs. The valuation fee was Rs 1 lakh. There is a need to dismantle the machinery before delivering 
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it to the buyer. Dismantling cost is Rs 1.50 lakhs. Specialised packaging cost would be Rs 25 thousand and 

legal fees would be Rs 75 thousand. 

The Inventory has been valued in accordance with Ind AS 2. The recoverable value of CGU is Rs 10 Lakh 

as on 31st March, 2018. In the next year, the company has done the assessment of recoverability of the CGU 

and found that the value of such CGU is Rs 11 Lakhs ie on 31st March, 2019. The Recoverable value of 

Machine A is Rs 4,50,000 and combined Machine A and B is Rs 7,60,000 as on 31st March, 2019. 

Required: 

a) Compute the impairment loss on CGU and carrying value of each asset after charging impairment loss 

for the year ending 31st March, 2018 by providing all the relevant working notes to arrive at such 

calculation. 

b) Compute the prospective depreciation for the year 2018-2019 on the above assets. 

c) Compute the carrying value of CGU as at 31st March, 2019. 

 

Solution: 

Computation of impairment loss and carrying value of each of the asset in CGU after impairment loss 

(i) Calculation of carrying value of Machinery A and B before impairment 

Machinery A  

Cost (A)  

Residual Value  

Useful life  

Useful life already elapsed  

Yearly depreciation (B)  

WDV as at 31st March, 2018 [A- (B x 5)]  

Machinery B  

Cost (C)  

Residual Value  

Useful life  

Useful life already elapsed  

Yearly depreciation (D)  

WDV as at 31st March, 2018 [C- (D x 3)]  

 

Rs 10,00,000  

Rs 50,000  

10 years  

5 years  

Rs 95,000  

Rs 5,25,000  

 

Rs 5,00,000  

-  

10 years  

3 years  

Rs 50,000  

Rs 3,50,000  

(ii) Calculation of Value-in-use of Machinery A 

Period  Cash Flows (Rs) PVF PV 

1  

2  

3  

4  

1,50,000 

1,00,000 

1,00,000 

1,50,000 

0.909 

0.826 

0.751 

0.683 

1,36,350 

82,600 

75,100 

1,02,450 
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5  

5  

Value in use  

1,00,000 

50,000 

0.621 

0.621 

 

62,100 

31,050 

4,89,650 

(iii) Calculation of Fair Value less cost of disposal of Machinery A 

 Rs 

Fair Value  7,00,000  

Less: Dismantling cost  (1,50,000)  

Packaging cost  (25,000)  

Legal Fees  (75,000)  

Fair value less cost of disposal  4,50,000  

(iv) Calculation of Impairment loss on Machinery A 

Rs 

Carrying Value  

Less: Recoverable Value ie higher of Value-in-use 

and Fair value less cost of disposal  

Impairment Loss  

5,25,000  

 

4,89,650 

35,350  

 

(v) Calculation of Impairment loss of CGU  

1. First goodwill will be impaired fully and then the remaining impairment loss of Rs75,000 will 

be allocated to Machinery A and B.  

2. If we allocate remaining impairment loss to Machinery A and B on pro-rata basis, it would 

come to Rs45,000 on Machinery A. However, the impairment loss of Machinery A cannot 

exceed Rs35,350. Hence, impairment to CGU will be as follows: 

 Carrying value before 

impairment lossRs 

Impairment 

loss Rs 

Carrying value after 

impairment loss Rs 

Machinery A  

Machinery B  

Inventory  

Goodwill  

Total  

5,25,000 

3,50,000 

2,00,000 

1,50,000 

12,25,000 

35,350 

39,650* 

- 

1,50,000 

2,25,000 

4,89,650 

3,10,350 

2,00,000 

- 

10,00,000 

 

*Balancing figure. 

(c) Carrying value after adjustment of depreciation 

 

Machinery A[4,89,650–{(4,89,650-50,000)/5}]  

Machinery B [3,10,350 – (3,10,350/7)]  

Rs 

4,01,720 

2,66,014 
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Inventory  

Goodwill  

Total  

2,00,000 

- 

8,67,734 

 

(d) Calculation of carrying value of CGU as on 31st March, 2019 

The revised value of CGU is Rs 11 Lakh. However, impaired goodwill cannot be reversed. Further, the 

individual assets cannot be increased by lower of recoverable value or Carrying Value as if the assets 

were never impaired. 

Accordingly, the carrying value as on 31st March, 2019 assuming that the impairment loss had never 

incurred, will be: 

 Carrying 

Value 

Recoverable Value Final CV as at 

31st Mar 2019 

Machinery A  

Machinery B  

Inventory  

Goodwill  

 

Total  

4,30,000 

3,00,000 

2,00,000 

- 

 

9,30,000 

4,50,000 

(7,60,000 – 4,50,000) 3,10,000 

2,00,000 

- 

 

9,60,000 

4,30,000 

3,00,000 

2,00,000 

- 

 

9,30,000 

Hence the impairment loss to be reversed will be limited to Rs62,266 only (Rs 9,30,000 – Rs 8,67,734).  

 

Q 43 - (RTP Nov19) 

East Ltd. (East) owns a machine used in the manufacture of steering wheels, which are sold directly to major 

car manufacturers.  

The machine was purchased on 1st April, 20X1 at a cost of 500 000 through a vendor financing arrangement 

on which interest is being charged at the rate of 10 per cent per annum.  

During the year ended 31st March, 20X3, East sold 10 000 steering wheels at a selling price of 190 per 

wheel.  

 

The most recent financial budget approved by East’s management, covering the period 1st April, 20X3 – 

31st March, 20X8, including that the company expects to sell each steering wheel for 200 during 20X3-X4, 

the price rising in later years in line with a forecast inflation of 3 per cent per annum.  

 

During the year ended 31st March, 20X4, East expects to sell 10 000 steering wheels. The number is forecast 

to increase by 5 per cent each year until 31st March, 20X8.  
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East estimates that each steering wheel costs 160 to manufacture, which includes ` 110 variable costs, ` 30 

share of fixed overheads and 20 transport costs.  

Costs are expected to rise by 1 per cent during 20X4-X5, and then by 2 per cent per annum until 31st March, 

20X8.  

During 20X5-X6, the machine will be subject to regular maintenance costing 50,000.  

In 20X3-X4, East expects to invest in new technology costing 100 000. This technology will reduce the 

variable costs of manufacturing each steering wheel from 110 to 100 and the share of fixed overheads from 

30 to 15 (subject to the availability of technology, which is still under development).  

East is depreciating the machine using the straight line method over the machine’s 10 year estimated useful 

life. The current estimate (based on similar assets that have reached the end of their useful lives) of the 

disposal proceeds from selling the machine is ` 80 000 net of disposal costs. East expects to dispose of the 

machine at the end of March, 20X8.  

East has determined a pre-tax discount rate of 8 per cent, which reflects the market’s assessment of the time 

value of money and the risks associated with this asset.  

Assume a tax rate of 30%. What is the value in use of the machine in accordance with Ind AS 36? 

 

Solution 

Calculation of the value in use of the machine owned by East Ltd. (East) includes the projected cash inflow 

(i.e. sales income) from the continued use of the machine and projected cash outflows that are necessarily 

incurred to generate those cash inflows (i.e cost of goods sold). Additionally, projected cash inflows include 

` 80,000 from the disposal of the asset in March, 20X8. Cash outflows include routing capital expenditures 

of ` 50,000 in 20X5-X6 

As per Ind AS 36, estimates of future cash flows shall not include:  

• Cash inflows from receivables  

• Cash outflows from payables  

• Cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring to which an entity is not yet committed  

• Cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from improving or enhancing the asset’s performance  

• Cash inflows or outflows from financing activities  

• Income tax receipts or payments.  

Hence in this case, cash flows do not include financing interest (i.e. 10%), tax (i.e. 30%) and capital 

expenditures to which East has not yet committed (i.e. ` 100 000). They also do not include any savings in 

cash outflows from these capital expenditure, as required by Ind AS 36.  

The cash flows (inflows and outflows) are presented below in nominal terms. They include an increase of 3% 

per annum to the forecast price per unit (B), in line with forecast inflation. The cash flows are discounted by 

applying a discount rate (8%) that is also adjusted for inflation. 
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Note: Figures are calculated on full scale and then rounded off to the nearest absolute value. 

 

Year End 20X3-X4 20X4-X5 20X5-X6 20X6-X7 20X7-X8 Value in Use 

Quantity 10000 10500 11025 11576 12155  

Price per Unit 200 206 212 219 225  

Estimated cash 

inflow 

2000000 2163000 2337300 2535144 2734875  

Misc. Cash 

inflow disposal 

proceeds 

    80000  

Total 

Estimated cash 

inflow 

2000000 2163000 2337300 2535144 2814875  

Cost per unit 160 162 165 168 171  

Estimated 

Cash outflow 

-1600000 -1701000 -1819125 -1944768 -2078505  

Misc. Cash 

outflow 

(Maint. Cost) 

  -50000    

Total Est. 

Cash Outflow 

-1600000 -1701000 -1869125 -1944768 -2078505  

Net Cash 

Flows 

400000 462000 468175 590376 736370  

Disc. Factor 

8% 

0.9259 0.8573 0.7938 0.7350 0.6806  

Discounted 

Future Cash 

Flows 

370360 396073 371637 433926 501173 2073169 
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Q 44 (EXAM NOV 18) 

Sun Limited has entered into a binding agreement with Moon Limited to buy a custom-made machine for 

Rs 4,00,000. At the end of 2017-18, before delivery of the machine, Sun Limited had to change its method 

of production. The new method will not require the machine ordered which is to be scrapped after delivery. 

The expected scrap value is nil. Given that the asset is yet to be delivered, should any liability be recognized 

for the potential loss? If so, give reasons for the same, the amount of liability as well as the accounting entry.  

 

SOLUTION 

As per Ind AS 37, Executory contracts are contracts under which  

 neither party has performed any of its obligations; or  

 both parties have partially performed their obligations to an equal extent.  

The contract entered by Sun Ltd. is an executory contract, since the delivery has not yet taken place.  

Ind AS 37 is applied to executory contracts only if they are onerous.  

Ind AS 37 defines an onerous contract as a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations 

under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.  

As per the facts given in the question, Sun Ltd. will not require the machine ordered. However, since it is a 

binding agreement, the entity cannot exit / cancel the agreement. Further, Sun Ltd. has to scrap the machine 

after delivery at nil scrap value.  

These circumstances do indicate that the agreement/contract is an onerous contract. Therefore, a provision 

should be made for the onerous element of Rs 4,00,000 ie the full cost of the machine. 

   Rs Rs 

Onerous Contract Provision Expense A/c  

To Provision for Onerous Contract Liability A/c  

(Being asset to be received due to binding 

agreement recognized)  

Profit and Loss Account (Loss due to onerous 

contract)  

Dr.  

 

 

 

Dr. 

4,00,000 

 

 

 

4,00,000 

 

4,00,000 

 

 

 

4,00,000 

TOPIC 16.   
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PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & ASSETS 
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To Onerous Contract Provision Expense A/c 

(Being loss due to onerous contract recognized and 

asset derecognsied) 

 

Q 45 

In 2017, an entity involved in nuclear activities recognises a provision for decommissioning costs of Rs 300 

million. The provision is estimated using the assumption that decommissioning will take place in 60–70 

years’ time. However, there is a possibility that it will not take place until 100–110 years’ time, in which case 

the present value of the costs will be significantly reduced. Draft the note.  

Answer: 

A provision of Rs 300 million has been recognised for decommissioning costs. These costs are expected to 

be incurred between 2077 and 2087; however, there is a possibility that decommissioning will not take place 

until 2117–2127. If the costs were measured based upon the expectation that they would not be incurred 

until 2117–2127 the provision would be reduced to Rs 136 million. The provision has been estimated using 

existing technology, at current prices, and discounted using a real discount rate of 2%.  

 

Q 46 

An entity is involved in a dispute with a competitor, who is alleging that the entity has infringed patents 

and is seeking damages of ` 100 million. The entity recognises a provision for its best estimate of the 

obligation, but discloses none of the information required by the standard. Draft the note. 

Answer 

Litigation is in process against the company relating to a dispute with a competitor who alleges that the 

company has infringed patents and is seeking damages of Rs 100 million. The information usually required 

by Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, is not disclosed on the grounds that 

it can be expected to prejudice seriously the outcome of the litigation. The directors are of the opinion that 

the claim can be successfully resisted by the company. 

 

Q 47 

X Ltd. is operating in the telecom industry. During the Financial Year 20X1-20X2, the Income Tax 

authorities sent a scrutiny assessment notice under Section 143(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, in respect 

to return filed under Section 139 of this Act for Previous Year 20X0- 20X1 (Assessment Year 20X1-20X2) 

and initiated assessment proceedings on account of a deduction claimed by the company which in the view 

of the authorities was inadmissible. During the financial year 20X1-20X2 itself, the assessment proceedings 

were completed and the assessing officer did not allow the deduction and raised a demand of Rs 1,00,00,000 

against the company. The company contested such levy and filed an appeal with the Appellate authority. At 

the end of the financial year 20X1-20X2, the appeal had not been heard. The company is not confident 
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whether that the company would win the appeal. However, the company was advised by its legal counsel 

that on a similar matter, two appellate authorities of different jurisdictions had given conflicting judgements, 

one in favour of the assessee and one against the assessee. The legal counsel further stated it had more than 

50% chance of winning the appeal. Please advise how the company should account for these transactions in 

the financial year 20X1-20X2.  

Solution: 

Ind AS 37 provides that in rare cases it not clear whether there is a present obligation, for example, in a 

lawsuit, it may be disputed either whether certain events have occurred or whether those events result in a 

present obligation. In such a case, an entity should determine whether a present obligation exits at the end 

of the reporting period by taking account of all available evidence, for example, the opinion of experts.  

In the present case, the company is not confident that whether it would win the appeal. By taking into 

account the opinion of the legal counsel, it is not sure that whether the company would win the appeal. On 

the basis of such evidence, it is more likely than not that a present obligation exists at the end of the reporting 

period. Therefore, the entity should recognise a provision. The company should provide for a liability of Rs 

1,00,00,000. 

 

Q 48 

Entity A is a dealer in washing machines. Entity A offers to its customers a scheme whereby it states that 

after a period of 3 years, the entity offers to buy back the washing machine at a fixed price which is expected 

to be less than the fair value of the machine at the end of three years. The credit emanating therefrom will 

be required to be used by the customer for buying a new washing machine, i.e., new washing machine will 

be sold at a discounted price. 

Past experience indicates that customers generally opt for this scheme. At the time of sale of the first washing 

machine should entity A recognise any provision in this regard?  

Solution 

Paragraph 14 of Ind AS 37 states “A provision shall be recognised when:  

(a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;  

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation; and  

(b)  a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no 

provision shall be recognised.”  

In the instant case, assuming that the entity recognises the entire revenue on the sale of first washing 

machine, a provision for expected cost of meeting the obligation of selling the second machine at discounted 

price should be recognised because sale of first washing machine is the past event.  

Moreover, past experience indicates that customers generally opt for this scheme, therefore, probability of 

outflow of resources is more likely than not. Since it is a normal practice which the entity follows, reliable 

estimate of the amount of meeting the obligation can also be made. 
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Q 49 - (RTP NOV 18) 

In the year to March, 2018, ABC Ltd. spent considerable amount on designing a new product. ABC Ltd. 

spent the six months from April, 2017 to September, 2017 researching into the feasibility of the product. 

Mr. X charged these research costs to profit or loss. From October, 2017, A Ltd. was confident that the 

product would be commercially successful and A Ltd. is fully committed to finance its future development. 

A Ltd. spent remaining part of the year in developing the product, which is expected to start from selling 

in the next few months. These development costs have been recognised as intangible assets in the Balance 

Sheet. State whether the treatment done by Mr. X is correct when all these research and development 

costs are design costs. Justify your answer with reference to relevant IndAS. 

Provide answers to the query raised by the managing director Mr. Y as per Ind AS. 

Solution: 

As per Ind AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, the treatment of expenditure on intangible items depends on how it 

arose. Internal expenditure on intangible items incurred during research phase cannot be recognised as an 

asset. Once it can be demonstrated that a development project is likely to be technically feasible, 

commercially viable, overall profitable and can be adequately resourced, then future expenditure on the 

project can be recognised as an intangible asset. The difference in the treatment of expenditure upto 30th 

September, 2017 and expenditure after that date is due to the recognition phase ie. research or development 

phase.  

 

Q 50 - (RPT NOV. 18) 

A Ltd. intends to open a new retail store in a new location in the next few weeks. It has spent a substantial 

sum on a series of television advertisements to promote this new store. It has paid for advertisements 

costing Rs 8,00,000 before 31
st 

March, 2018. Rs7,00,000 of this sum relates to advertisements shown before 

31
st

March, 2018 and Rs1,00,000 to advertisements shown in April, 2018. Since 31
st

March, 2018, A Ltd. 

has paid for further advertisements costing Rs 4,00,000. The accountant charged all these costs as expenses 

in the year to 31 March 2018. However, CFO of A Ltd. does not want to charge Rs 12,00,000 against 2017-

2018 profits. He believes that these costs can be carried forward as intangible assets because the company’s 

market research indicates that this new store is likely to be highly successful. 

Examine and justify the treatment of these costs of Rs12,00,000 in the financial statements for the year 

TOPIC 17.   
 

 
INDAS-38 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
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ended 31
st 

March, 2018 as per Ind AS. 

Solution: 

Ind AS 38 specifically prohibits recognising advertising expenditure as an intangible asset. Irrespective of 

success probability in future, such expenses have to be recognized in profit or loss. Therefore, the treatment 

given by the accountant is correct since such costs should be recognised as expenses.  

However, the costs should be recognised on an accruals basis.  

Therefore, of the advertisements paid for before 31st March, 2018, Rs7,00,000 would be recognised as an 

expense and Rs1,00,000 as a pre-payment in the year ended 31st March 2018. Rs4,00,000 cost of 

advertisements paid for since 31st March, 2018 would be charged as expenses in the year ended 31st March, 

2019.  

 

Q 51 - (EXAM MAY19) 

CARP Ltd is engaged in developing computer software. The expenditures incurred by CARP Ltd in 

pursuance of its development of software are given below:  

i. Paid Rs 1,50,000 towards salaries of the program designers.  

ii. Incurred Rs 3,00,000 towards other cost of completion of program design.  

iii. Incurred Rs 80,000 towards cost of coding and establishing technical feasibility.  

iv. Paid Rs 3,00,000 for other direct cost after establishment of technical feasibility. 

v. Incurred Rs 90,000 towards other testing costs. 

vi. A focus group of other software developers was invited to a conference for the introduction of this 

new software. Cost of the conference aggregated to Rs 60,000.  

vii. On March 15, 2018, the development phase was completed and a cash flow budget was prepared.  

viii. Net profit for the year 2017-18 was estimated to be equal Rs 30,00,000.  

How CARP Ltd. should account for the above mentioned cost as per relevant Ind AS?  

 

Solution:  

Suggested Answer of ICAI not yet issued till the date of finalization of this book. 
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Q 52 

As at 31st March, 20X1, a plantation consists of 100 Pinus Radiata trees that were planted 10 years earlier. 

The tree takes 30 years to mature, and will ultimately be processed into building material for houses or 

furniture. The enterprise’s weighted average cost of capital is 6% p.a.  

Only mature trees have established fair values by reference to a quoted price in an active market. The fair 

value (inclusive of current transport costs to get 100 logs to market) for a mature tree of the same grade as 

in the plantation is:  

As at 31st March, 20X1: 171  

As at 31st March, 20X2: 165  

 

Assume that there would be immaterial cash flow between now and point of harvest.  

The present value factor of Rs 1 @ 6% for  

19th year = 0.331  

20th year = 0.312  

State the value of such plantation as on 31st March, 20X1 and 20X2 and the gain or loss to be recognised 

as per Ind AS.  

Solution: 

As at 31st March, 20X1, the mature plantation would have been valued at 17,100 (171 x 100). As at 31st 

March, 20X2, the mature plantation would have been valued at 16,500 (165 x 100). Assuming immaterial 

cash flow between now and the point of harvest, the fair value (and therefore the amount reported as an asset 

on the statement of financial position) of the plantation is estimated as follows:  

As at 31st March, 20X1: 17,100 x 0.312 = 5,335.20.  

As at 31st March, 20X2: 16,500 x 0.331 = 5,461.50.  

 

Gain or loss  

The difference in fair value of the plantation between the two year end dates is 126.30 (5,461.50 – 5,335.20), 

which will be reported as a gain in the statement or profit or loss (regardless of the fact that it has not yet 

been realised) 

 

 

TOPIC 18.   
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Q 53 

ABC Limited issued 20,000 Share Appreciation Rights (SARs) that vest immediately to its employees on 1st 

April 2015. The SARs will be settled in cash. At that date it is estimated using an option pricing model, that 

the fair value of a SAR is Rs 95. SAR can be exercised any time up to 31st March 2018. At the end of 31st 

March 2016 it is expected that 95% of total employees will exercise the option, 92% of total employees will 

exercise the option at the end of next year and finally 89% will be vested only at the end of the 3rd year. Fair 

values at the end of each period have been given below: 

Fair value of SAR  Rs 

31st March, 2016  110 

31st March, 2017  107 

31st March, 2018  112 

Discuss the applicability of Cash Settled Share based payments under the relevant Ind AS and pass the 

journal entries.                (10 Marks)  

Solution 

(a) Applicability of cash settled share-based payment transactions  

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the entity shall measure the goods or services 

acquired and the liability incurred at the fair value of the liability.  

1. When vesting conditions are attached to the share based payment plans  

The recognition of such share based payment plans should be done by recognizing fair value of the 

liability at the time of goods/ services received and not at the date of grant.  

2. When no vesting period / condition is attached or to be fulfilled  

Cash settled share based payment can be recognized in full at initial recognition itself.  

Until the liability is settled, the entity shall remeasure the fair value of the liability at the end of each 

reporting period date and difference in fair value will be charged to profit or loss for the period as 

employee benefit expenses.  

At the date of settlement, the liability is paid in cash based on the fair value on the date of settlement.  

Calculation of expenses recognized during the year on account of change in the fair value of 

SARs 

TOPIC 19.   
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SHARE BASED PAYMENT 
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Period Fair 

value 

To be 

vested 

Cumulative 

expenses 

Expense / (benefit) for the 

current year 

 a b c = a x b x 

20,000 

d = c-of current period – c 

of previous period 

1st April, 2015  95 100% 19,00,000 19,00,000 

31st March, 2016  110 95% 20,90,000 1,90,000 

31st March, 2017  107 92% 19,68,800 (1,21,200) 

31st March, 2018  112 89% 19,93,600 24,800 

19,93,600  

Journal Entries 

Date    

1st April, 2015  Employee benefits expenses            Dr.  19,00,000  

To Share based payment liability   19,00,000 

(Fair value of the SAR recognized initially)    

31st March, 2016  Employee benefits expenses            Dr.  1,90,000  

To Share based payment liability   1,90,000 

(Fair value of the SAR re-measured)    

31st March, 2017  Share based payment liability         Dr.  1,21,200  

To Employee benefits expenses   1,21,200 

(Fair value of the SAR re-measured & reversed)    

31st March, 2018  Employee benefits expenses Dr.  24,800  

To Share based payment liability   24,800 

(Fair value of the SAR remeasured & recognized)    

Share based payment liability                                       Dr.  19,93,600  

To Cash (Settlement of SARs in cash)  19,93,600 

 
 

Q 54 - (Nov. 18 – 8 Marks) 

Golden Era Limited grants 200 shares to each of its 400 employees on 1st January, 2016. The employee 

should remain in service during the vesting period so as to be eligible. The shares will vest at the end of the  

1st year - If the company's earnings increase by 12%.  

2nd year - If the company's earnings increase by more than 20% over the two year period.  

3rd year - If the company's earnings increase by more than 20% over the three year period.  

 

The fair value per share (non-market related) at the grant date is Rs 61. In 2016, earnings increased by 10% 

and 22 employees left the company. The company expects that earnings will continue at a similar rate in 
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2017 and expect that the shares will vest at the end of the year 2017. The company also expects that 

additional 18 employees will leave the organization in the year 2017 and that 360 employees will receive 

their shares at the end of the year 2017. At the end of 2017 company's earnings increased by 18% (over the 

2 years period). Therefore, the shares did not vest. Only 16 employees left the organization during 2017.  

 

The company believes that additional 14 employees will leave in 2020 and earnings will further increase so 

that the performance target will be achieved in 2018. At the end of the year 2018, only 9 employees have left 

the organization. Assume that the company's earnings increased to desired level and the performance target 

has been met.  

You are required to determine the expense as per Ind AS for each year (assumed as financial year) and pass 

appropriate journal entries.                         

Solution 

(a) Since the earnings of the entity is non-market related, hence it will not be considered in fair value 

calculation of the shares given. However, the same will be considered while calculating number of shares 

to be vested. 

Calculation of yearly expenses to be charged: 

  2016  2017  2018  

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

 

 

(g) 

(h) 

Total employees 

Employees left (Actual) 

Employees expected to leave in the next year 

Year end – No of employees (a-b-c) 

Shares per employee 

Fair value of a share at the grant date 

Conditional increase in earnings 

Actual increase in earnings 

Vesting period 

Expenses (Refer Working Notes) 

400 

(22) 

(18) 

360 

200 

61 

12% 

10% 

1/2 

21,96,0

00 

400 

(38)* 

(14) 

348 

200 

61 

20% 

18% 

2/3 

6,34,40

0 

400 

(47)** 

- 

353 

200 

61 

20% 

20% 

3/3 

14,76,2

00 

*22 + 16 = 38  

** 22 +16 + 9 = 47  

31.03.2016 

Employee Benefits Expenses A/c Dr. 

    To Share based payment reserve (equity) A/c 

 

549000 

 

 

549000 

Profit and Loss A/c 

     To Employee Benefits Exp a/c  

549000  

549000 

31.03.2017   
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Employee Benefits Expenses A/c Dr. 

    To Share based payment reserve (equity) A/c 

1805000  

1805000 

Profit and Loss A/c 

     To Employee Benefits Exp a/c  

1805000  

1805000 

31.03.2018 

Employee Benefits Expenses A/c Dr. 

    To Share based payment reserve (equity) A/c 

 

844850 

 

 

844500 

Profit and Loss A/c 

     To Employee Benefits Exp a/c  

844500  

844500 

31.03.2019 

Employee Benefits Expenses A/c Dr. 

    To Share based payment reserve (equity) A/c 

 

1107150 

 

 

1107150 

Profit and Loss A/c 

     To Employee Benefits Exp a/c  

1107150  

1107150 

Share Based Payment Reserve (Equity) A/c 

     To Share Capital A/c 

4306600  

4306600 

 

Working Notes:  

1. Expense for 2016 (Jan to Dec) = No. of employees x Shares per employee x Fair value of share x 

Proportionate vesting period  

        = 360 x 200 x 61 X 1/2  

        = 21,96,000  

Expense recognized in the financial year 2015-2016= 21,96,000 x 3/12 = 5,49,000  

2. Expense for 2017 (Jan to Dec) = No of employees x Shares per employee x Fair value of share x 

Proportionate vesting period) – Expense recognized in year 2016  

           = [(348 x 200 x 61) x 2/3] – 21,96,000  

           = 6,34,400 

Expense recognized in the financial year 2016-2017= (21,96,000 x 9/12) + (6,34,400 x 3/12) = 16,47,000 

+ 1,58,600 = 18,05,600  

3. Expense for 2018 (Jan to Dec) = (No of employees x Shares per employee x Fair value of share x 

Proportionate vesting period) – Expense recognized in year 2016 and 2017  

            = [(353 x 200 x 61) x 3/3] – (21,96,000 + 6,34,400)  

            = 14,76,200  

Expense recognized in the financial year 2017-2018= (6,34,400 x 9/12) + (14,76,200 x 3/12) = 4,75,800 

+ 3,69,050 = 8,44,850  

4. Expense recognized in the financial year 2018-2019=(14,76,200x9/12)= 11,07,150  



 

91 
 

Q 55 - (MAY19 – 8 MARKS) 

Beetel Holding Inc. grams 100 shares to each of its 300 employees on 1st January, 2015. The employees 

should remain ‘in service during the vesting period. The shares will vest at the end of the  

First year   if the company’s earnings increase by 3%  

Second year  if the company’s earnings increased by more than 21 % over the two-year period.  

Third year  if the entity’s earning increased by more than 23% over the three-year period. 

  

The fair value per share at the grant date is Rs 125.  

In 2015, earnings increased by 9% and 20 employees left the organization. The company expects that 

earnings will continue at a similar rate in 2016 and expects that the shares will vest at the end of the year 

2016. The company also expects that additional 30 employees will leave the organization in the year 2016 

and that 250 employees will receive their shares at the end of the year 2016.  

At the end of 2016, company’s earnings increased by 19%. Therefore, the shares did not vest. Only 20 

employees left the organization during 2016. Company believes that additional 25 employees will leave in 

2017 and earnings will further increase so that the performance target will be achieved in 2017.  

At the end of the year 2017, only 22 employees have left the organization. Assume that the company’s 

earnings increased to desired level the performance target has been met. 

Determine the expense for each year and pass appropriate journal entries. 

 

Q 56 - (RTP NOV18) 

P Ltd. granted 400 stock appreciation rights (SAR) each to 75 employees on 1st April 2017 with a fair value 

Rs200. The terms of the award require the employee to provide service for four years in order to earn the 

award. The fair value of each SAR at each reporting date is as follows:  

31st March 2018   Rs210  

31st March 2019   Rs220  

31st March 2020   Rs215  

31st March 2021   Rs218  

What would be the difference if at the end of the second year of service (i.e. at 31st March 2019), P Ltd. 

modifies the terms of the award to require only three years of service. Answer on the basis of relevant Ind 

AS. 
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Solution: 

1. Journal entries in the books of P Ltd (without modification of service period of stock appreciation 

rights)        (Rsin lakhs) 

 

Date Particulars Debit Credit 

31.03.2018  Profit and Loss account Dr.  15.75  

15.75 To Liability against 

SARs 

 

(Being expenses liability for stock  

appreciation rights recognised) 

31.03.2019  Profit and Loss account Dr.  17.25  

17.25 To Liability for 

SARs 

 

(Being expenses liability for stock  

appreciation rights recognised) 

31.03.2020  Profit and Loss account Dr.  15.38  

15.38 To Liability for 

SARs 

 

(Being expenses liability for stock  

appreciation rights recognised) 

31.03.2021  Profit and Loss account Dr. 

To liability for SARs  

(Being expenses liability for stock 

appreciation rights recognized) 

 17.02  

17.02 

Journal entries in the books of P Ltd (with modification of service period of stock appreciation 

rights)          (Rsin lakhs) 

Date Particulars Debit Credit 

31.03.2018  Profit and Loss account Dr.  

To Liability for SARs  

(Being expenses liability for stock appreciation 

rights recognised)  

15.75 15.75 

31.03.2019  Profit and Loss account Dr.  

To Liability for SARs  

(Being expenses liability for stock appreciation 

rights recognised) 

28.25 28.25 
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31.03.2020  Profit and Loss account Dr.  

To Liability for SARs  

(Being expenses liability for stock appreciation 

rights recognised)  

20.50 20.50 

 

Working Notes:  

Calculation of expenses for issue of stock appreciation rights without modification of service period  

For the year ended 31st March 2018  

= Rs210 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 1 year /4 years of service  

= Rs 15,75,000 

For the year ended 31st March 2019  

= Rs220 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 2 years /4 years of service - Rs15,75,000 previous recognised  

= Rs33,00,000 - Rs15,75,000 = Rs17,25,000  

For the year ended 31st March 2019  

= Rs215 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 3 years/4 years of service - Rs33,00,000 previously 

recognised  

= Rs48,37,500 - Rs33,00,000 = Rs15,37,500  

For the year ended 31st March, 2021  

= Rs218 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 4 years / 4 years of service – Rs48,37,500 previously 

recognised  

= Rs65,40,000 – Rs48,37,500 = Rs17,02,500  

Calculation of expenses for issue of stock appreciation rights with modification of service period  

For the year ended 31st March 2018  

= Rs210 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 1 year / 4 years of service = Rs15,75,000  

For the year ended 31st March 2019  

= Rs220 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 2 years / 3 years of service - Rs15,75,000 previous recognized 

= Rs44,00,000 - Rs15,75,000 = Rs28,25,000  

For the year ended 31st March 2020  

= Rs215 x 400 awards x 75 employees x 3 years/ 3 years of service - Rs44,00,000 previous recognised  

= Rs64,50,000 - RS44,00,000 = Rs20,50,000.  
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Q 57 - (MTP – AUG18) 

At 1 January 2017, Ambani Limited grants its CEO an option to take either cash amount equivalent to 990 

shares or 800 shares. The minimum service requirement is 2 years. There is a condition to keep the shares 

for 3 years if shares are opted. 

Fair values of the shares  INR 

Share alternative fair value (with restrictions)  212 

Grant date fair value on 1st January, 2016  213 

Fair value on 31st December, 2016  220 

Fair value on 31st December, 2017  232 

The key management exercises his cash option at the end of 2018. Pass journal entries.  

                 (10 Marks) 

Solution 

(a) 

 1st Jan., 

2017 

31st Dec., 

2017 

31st Dec., 

2018 

Cash alternative (990 x 212)  2,09,880   

Equity alternative (800 x 213)  1,70,400   

Equity option (2,09,880 – 1,70,400)  39,480   

Cash Option (cumulative) (using period end fair value)  88,000 1,85,600 

Equity Option (cumulative)  19,740 39,480 

Expense for the period    

Equity option  19,740 19,740 

Cash Option  88,000 97,600 

Total  1,07,740 1,17,340 

31st Dec., 2016 INR    

Employee benefits expenses                            Dr.  1,07,740  

To Share based payment reserve (equity)   19,740 

To Share based payment liability   88,000 

(Recognition of Equity option and cash settlement option)    

31st Dec., 2017    

Employee benefits expenses                            Dr.  1,17,340  

To Share based payment reserve (equity)   19,740 

To Share based payment liability   97,600 

(Recognition of Equity option and cash settlement 

option)  

  

Share based payment liability                         Dr.  1,85,600  
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To Bank/ Cash (Settlement in cash)  1,85,600 

 

Q 58 - (ICAI Module) 

At 1 January 20X1, Ambani Limited grants its CEO an option to take either cash amount equivalent to 990 

shares or 800 shares. The minimum service requirement is 2 years. There is a condition to keep the shares 

for 3 years if shares are opted. 

Fair values of the shares INR 

Share alternative fair value (with restrictions) 212 

Grant date fair value on 1 January, 20X0 213 

Fair value on 31 December, 20X0 220 

Fair value on 31 December, 20X1 232 

 

The key management exercises his cash option at the end of 20X2. Pass journal entries. 

 

Solution 

 1-Jan-20X1 31-Dec-20X1 31-Dec-20X2 

Equity alternative (990 x 212) 2,09,880   

Cash alternative (800 x 213) 1,70,400   

Equity option (2,09,880 – 1,70,400) 39,480   

Cash Option (cumulative) (using period end fair value) 88,000 1,85,600 

Equity Option (cumulative) 19,740 39,480 

Expense for the period   

Equity option 19,740 19,740 

Cash Option 88,000 97,600 

Total 1,07,740 1,17,340 

 

Journal Entries 

31-Dec-20X0 INR 

Employee benefits expenses Dr. 1,07,740  

To Share based payment reserve (equity)  19,740 

To Share based payment liability  88,000 

(Recognition of Equity option and cash settlement 

option) 

  

31-Dec 20X1 

Employee benefits expenses Dr. 1,17,340  

To Share based payment reserve (equity)  19,740 
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To Share based payment liability  97,600 

(Recognition of Equity option and cash settlement 

option) 

  

Share based payment liability Dr. 1,85,600  

To Bank/ Cash  1,85,600 

(Settlement in cash)   

 

Q 59 - (ICAI Module) 

MINDA issued 11,000 share appreciation rights (SARs) that vest immediately to its employees on 1 April 

20X0. The SARs will be settled in cash. Using an option pricing model, at that date it is estimated that the 

fair value of a SAR is INR 100. SAR can be exercised any time until 31 March 20X3. It is expected that out 

of the total employees, 94% at the end of period on 31 March 20X1, 91% at the end of next year will exercise 

the option. Finally when these were vested i.e. at the end of the 3rd year, only 85% of the total employees 

exercised the option. 

 

Fair value of SAR INR 

31-Mar-20X1 132 

31-Mar-20X2 139 

31-Mar-20X3 141 

Pass the Journal entries?  

 

Solution: 

Period Fair value To be vested To be vested Expense 

Start 100 100% 11,00,000 11,00,000 

Period 1 132 94% 13,64,880 2,64,880 

Period 1 139 91% 13,91,390 26,510 

Period 1 141 85% 13,18,350 (73,040) 

    13,18,350 

Journal Entries 

 

1-Apr-20X0 

Employee benefits expenses               Dr. 11,00,000  

To Share based payment liability  11,00,000 

(Fair value of the SAR recognised)   

31-Mar-20X1 

Employee benefits expenses               Dr. 2,64,880  
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To Share based payment liability  2,64,880 

(Fair value of the SAR re-measured)   

31-Mar-20X2 

Employee benefits expenses               Dr.  26,510  

To Share based payment liability  26,510 

(Fair value of the SAR re-measured)   

31-Mar-20X3 

Share based payment liability            Dr. 73,040  

To Employee benefits expenses  73,040 

(Fair value of the SAR reversed)   

Share based payment liability            Dr. 13,18,350  

To Cash  13,18,350 

(Settlement of SAR)   

 

Q 60 - (RTP – Nov. 19) 

QA Ltd. had on 1st April, 20X1 granted 1,000 share options each to 2,000 employees. The options are due 

to vest on 31st March, 20X4 provided the employee remains in employment till 31st March, 20X4.  

On 1st April, 20X1, the Directors of Company estimated that 1,800 employees would qualify for the option 

on 31st March, 20X4. This estimate was amended to 1,850 employees on 31st March, 20X2 and further 

amended to 1,840 employees on 31st March, 20X3.  

On 1st April, 20X1, the fair value of an option was 1.20. The fair value increased to 1.30 as on 31st March, 

20X2 but due to challenging business conditions, the fair value declined thereafter. In September, 20X2, 

when the fair value of an option was 0.90, the Directors repriced the option and this caused the fair value to 

increase to 1.05. Trading conditions improved in the second half of the year and by 31st March, 20X3 the 

fair value of an option was 1.25. QA Ltd. decided that additional cost incurred due to repricing of the options 

on 30th September, 20X2 should be spread over the remaining vesting period from 30th September, 20X2 

to 31st March, 20X4.  

The Company has requested you to suggest the suitable accounting treatment for these transactions as on 

31st March, 20X3. 

Solution 

Paragraph 27 of Ind AS 102 requires the entity to recognise the effects of repricing that increase the total 

fair value of the share-based payment arrangement or are otherwise beneficial to the employee.  

If the repricing increases the fair value of the equity instruments granted paragraph B43(a) of Appendix B 

requires the entity to include the incremental fair value granted (ie the difference between the fair value of 

the repriced equity instrument and that of the original equity instrument, both estimated as at the date of 
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the modification) in the measurement of the amount recognised for services received as consideration for the 

equity instruments granted. 

If the repricing occurs during the vesting period, the incremental fair value granted is included in the 

measurement of the amount recognised for services received over the period from the repricing date until 

the date when the repriced equity instruments vest, in addition to the amount based on the grant date fair 

value of the original equity instruments, which is recognised over the remainder of the original vesting 

period.  

Accordingly, the amounts recognised in years 1 and 2 are as follows: 

Year Calculation Compensation Exp. 

for Period 

Cumulative 

Compensation Exp. 

1 {1850 x 1000 x1.2} x 1/3 740000 740000 

2 (1840 x 1000 x [(1.2x2/3) +{(1.05-

0.90)x0.5/1.5}] – 740000 

824000 1564000 

 

Note: Year 3 calculations have not been provided as it was not required in the question 
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Q 61 - (May18 Exam – 10 Marks) 

Notorola Limited has two divisions A and B. Division A has been making constant profits while Division B 

has been invariably suffering losses.  

On 31st March 2018, the division-wise draft extract of the Balance Sheet was as follows:  

(Rs in crore) 

 A B Total 

Fixed Assets Cost  500 1000 1500 

Depreciation  (450) (800) (1250) 

Net Fixed Assets (A)  50 200 250 

Current Assets  400 1000 1400 

Less: Current Liabilities  (50) (800) (850) 

Net Current Assets (B)  350 200 550 

Total (A) + (B)  400 400 800 

Financed by :     

Loan Funds  - 600 600 

Capital : Equity Rs 10 each  50 - 50 

Surplus  350 (200) 150 

Total  400 400 800 

Division B along with its assets and liabilities was sold for Rs 50 crore to Senovo Limited a new company, 

who allotted 2 crore equity shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs 15 per share to the members of Notorola 

Limited in full settlement of the consideration, in proportion to their shareholding in the company. One of 

the members of the Notorola Limited was holding 52% shares of the company.  

Assuming that, there are no other transactions, you are required to:  

(ii) Pass journal entries in the books of Notorola Limited.  

(iii) Prepare the Balance Sheet of Notorola Limited after the entries in (i).  

(iv) Prepare the Balance Sheet of Senovo Limited.  

Balance Sheet prepared for (ii) and (iii) above should comply with the relevant Ind AS and Schedule III of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Provide Notes to Accounts, for 'Other Equity' in case of (ii) and 'Share Capital' in 

case of (iii), only. 

TOPIC 20.   
 

 
INDAS-103 

BUSINESS COMBINATION 
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Solution 

(i)    Journal of Notorola Ltd.  

                                                                                                               (Rs in crore) 

  Dr. Cr. 

Loan Funds  Dr.  600  

Current Liabilities  Dr.  800  

Provision for Depreciation  Dr.  800  

To Fixed Assets    1,000 

To Current Assets    1,000 

To Capital Reserve (Being division B along with its assets and 

liabilities sold to Senovo Ltd. for Rs 50 crore) 

  200 

In the given scenario, this demerger will meet the definition of common control transaction. Accordingly, 

the transfer of assets and liabilities will be derecognized and recognized as per book value and the resultant 

loss or gain will be recorded as capital reserve in the books of demerged entity (Notorola Ltd).  

Notes: Any other alternative set of entries, with the same net effect on various accounts, may also be given.  

 
(ii)    Notorola Ltd. Balance Sheet after demerger  

(Rs in crore) 

ASSETS  Note No. Amount 

Non-current assets    

Property, Plant and Equipment   50 

Current assets   400 

  450 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    

Equity share capital (of face value of Rs 10 each)  1 50 

Other equity  2 350 

Liabilities    

Current liabilities    

Current liabilities   50 

  450 
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Notes to Accounts 

 (Rs in crore) 

1.  Equity Share Capital   

5 crore equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each  

Consequent to transfer of Division B to newly incorporated company 

Senovo Ltd., the members of the company have been allotted 2 crore 

equity shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs 15 per share of Senovo 

Ltd., in full settlement of the consideration in proportion to their 

shareholding in the company 

50 

2.  Other Equity   

Surplus (350 - 200)  150 

Add: Capital Reserve on reconstruction  200 

 350 

   

(iii)   Balance Sheet of Senovo Ltd.  

(Rs in crore) 

 Note No. Amount 

ASSETS    

Non-current assets    

Property, Plant and Equipment   200 

Current assets   1,000 

1,200    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    

Equity share capital (of face value of INR 10 each)  1 20 

Other equity  2 (220) 

Liabilities    

Non-current liabilities    

Financial liabilities    

Borrowings   600 

Current liabilities    

Current liabilities   800 

  1,200 
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Notes to Accounts 

 (Rs in crore) 

1.  Share Capital   

Issued and Paid-up capital   

2 crore Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up (All the above shares 

have been allotted to the members of Notorola Ltd. on takeover of 

Division B from Notorola Ltd. as fully paid-up pursuant to contract 

without payment being received in cash) 

20 

2.  Other Equity   

Securities Premium  30 

Capital reserve [50 - (1,200 – 1,400)]  (250) 

 (220) 

 

 

Q 62 - (NOV. 18 EXAM – 4 MARKS) 

Moon Ltd. acquires 75% of Star Limited on 1st April, 2017 for consideration transferred Rs 60 lakh. Moon 

Limited intends to recognize the Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) at proportionate share of fair value of 

identifiable assets. With the assistance of a suitably qualified valuation professional, Moon Limited measures 

the identifiable net assets of Star Limited at Rs 90 lakh. Moon Limited performs a review and determines 

that the business combination did not include any transactions that should be accounted for separately from 

the business combination.  

State whether the procedures followed by Moon Limited and the resulting measurements are appropriate or 

not. Also calculate the bargain purchase gain in the process.  

 

Solution  

The amount of Star Ltd.’s identifiable net assets exceeds the fair value of the consideration transferred plus 

the fair value of the NCI in Star Ltd.’s, resulting in an initial indication of a gain on a bargain purchase. 

Accordingly, Moon Ltd. reviews the procedures it used to identify and measure the identifiable net assets 

acquired, to measure the fair value of both the NCI and the consideration transferred, and to identify 

transactions that were not part of the business combination.  

Following that review, Moon Ltd. can conclude that the procedures followed and the resulting 

measurements were appropriate. 

Identifiable net assets  

Less: Consideration transferred  

NCI (90,00,000 x 25%)  

Gain on bargain purchase  

90,00,000 

(60,00,000) 

(22,50,000) 

7,50,000 
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Q 63 RTP - (MAY19) 

How should contingent consideration payable in relation to a business combination be accounted for on 

initial recognition and at the subsequent measurement as per Ind AS in the following cases:  

(ii) On 1 April 2016, A Ltd. acquires 100% interest in B Ltd. As per the terms of agreement the 

purchase consideration is payable in the following 2 tranches:  

a. an immediate issuance of 10 lakhs shares of A Ltd. having face value of INR 10 per share;  

b. further issuance of 2 lakhs shares after one year if the profit before interest and tax of B Ltd. 

for the first year following acquisition exceeds INR 1 crore.  

i. The fair value of the shares of A Ltd. on the date of acquisition is INR 20 per share. 

Further, the management has estimated that on the date of acquisition, the fair value 

of contingent consideration is Rs25 lakhs.  

ii. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the profit before interest and tax of B Ltd. 

exceeded Rs1 crore. As on 31 March 2017, the fair value of shares of A Ltd. is Rs 25 

per share.  

(iii) Continuing with the fact pattern in (a) above except for:  

c. The number of shares to be issued after one year is not fixed.  

d. d. Rather, A Ltd. agreed to issue variable number of shares having a fair value equal to Rs40 

lakhs after one year, if the profit before interest and tax for the first year following acquisition 

exceeds Rs1 crore. A Ltd. issued shares with Rs40 lakhs after a year.  

 

Solution 

Paragraph 37 of Ind AS 103, inter alia, provides that the consideration transferred in a business combination 

should be measured at fair value, which should be calculated as the sum of (a) the acquisition-date fair values 

of the assets transferred by the acquirer, (b) the liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the 

acquiree and (c) the equity interests issued by the acquirer.  

Further, paragraph 39 of Ind AS 103 provides that the consideration the acquirer transfers in exchange for 

the acquiree includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. The 

acquirer shall recognize the acquisition-date fair value of contingent consideration as part of the 

consideration transferred in exchange for the acquiree.  

With respect to contingent consideration, obligations of an acquirer under contingent consideration 

arrangements are classified as equity or a liability in accordance with Ind AS 32 or other applicable Ind AS, 

i.e., for the rare case of non-financial contingent consideration. Paragraph 40 provides that the acquirer shall 

classify an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument as 

a financial liability or as equity on the basis of the definitions of an equity instrument and a financial liability 

in paragraph 11 of Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. The acquirer shall classify as an asset a 

right to the return of previously transferred consideration if specified conditions are met. Paragraph 58 of 

Ind AS 103 provides guidance on the subsequent accounting for contingent consideration.  
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(i) In the given case the amount of purchase consideration to be recognized on initial recognition 

shall be as follows: 

Fair value of shares issued (10,00,000 x Rs20)  

Fair value of contingent consideration  

Total purchase consideration  

Rs2,00,00,000 

Rs25,00,000 

Rs2,25,00,000 

 

Subsequent measurement of contingent consideration payable for business combination 

In general, an equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Ind AS 32 describes an equity instrument as one that meets 

both of the following conditions: 

(a) There is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another party, or to 

exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under potentially unfavorable 

conditions (for the issuer of the instrument). 

(b) If the instrument will or may be settled in the issuer's own equity instruments, then it is: 

(i) a non-derivative that comprises an obligation for the issuer to deliver a fixed number of its 

own equity instruments; or 

(ii) a derivative that will be settled only by the issuer exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other 

financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. 

In the given case, given that the acquirer has an obligation to issue fixed number of shares on fulfilment of 

the contingency, the contingent consideration will be classified as equity as per the requirements of Ind AS 

32. 

As per paragraph 58 of Ind AS 103, contingent consideration classified as equity should not be re-measured 

and its subsequent settlement should be accounted for within equity. 

Here, the obligation to pay contingent consideration amounting to `25,00,000 is recognized as a part of 

equity and therefore not re-measured subsequently or on issuance of shares. 

 

(ii) The amount of purchase consideration to be recognized on initial recognition is shall be as follows: 

Fair value shares issued (10,00,000 x Rs20)  

Fair value of contingent consideration  

Total purchase consideration  

Rs2,00,00,000  

Rs25,00,000  

Rs2,25,00,000  

Subsequent measurement of contingent consideration payable for business combination  

The contingent consideration will be classified as liability as per Ind AS 32. 

As per paragraph 58 of Ind AS 103, contingent consideration not classified as equity should be measured at 

fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair value should be recognized in profit or loss. 

As at 31 March 2017, (being the date of settlement of contingent consideration), the liability would be 

measured at its fair value and the resulting loss of Rs15,00,000(Rs40,00,000 - Rs25,00,000) should be 
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recognized in the profit or loss for the period. A Ltd. would recognize issuance of 160,000 (Rs40,00,000/25) 

shares at a premium of Rs 15 per share. 

 

Q 64 - (RTP - May 19) 

As part of its business expansion strategy, KK Ltd. is in process of setting up a pharma intermediates 

business which is at very initial stage. For this purpose, KK Ltd. has acquired on 1st April, 2018, 100% shares 

of ABR Ltd. that manufactures pharma intermediates. The purchase consideration for the same was by way 

of a share exchange valued at Rs 35 crores. The fair value of ABR Ltd.’s net assets was Rs 15 crores, but 

does not include: 

(i) A patent owned by ABR Ltd. for an established successful intermediate drug that has a remaining 

life of 8 years. A consultant has estimated the value of this patent to be Rs 10 crores. However, 

the outcome of clinical trials for the same are awaited. If the trials are successful, the value of the 

drug would fetch the estimated Rs 15 crores. 

(ii) ABR Ltd. has developed and patented a new drug which has been approved for clinical use. The 

cost of developing the drug was Rs 12 crores. Based on early assessment of its sales success, the 

valuer has estimated its market value at Rs 20 crores. 

(iii) ABR Ltd.'s manufacturing facilities have received a favourable inspection by a government 

department. As a result of this, the Company has been granted an exclusive five-year license to 

manufacture and distribute a new vaccine. Although the license has no direct cost to the 

Company, its directors believe that obtaining the license is a valuable asset which assures 

guaranteed sales and the value for the same is estimated at Rs 10 crores. 

KK Ltd. has requested you to suggest the accounting treatment of the above transaction under applicable 

Ind AS. 

 

Solution 

As per para 13 of Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’, the acquirer's application of the recognition 

principle and conditions may result in recognising some assets and liabilities that the acquiree had not 

previously recognised as assets and liabilities in its financial statements. This may be the case when the 

asset is developed by the entity internally and charged the related costs to expense. Based on the above, 

the company can recognise following Intangible assets while determining Goodwill / Bargain Purchase 

for the transaction: 

(ii) Patent owned by ABR Ltd.: The patent owned will be recognised at fair value by KK Ltd. even 

though it was not recognised by ABR Ltd. in its financial statements. The patent will be 

amortised over the remaining useful life of the asset i.e. 8 years. Since the company is awaiting 

the outcome of the trials, the value of the patent 
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cannot be estimated at Rs15 crore and the extra Rs5 crore should only be disclosed as a 

Contingent Asset and not recognised.  

(iii) Patent internally developed by ABR Ltd.: Further as per para 75 of lnd AS 38 ‘Intangible 

Assets’, after initial recognition, an intangible asset shall be carried at revalued amount, being its 

fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated amortisation and any 

subsequent accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of revaluations under this Standard, 

fair value shall be determined by reference to an active market.  

From the information given in the question, it appears that there is no active market for patents 

since the fair value is based on early assessment of its sale success. Hence it is suggested to use 

the cost model and recognise the patent at the actual development cost of Rs12 crore.  

(iv) Grant of Licence to ABR Ltd. by the Government: As regards to the five-year license, para 

44 of Ind AS 38 requires to recognize grant asset at fair value. KK Ltd. can recognize both the 

asset (license) and the grant at Rs10 crore to be amortised over 5 years.  

Hence the revised working would be as follows:. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q 65 - (MTP-April 19) 

A parent purchased an 80% interest in a subsidiary for Rs. 1,60,000 on 1 April 20X1 when the fair value of 

the subsidiary’s net assets was Rs. 1,75,000. Goodwill of Rs. 20,000 arose on consolidation under the partial 

goodwill method. An impairment of goodwill of Rs. 8,000 was charged in the consolidated financial 

statements to 31 March 20X3. No other impairment charges have been recorded. The parent sold its 

investment in the subsidiary on 31 March 20X4 for Rs. 2,00,000. The book value of the subsidiary’s net 

assets in the consolidated financial statements on the date of the sale was Rs. 2,25,000 (not including 

goodwill of Rs. 12,000). When the subsidiary met the criteria to be classified as held for sale under Ind AS 

105, no write down was required because the expected fair value less cost to sell (of 100% of the subsidiary) 

was greater than the carrying value. The parent carried the investment in the subsidiary at cost, as permitted 

by Ind AS 27. Calculate gain or loss on disposal of subsidiary in parent’s separate and consolidated 

financial statements as on 31st March 20X4. 

Fair value of net assets of ABR Ltd.  

Add: Patent (10 + 12)  

Add: License  

Less: Grant for License 

 

Purchase Consideration  

Bargain purchase  

Rs 15 crore 

Rs 22 crore 

Rs 10 crore 

(Rs. 10 crore)  

Rs 37 crores 

Rs35 crores 

Rs2 crore 
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Solution 

The parent’s separate statement of profit and loss for 20X3-20X4 would show a gain on the sale of 

investment of Rs. 40,000 calculated as follow:  

                                                                                Rs. ‘000  

Sale proceeds                                                                 200  

Less: Cost of investment in subsidiary                          (160)  

Gain on sale in parent’s account                                     40  

However, the group’s statement of profit & loss for 20X3-20X4 would show a gain on the sale of 

subsidiary of Rs. 8,000 calculated as follows:  

                                                                                                        Rs.’000  

Sale proceeds                                                                                        200  

Less: share of net assets at date of disposal (Rs. 2,25,000 X 80%)      (180)  

Goodwill on consolidation at date of sale (W.N 1)                 (12)     (192)  

Gain on sale in the group’s account                                                     8 

 

Working Note  

The goodwill on consolidation (assuming partial goodwill method) is calculated as follows:                                                                                             

Rs.’000  

Fair value of consideration at the date of acquisition                             160  

Non- controlling interest measured at proportionate  

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets (1,75,000 X 20%)    35  

Less: fair value of net assets of subsidiary at date of acquisition   (175)   (140)  

Goodwill arising on consolidation 20  

Impairment at 31 March 20X3  

Goodwill at 31 March 20X4  

 

 

Question 66 (MTP - 2018) 

Trust Ltd. has a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries including Trust Infocomm Ltd. at 31st March 2018.  

Trust Ltd. consolidated statement of financial position and the group carrying amount of Trust Infocomm 

Ltd. assets and liabilities (ie the amount included in that consolidated statement of financial position in 

respect of Trust Infocomm Ltd. assets and liabilities) at 31st March 2018 are as follows: 
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Particulars Consolidated 

(Rs. In ‘000) 

Carrying amount of Trust Infocomm 

Ltd. asset and liabilities Ltd. in the 

Group (Rs. In ‘000) 

Assets  

Non-current Assets  

Goodwill  

Buildings  

Current Assets  

Inventories  

Trade Receivables  

Cash  

Total Assets  

Equity & Liabilities  

Equity  

Share Capital  

Other Equity  

Retained Earnings  

Current liabilities  

Trade Payables  

Total Equity & Liabilities  

 

 

190 

1,620 

 

70 

850 

1,550 

4,280 

800 

 

 

2,130 

2,930 

 

1,350 

4,280 

 

 

90 

670 

 

20 

450 

500 

1,730 

 

 

 

 

 

450 

450 

Prepare Consolidated Balance Sheet after disposal as on 31st March, 2018 when Trust Ltd. group sold 

90% shares of Trust Infocomm Ltd. to independent party for Rs. 1000 (‘000).  

 

Solution  

 

(c) When 90% shares sold to independent party  

Consolidated Balance Sheet of Trust Ltd. and its remaining subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2018 

Particulars  Note No. (Rs. In ‘000) 

I. Assets  

(1) Non-current assets  

(i) Property Plant & Equipment  

(ii) Goodwill  

(iii) Financial Assets  

 

 

1 

2 

 

 

950 

100 

(a) Investments  

(2) Current Assets  

(i) Inventories  

3 

 

4 

128 

 

50 
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(ii) Financial Assets  

 (b) Trade Receivables  

(c) Cash & Cash equivalents  

Total Assets  

II. Equity and Liabilities  

(1) Equity  

(i) Equity Share Capital  

(ii) Other Equity  

(2) Current Liabilities  

(i) Financial Liabilities  

(a) Trade Payables  

Total Equity & Liabilities  

 

5 

6 

 

 

 

7 

8 

 

 

9 

 

400 

2,050 

 

 

 

3,678 

800 

 

1,978 

900 

3,678 

 

Notes to accounts: 

 

 (Rs. In ‘000) 

1.  

 

 

2.  

 

3.  

 

4.  

 

 

5.  

 

 

6.  

Property Plant & Equipment  

Land & Building  

Less: Trust Infocomm Ltd.  

Goodwill  

Less: Trust Infocomm Ltd.  

Investments  

Investment in Trust Infocomm Ltd. (WN 2)  

Inventories  

Group  

Less: Trust Infocomm Ltd.  

Trade Receivables  

Group  

Less: Trust Infocomm Ltd.  

Cash & Cash equivalents  

Group (WN 3)  

Trade Payables  

Group  

Less: Trust Infocomm Ltd.  

 

1620 

(670) 

190 

(90) 

 

128 

 

70 

(20) 

 

850 

(450) 

 

2,050 

 

1,350 

450 

 

 

950 

 

100 

 

128 

 

 

50 

 

 

400 

 

2,050 

 

 

900 

 

Statement of changes in Equity:  
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6. Equity share Capital 

Balance at the beginning 

of the reporting period  

Changes in Equity share 

capital during the year  

Balance at the end of the 

reporting period  

800 0 800 

7. Other Equity 

 Share 

applicatio

n money 

Equity 

compon

ent 

Reserves & Surplus Total 

   Capital 

reserve 

Retained 

Earnings 

Securities 

Premium 

 

Balance at the 

beginning  

   2,130  2,130 

Total 

comprehensive 

income for the 

year  

  0    

Dividends    0    

Total 

comprehensive 

income 

attributable to 

parent  

  0    

Loss on disposal 

of Trust 

Infocomm Ltd.  

   (152)  (152) 

Balance at the end 

of reporting 

period  

  0 1,978  1,978 

 

 

Working Notes:  

1. When 90% being sold, the carrying amount of all assets and liabilities attributable to Trust Infocomm 

Ltd. were eliminated from the consolidated statement of financial position and further financial asset is 

recognized for remaining 10%.  

2. Fair value of remaining investment (in ‘000):  



 

112 
 

Net Assets of Trust Ltd.  

Less: 90% disposal  

1,280  

(1152)  

Financial Asset  128  

3. Cash on hand (in ‘000):  

Cash before disposal of Trust Infocomm Ltd.  

Less: Trust Infocomm Ltd. Cash  

Add: Cash realized from disposal  

1,550  

(500)  

1,000  

Cash on Hand  2,050  

4. Gain/ Loss on disposal of entity (in ‘000):  

Proceeds from disposal  

Less: Proportionate (90%) Net assets of Trust Infocomm Ltd. (90% 

of 1,280)  

1,000  

(1,152)  

Loss on disposal  (152)  

5. Retained Earnings (in ‘000):  

Retained Earnings before disposal  

Less: Loss on disposal  

2,130  

(152)  

Retained earnings after disposal  1,978  

 

 

Q 67 - (MTP 2018) 

Preet Pvt. Ltd. has a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries including Stuti Pvt. Ltd. at 31st March, 2018. 

Preet Pvt. Ltd.’s consolidated balance sheet and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities of Stuti Pvt. 

Ltd., included in the respective amount of respective grouped assets and liabilities of the consolidated balance 

sheet as at 31st March, 2018 are as follows: 

Particulars Consolidated 

balance sheet 

(Rs. in million) 

Carrying amount of asset and 

liabilities of Stuti Pvt. Ltd. 

included in the CFS 

(Rs. in million) 

Assets  

Non-current Assets  

Goodwill  

Buildings  

Current Assets  

Inventories  

Trade Receivables  

Cash and cash equivalents  

 

 

380 

3,240 

 

140 

1,700 

3,100 

 

 

180 

1,340 

 

40 

900 

1000 
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Total Assets  

Equities & Liabilities  

Equity  

Share Capital  

Other Equity  

Retained Earnings  

Current liabilities  

Trade Payables  

Total Equity & Liabilities  

8,560 

 

1600 

 

 

4,260 

 

2,700 

8,560 

3,460 

 

 

 

 

 

 

900 

900 

 

Prepare Consolidated Balance Sheet after disposal as on 31st March, 2018 when Preet Pvt. Ltd. group sold 

100% shares of Stuti Pvt. Ltd. to independent party for Rs. 3,000 millions.  

 

Solution 

 

(a) When 100% shares sold to independent party Consolidated Balance Sheet of Preet Pvt. Ltd. 

and its remaining subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2018 

Particular  Note No.  (Rs. in million) 

I. Assets 

(1) Non-Current Assets 

(i) Property Plant & Equipment 

(ii) Goodwill 

(2) Current Assets 

(i) Inventories 

(ii) Financial Assets 

(a) Trade Receivable  

(b) Cash & Cash equivalents 

Total Asssets 

II. Equity and Liabilities 

(1) Equity  

(i) Equity Share Capital 

(ii) Other Equity  

(2) Current Liabilities 

(i) Financial Liabilities 

(ii) Trade payable  

  Total Equity & Liabilities 

 

 

1 

2 

 

3 

 

4 

5 

 

 

 

6 

7 

 

 

8 

 

 

1900 

200 

 

100 

 

800 

5100 

8100 

 

 

1600 

4700 

 

 

1800 

8100 
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Notes to Financial Statements: 

(Rs. in million)  

1. 

 

 

 

2. 

 

 

 

3. 

 

 

4. 

 

 

5. 

 

6. 

Property Plant & Equipment  

Land & Building  

Group  

Less: Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

Intangible Assets  

Goodwill  

Group  

Less: Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

Inventories  

Group  

Less: Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

Trade Receivables  

Group  

Less: Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

Cash & cash equivalents  

Group (WN 2)  

Trade Payables  

Group  

Less: Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

 

 

3,240 

(1,340) 

 

 

380 

(180) 

 

140 

(40) 

 

1,700 

(900) 

 

5,100 

 

2,700 

900 

 

 

 

1,900 

 

 

 

200 

 

 

100 

 

 

800 

 

5,100 

 

 

1,800 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity:  

 

6. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the beginning 

of the reporting period  

Changes in Equity share 

capital during the year  

Balance at the end of 

the reporting period  

1600 0 1600 

 

7. Other Equity 

 Share 

application 

money 

Equity 

compo

nent 

Reserves & Surplus Total 

Capital 

reserve 

Retained 

Earnings 

Securities 

Premium 

Balance at the 

beginning  

   4,260  4,260 
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Total comprehensive 

income for the year  

  0    

Dividend    0    

Total comprehensive 

income attributable 

to the parent  

  0    

Gain on disposal of 

Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

   440  440 

Balance at the end of 

the reporting period  

  0 4,700  4,700 

 

Working Notes:  

1. When sold, the carrying amount of all assets and liabilities attributable to Stuti Pvt. Ltd. were eliminated 

from the consolidated statement of financial position.  

2. Cash in hand  

Cash before disposal of Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

Less: Stuti Pvt. Ltd. Cash  

Add: Cash realized from disposal  

3,100 

(1,000) 

3,000 

Cash in hand  5,100 

 

3. Gain / Loss on disposal of entity (in million)  

Proceeds from disposal  

Less: Net assets of Stuti Pvt. Ltd.  

3,000 

(2,560) 

Gain on disposal  440 

 

4. Retained Earnings (in million)  

Retained earnings before disposal  

Add: Gain on disposal  

4,260 

440 

Retained earnings after disposal  4,700 

 

 

 

Q 68 - (MTP – April 19) 

The balance sheet of P Ltd. and D Ltd. as of 31st March, 20X2 is given below: 
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 Assets  P Ltd. D Ltd. 

Non-Current Assets:    

     Property, plant and equipment  

     Investment  

300 

400 

500 

100 

Current assets:    

     Inventories  250 150 

     Financial assets    

          Trade receivables  

          Cash and cash equivalents  

          Others  

                                             Total  

450 

200 

400 

2,000 

300 

100 

230 

1,380 

Equity and Liabilities  

Equity  

 

 

 

 

     Share capital- Equity shares of Rs. 100 each  

      Other Equity  

500 

810 

400 

225 

Non-Current liabilities:    

        Long term borrowings  

        Long term provisions  

        Deferred tax  

250 

50 

40 

200 

70 

35 

Current Liabilities:    

        Short term borrowings  

        Trade payables  

                                             Total  

100 

250 

2,000 

150 

300 

1,380 

 

Other information  

(a) P Ltd. acquired 70% shares of D Ltd. on 1st April, 20X2 by issuing its own shares in the ratio of 1 share 

of P Ltd. for every 2 shares of D Ltd. The fair value of the shares of P Ltd. was Rs. 40 per share.  

 

(b) The fair value exercise resulted in the following: (all nos in Lakh)  

a. Fair value of PPE on 1st April, 20X2 was Rs. 350 lakhs.  

 

b. P Ltd. also agreed to pay an additional payment as consideration that is higher of 35 lakh and 25% 

of any excess profits in the first year, after acquisition, over its profits in the preceding 12 months 

made by D Ltd. This additional amount will be due after 2 years. D Ltd. has earned Rs. 10 lakh 

profit in the preceding year and expects to earn another Rs. 20 Lakh.  

 



 

117 
 

 

c. In addition to above, P Ltd. also had agreed to pay one of the founder shareholder a payment of Rs. 

20 lakh provided he stays with the Company for two year after the acquisition.  

 

d. D Ltd. had certain equity settled share based payment award (original award) which got replaced 

by the new awards issued by P Ltd. As per the original term the vesting period was 4 years and as 

of the acquisition date the employees of D Ltd. have already served 2 years of service. As per the 

replaced awards the vesting period has been reduced to one year (one year from the acquisition date). 

The fair value of the award on the acquisition date was as follows: 

i. Original award- Rs. 5 lakh  

ii. Replacement award- Rs. 8 lakh.  

  

e. D Ltd had a lawsuit pending with a customer who had made a claim of Rs. 50 lakh. Management 

reliably estimated the fair value of the liability to be Rs. 5 lakh.  

 

f. The applicable tax rate for both entities is 30%.  

 

You are required to prepare opening consolidated balance sheet of P Ltd. as on 1st April, 20X2. Assume 

10% discount rate.        (20 Marks)  

 

Solution: 

Consolidated Balance Sheet of P Ltd as on 1st April, 20X2  (Rs. in Lakhs) 

  Amount  

Assets  

Non-Current Assets:  

      Property, plant and equipment  

      Investment  

Current assets:  

      Inventories  

      Financial assets:  

          Trade receivables  

          Cash and cash equivalents  

          Others  

                                                     Total  

Equity and Liabilities  

Equity  

 

 

650 

500 

 

400 

 

750 

300 

630 

3,230 
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       Share capital- Equity shares of Rs. 100 each  

       Other Equity  

       NCI  

Non-Current liabilities:  

        Long term borrowings  

        Long term provisions (50+70+28.93)  

        Deferred tax  

Current Liabilities:  

        Short term borrowings  

        Trade payables  

Provision for Law suit damages  

                                                     Total 

514 

1128.62 

154.95 

 

450 

148.93 

28.5 

 

250 

550 

5 

3230 

 

Notes:  

a. Fair value adjustment- As per Ind AS 103, the acquirer is required to record the assets and liabilities at 

their respective fair value. Accordingly, the PPE will be recorded at Rs. 350 lakhs.  

b. The value of replacement award is allocated between consideration transferred and post combination 

expense. The portion attributable to purchase consideration is determined based on the fair value of the 

replacement award for the service rendered till the date of the acquisition. Accordingly, 2.5 (5 x 2/4) is 

considered as a part of purchase consideration and is credited to P Ltd equity as this will be settled in 

its own equity. The balance of 2.5 will be recorded as employee expense in the books of D Ltd. over the 

remaining life, which is 1 year in this scenario.  

 

c. There is a difference between contingent consideration and deferred consideration. In the given case 35 

is the minimum payment to be paid after 2 years and accordingly will be considered as deferred 

consideration. The other element is if company meet certain target then they will get 25% of that or 35 

whichever is higher. In the given case since the minimum what is expected to be paid the fair value of 

the contingent consideration has been considered as zero. The impact of time value on deferred 

consideration has been given @ 10%.  

d. The additional consideration of Rs. 20 lakhs to be paid to the founder shareholder is contingent to 

him/her continuing in employment and hence this will be considered as employee compensation and 

will be recorded as post combination expenses in the income statement of D Ltd.  
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Working for Purchase consideration Rs. in lakhs 

 

Particulars   Amount 

Share capital of D Ltd  

Number of shares  

Shares to be issued 2:1  

Fair value per share  

PC (2,00,000 x 70% x Rs. 40 per share)               (A)  

Deferred consideration after discounting Rs. 35 lakhs for 2 

years @ 10%                                                (B)  

 

Replacement award Market based measure of the acquiree 

award (5) x ratio of the portion of the vesting period 

completed (2) / greater of the total vesting period (3) or the 

original vesting period (4) of the acquiree award ie (5 x 2 / 

4)                                 (C)  

PC in lakhs (A+B+C)  

 

4,00,000 

2,00,000 

400 

 

 

40 

 

56.00 

 

28.93 

 

 

 

 

2.50 

87.43 

 

Purchase price allocation workings 

Particulars  Book 

value (A)  

Fair 

value (B)  

FV 

adjustment 

(A-B)  

Property, plant and equipment  

Investment  

Inventories  

500 

100 

150 

350 

100 

150 

(150) 

- 

- 

Financial assets:   -  

       Trade receivables  

       Cash and cash equivalents  

       Others  

Less: Long term borrowings  

        Long term provisions  

Deferred tax  

Short term borrowings  

Trade payables  

Contingent liability  

Net assets (X)  

300 

100 

230 

(200) 

 

(70) 

(35) 

(150) 

(300) 

- 

300 

100 

- 

- 

230  

(200) 

 

(70) 

(35) 

(150) 

(300) 

(5) 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

(5) 
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Deferred tax Asset on FV adjustment (155 

x 30%) (Y)  

Net assets (X+Y)  

Non-controlling interest (516.50 x 30%) 

rounded off  

Capital Reserve (Net assets – NCI – PC)  

Purchase consideration (PC) 

 

625 

 

470 

46.50 

 

516.5 

154.95 

274.12 

 

87.43 

(155) 

155 

 

 

Consolidation workings 

 P Ltd. D Ltd. (pre 

acquisition) 

PPA 

Allocation 

Total 

Assets  

Non-Current Assets:  

   Property, plant and      

   equipment  

   Investment  

Current assets:  

    Inventories  

    Financial assets:  

    Trade receivables  

    Cash and cash     

    equivalents  

    Others  

                     Total  

Equity and Liabilities  

Equity  

     Share capital- Equity  

     shares of 

    Rs. 100 each  

   Shares allotted to D  

    Ltd. (2,00,000 x 70%   

     x Rs. 10 per share)  

      Other Equity  

Non-controlling interest  

Non-Current liabilities:  

 

 

300 

400 

 

 

250 

 

 

450 

200 

400 

2,000 

 

 

500 

 

 

 

 

 

810 

0 

 

 

 

500 

100 

 

 

150 

 

 

300 

100 

230 

1,380 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(150) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(150) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14 

318.62 

154.95 

 

 

 

650 

500 

 

 

400 

 

 

750 

300 

630 

3,230 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

514 

1128.62 

154.95 
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    Long term borrowings  

    Long term provisions  

250 

50 

200 

70 

 

28.93 

450 

148.93 

Deferred tax  

Current Liabilities:  

Short term borrowings  

Trade payable  

Liability for lawsuit 

damages  

                  Total  

Other Equity  

    Other Equity  

    Replacement award  

     Security  Premium  

     Reserve  

(2,00,000 shares x 70% x 

Rs.30)  

      Capital Reserve  

 

40 

 

100 

250 

 

 

2,000 

 

810 

 

 

 

810 

35 

 

150 

300 

 

 

755 

(46.5) 

 

 

0 

5 

475 

 

 

 

 

2.5 

 

 

42 

274.12 

318.62 

28.5 

 

 

250 

550 

5 

3,230 

 

810 

 

2.5 

 

 

42 

274.12 

1,128.62 
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Statement of Profit and Loss 

 Rs. ’000 

Operating lease rental  (260) 

Amortisation of asset leased on finance lease  (225) 

Finance cost relating to finance leases  (248·4) 

 

Balance Sheet 

 Rs. ’000 

Property, plant and equipment  4,275 

Prepaid operating lease rentals:   

In non-current assets  1,080 

In current assets  60 

Lease liability:   

In non-current liabilities  (2,592·1) 

In current liabilities  (56·3) 

 

 

 

Q 69 

Motorola Ltd. has two divisions A and B. Division A has been making constant profit while Division B has 

been invariably suffering losses. 

On 31st March 2018, the division-wise draft extract of the Balance Sheet was a follows: 

           (Rs000) 

 A B Total 

Fixed Assets Cost 

Depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets (A) 

Current Assets 

Less: Current Liabilities 

Net Current Assets(B) 

                                              Total (A) + (B) 

Financed by : 

Loan Funds 

Capital: Equity Rs 10 each 

Surplus 

500 

(450) 

50 

400 

(50) 

350 

1,000 

(800) 

200 

1,000 

(800) 

200 

1,500 

(1,250) 

250 

1,400 

(850) 

550 

400 400 800 

 

- 

50 

350 

 

600 

- 

(200) 

 

600 

50 

150 
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Total  

400 400 800 

 

Division B along with its assets and liabilities was sold for Rs 50 corers to Senovo Limited a new company, 

who allotted 2 corer equity shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs 15 per share to member of Motorola 

Limited in full settlement of the consideration, in propitiation to their shareholding in the company. One of 

the members of the Motorola Limited was holding 52% share of the company. 

 

Assuming, that there are no other transaction, you are required to: 

 

(i) Pass   journal entire in the books of Motorola Limited. 

(ii) Prepare the Balance Sheet of Motorola Limited after the entries in (i). 

(iii) Prepare the Balance Sheet of Senovo Limited. 

Balance sheet prepared for (ii) and (iii) above should company with the relevant Ind AS and  Schedule III of 

the Companies Act, 2013 Provide Notes to Accounts, for “other Equity” in case of (ii) and  Share Capital in 

case of (iii) only. 

 

Answer 

(i) Journal of Motorola Ltd. 

  Dr. Cr. 

Loan Funds 

Current Liabilities 

Provision for Depreciation 

To Fixes Assets 

To current Assets 

To Capital Reserve 

(Being Division B along with its assets and liabilities 

sold to Senovo Ltd. for Rs 50 crore 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

600 

800 

800 

 

 

 

1,000 

1,000 

200 

 

In the given scenario, this demerger will meet the definition of common control transaction, Accordingly, 

the transfer of assets and liabilities will be derecognized and recognized as per book value and the resultant 

loss or gain will be recorded as capital reserve in the books of demerged entity (Motorola Ltd.) 

Note- Any other alternative set of entries, with the same net effect on various, may also be given. 
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(ii) Motorola Ltd. 

Balance Sheet after demerger 

Assets Note no. Amount 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and Equipment 

Current Assets 

 

EQUITY AND LIBILITIES 

Equity 

Equity share capital (of face value of Rs 10 each) 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

 

50 

400 

450 

 

 

50 

350 

 

50 

450 

 

Note to Accounts 

  (Rs in crore) 

1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

Equity Share Capital 

5 crore equity share of face value of Rs 10 each 

Consequent to transfer of Division B to Newly Incorporated 

company Senovo Ltd., the member of the company have been 

allotted 2 crore equity share of Rs 10 eachat a premium of Rs 15 

per share of Senovo Ltd. in full settlement of the consideration in 

proportion to their shareholding in the company 

Other Eauity 

Surplus (350-200) 

Add: Capital Reserve on reconstruction 

 

 

 

50 

 

 

 

150 

200 

350 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

125 
 

(iii) Balance Sheet of Senovo Ltd.     (Rs in crore) 

ASSETS Note No. Amount 

Non-current assets 

   Property, plant and Equipment 

Current assets 

EQITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity share capital (of face value of INR 10 each) 

Other equity  

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

200 

1,000 

1,200 

 

 

20 

(220) 

 

 

600 

 

800 

1,200 

 

Note to Accounts 

  (Rs in crore) 

1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

Share capital 

Issued and Paid-up capital 

2 crore Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 

(All the above share have been allotted to the members of 

Motorola Ltd. on takeover of division B from Motorola Ltd. as 

fully paid-up pursuant to contract without payment being 

received in cash) 

Other Equity 

Securities Premium 

Capital reserve [50-(1,200-1,400)] 

 

 

 

20 

 

 

 

30 

(250) 

 

(220) 
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Q 70 - (Exam - May 19) Disposal of Shares of Subsidiary 

Shiv Ltd. purchased 70% stake in shyam Ltd. for Rs 21,22,400 on 01.04.2016. On the date of the acquisition, 

Shyam Ltd. assets & liabilities were Rs 54,88,000 and Rs 4,48,000 respectively. the net assets position of 

shyam Ltd. as on 31.03.2017 & 30.09.2017 were Rs 78,40,000 and Rs 1,10,60,000 respectively, the increase 

resulting from profit earned during the period. On 01.10.2017. Shiv Ltd. retained 30% stake in Shyam Ltd. 

and sold balance for Rs 50,00,000. 

Discuss the nature of the relationship between the two companies on the relevant dates and the accounting 

adjustments that are necessary as a result of may change in the relationship as per relevant Accounting 

Standard. 

Also, calculate the profit arising on part sale of investment, carrying value of the portion unsold & 

Goodwill/Capital Reserve that arises on change in nature of the investment. 

 

Solution: 

Suggested Answers not yet issue till the date of finalization of this Book. 
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       Student Notes:-   
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Q 71 

CK Ltd. prepares the financial statement under Ind AS for the quarter year ended 30th June, 2018. During 

the 3 months ended 30th June, 2018 following events occurred: 

On 1st April, 2018, the Company has decided to sell one of its divisions as a going concern following a recent 

change in its geographical focus. The proposed sale would involve the buyer acquiring the non-monetary 

assets (including goodwill) of the division, with the Company collecting any outstanding trade receivables 

relating to the division and settling any current liabilities. 

On 1st April, 2018, the carrying amount of the assets of the division were as follows: 

 Purchased Goodwill – Rs 60,000 

 Property, Plant & Equipment (average remaining estimated useful life two years) - Rs 20,00,000 

 Inventories - Rs 10,00,000 

From 1st April, 2018, the Company has started to actively market the division and has received number of 

serious enquiries. On 1st April, 2018 the directors estimated that they would receive Rs 32,00,000 from the 

sale of the division. Since 1st April, 2018, market condition has improved and as on 1st August, 2018 the 

Company received and accepted a firm offer to purchase the division for Rs 33,00,000. 

The sale is expected to be completed on 30th September, 2018 and Rs 33,00,000 can be assumed to be a 

reasonable estimate of the value of the division as on 30th June, 2018. During the period from 1st April to 

30th June inventories of the division costing Rs 8,00,000 were sold for Rs 12,00,000. At 30th June, 2018, the 

total cost of the inventories of the division was Rs 9,00,000. All of these inventories have an estimated net 

realisable value that is in excess of their cost. 

The Company has approached you to suggest how the proposed sale will be reported in the interim financial 

statements for the quarter ended 30th June, 2018 giving relevant explanations. 

 

Solution: 

The decision to offer the division for sale on 1st April, 2018 means that from that date the division has been 

classified as held for sale. The division available for immediate sale is being actively marketed at a reasonable 

price and the sale is expected to be completed within one year. 

 

 

TOPIC 21.   
 

INDAS-105 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE  

& DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
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The consequence of this classification is that the assets of the division will be measured at the lower of their 

existing carrying amounts and their fair value less cost to sell. Here the division shall be measured at their 

existing carrying amount i.e.Rs 30,60,000 since it is less than the fair value less cost to sell Rs 32,00,000. 

The increase in expected selling price will not be accounted for since earlier there was no impairment to 

division held for sale. 

The assets of the division need to be presented separately from other assets in the balance sheet. Their major 

classes should be separately disclosed either on the face of the balance sheet or in the notes. 

The Property, Plant and Equipment shall not be depreciated after 1st April, 2018 so its carrying value at 

30th June, 2018 will be Rs 20,00,000 only. The inventories of the division will be shown at Rs 9,00,000. 

The division will be regarded as discontinued operation for the quarter ended 30th June, 2018. It represents 

a separate line of business and is held for sale at the year end.  

The Statement of Profit and Loss should disclose, as a single amount, the post-tax profit or loss of the 

division on classification as held for sale.  

Further, as per Ind AS 33, EPS will also be disclosed separately for the discontinued operation.  

 

 

Q 72 - (Exam Nov 18) 

PB Limited purchased a plastic bottle manufacturing plant for Rs 24 lakh on 1st April, 2015. The useful life 

of the plant is 8 years. On 30th September, 2017, PB Limited temporarily stops using the manufacturing 

plant because demand has declined. However, the plant is maintained in a workable condition and it will be 

used in future when demand picks up.  

The accountant of PB Limited decided to treat the plant as held for sale until the demand picks up and 

accordingly measures the plant at lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. The accountant 

has also stopped charging depreciation for rest of the period considering the plant as held for sale. The fair 

value less cost to sell on 30th September, 2017 and 31st March, 2018 was Rs 13.5 lakh and Rs 12 lakh 

respectively.  

The accountant has made the following working: 

 

Carrying amount on initial classification as held for sale Rs Rs 

Purchase price of Plant  

Less: Accumulated Depreciation [(Rs 24,00,000/8)x2.5 years]  

Fair value less cost to sell as on 31st March, 2017  

The value lower of the above two  

24,00,000 

7,50,000 

 

16,50,000 

 

12,00,000 

12,00,000 
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Balance Sheet extracts as on 31st March, 2018 

Particulars Rs 

Assets  

Current Assets  

Other Current Assets  

Assets classified as held for sale  

 

 

 

12,00,000 

Required:  

Analyze whether the above accounting treatment is in compliance with the Ind AS. If not, advise the correct 

treatment showing necessary workings.            (8 Marks)  

Solution: 

As per Ind AS 105 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’, an entity shall classify 

a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 

transaction rather than through continuing use.  

For asset to be classified as held for sale, it must be available for immediate sale in its present condition 

subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly 

probable. In such a situation, an asset cannot be classified as a non-current asset held for sale, if the entity 

intends to sell it in a distant future.  

For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell 

the asset, and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated. Further, 

the asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. 

In addition, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from 

the date of classification and actions required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that 

significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.  

Further Ind AS 105 also states that an entity shall not classify as held for sale a non-current asset that is to 

be abandoned. This is because its carrying amount will be recovered principally through continuing use.  

An entity shall not account for a non-current asset that has been temporarily taken out of use as if it had 

been abandoned.  

In addition to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 states that depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or 

is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.  

The Accountant of PB Ltd. has treated the plant as held for sale and measured it at the fair value less cost 

to sell. Also, the depreciation has not been charged thereon since the date of classification as held for sale 

which is not correct and not in accordance with Ind AS 105 and Ind AS 16.  

Accordingly, the manufacturing plant should neither be treated as abandoned asset nor as held for sale 

because its carrying amount will be principally recovered through continuous use. PB Ltd. shall not stop 

charging depreciation or treat the plant as held for sale because its carrying amount will be recovered 

principally through continuing use to the end of their economic life. 
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The working of the same for presenting in the balance sheet will be as follows: 

 

Calculation of carrying amount as on 31stMarch, 2018  Rs 

Purchase Price of Plant  

Less: Accumulated depreciation (24,00,000/ 8 years) x 3 years  

Carrying amount before impairment  

Less: Impairment loss (Refer Working Note)  

Revised carrying amount after impairment  

24,00,000 

(9,00,000) 

15,00,000 

(3,00,000) 

12,00,000 

 

Balance Sheet extracts as on 31stMarch 2018 

Assets  Rs 

Non-Current Assets  

Property, Plant and Equipment  

 

12,00,000 

 

Working Note:  

Fair value less cost to sell of the Plant = Rs 12,00,000  

Value in Use (not given) or = Nil (since plant has temporarily not been used for manufacturing due to 

decline in demand)  

Recoverable amount = higher of above i.e. Rs 12,00,000  

Impairment loss = Carrying amount – Recoverable amount  

Impairment loss = Rs 15,00,000 - Rs 12,00,000 = Rs 3,00,000. 
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       Student Notes:-   
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Q 73 - (Nov18. Exam)  

NAV Limited granted a loan of Rs 120 lakh to OLD Limited for 5 years @ 10% p.a. which is Treasury bond 

yield of equivalent maturity. But the incremental borrowing rate of OLD Limited is 12%. In this case, the 

loan is granted to OLD Limited at below market rate of interest. Ind AS 109 requires that a financial asset 

or financial liability is to be measured at fair value at the initial recognition. Should the transaction price be 

treated as fair value? If not, find out the fair value. What is the accounting treatment of the difference 

between the transaction price and the fair value on initial recognition in the book of NAV Ltd.? Present 

value factors at 12%: 

Year 1 2 3 4 5 

PVF 0.892 0.797 0.712 0.636 0.567 

 

Solution: 

Since the loan is granted to OLD Ltd at 10% i.e. below market rate of 12%. It will be considered as loan 

given at off market terms. Hence the Fair value of the transaction will be lower from its transaction price & 

not the transaction price. 

Calculation of fair value 

Year Future cash flow 

(in lakh) 

Discounting 

factor @ 12% 

Present value 

(in lakh) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

12 

12 

12 

12 

120+12=132 

0.892 

0.797 

0.712 

0.636 

0.567 

10.704 

9.564 

8.544 

7.632 

74.844 

   111.288 

The fair value of the transaction is Rs 111.288 lakh.  

Since fair value is based on level 1 input or valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, 

difference between fair value and transaction price will be recognized in Profit and Loss as fair value loss i.e 

Rs 120 lakh– Rs 111.288 lakh= Rs 8.712 lakh.  

TOPIC 22.   
 

 
INDAS-109 and 32 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
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Note:  One may also calculate the above fair value by the way of annuity on interest amount rather than 

separate calculation 

 

Q 74 - (Exam Nov.18 – 8 Marks) 

Growth Limited on 1st April, 2015 issued 50,000, 7% convertible debentures of face value of Rs 100 per 

debenture at par. The debentures are redeemable at a premium of 10% on 31st March, 2020 or these may be 

converted into ordinary shares at the option of the holder. The interest rate for equivalent debentures 

without conversion rights would have been 10%. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1st April, 2017.  

Suggest how Growth Limited should account for this compound financial instrument on the date of 

transition. Also discuss Ind AS on 'Financial Instrument' presentation in the above context.  

The present value of Rs 1 receivable at the end of each year based on discount rates of 7% and 10% can be 

taken as: 

End of Year 1 2 3 4 5 

7% 

10% 

0.94 

0.91 

0.87 

0.83 

0.82 

0.75 

0.76 

0.68 

0.71 

0.62 

 

Solution: 

Since the liability is outstanding on the date of Ind AS transition, Growth Ltd. is required to split the 

convertible debentures into debt and equity portion on the date of transition. Accordingly, first the liability 

component will be measured discounting the contractually determined stream of future cash flows (interest 

and principal) to present value by using the discount rate of 10% p.a. (being the market interest rate for 

similar debentures with no conversion option) 

Calculation of Equity & Liability component on initial recognition 

(Rs)  

Present Interest payments for 5 years on debentures by applying 

annuity factor [(50,000 x 7% x 100) x 3.79]  

PV of principal repayment (including premium) (50,000x110x0.62)  

Total liability component  

Total equity component (Balancing figure)  

Total proceeds from issue of Debentures  

13,26,500 

 

34,10,000 

47,36,500 

2,63,500 

50,00,000 

Thus, on the date of transition, the amount of Rs 50,00,000 being the amount of debentures will split as 

under: 

Debt  

Equity  

Rs 47,36,500 

Rs 2,63,500 
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Q 75 - (May19 Exam – 8Marks) 

Perfect Ltd. issued 50,000 Compulsory Cumulative Preference Shares (CCCPS) 1st April, 2017 @ 180 each. 

The rate of dividend is 10% payable at the end of every year. The preference shares are convertible into 

12,500 equity shares (Face value Rs 10 each) Of the company at the end of 5 year from the date of allotment. 

When the CCCPS are issued, the prevailing market interest rate for similar debt without conversion option 

is 1 Transaction cost on the date of issuance is 2% of the value of the proceeds. Interest Rate is 15.86%. 

(Round off the figures to nearest multiple of Rupee)    

Discounting Factor @ 15% 

Year 1 2 3 4 5 

Discount Factor 0.8696 0.7561 0.6575 0.5718 0.4971 

 

You required to compute Liability and Equity Component and Pass Journal Entries for entire term of 

arrangement i.e. from the issue of Preference Shares till their conversion into Equity Shares. Keeping in of 

relevant Ind AS.  

Solution 

Suggested Answers of ICAI not yet issued till the date of finalization of this book. 

 

 

Q 76 - (RTP MAY19) 

KK Ltd. has granted an interest free loan of Rs 10,00,000 to its wholly owned Indian Subsidiary YK Ltd. 

There is no transaction cost attached to the said loan. The Company has not finalised any terms and 

conditions including the applicable interest rates on such loans. The Board of Directors of the Company are 

evaluating various options and has requested your firm to provide your views under Ind AS in following 

situations: 

(i) The Loan given by KK Ltd. to its wholly owned subsidiary YK Ltd. is interest free and such loan 

is repayable on demand. 

(ii) The said Loan is interest free and will be repayable after 3 years from the date of granting such 

loan. The current market rate of interest for similar loan is 10%. Considering the same, the fair 

value of the loan at initial recognition is ` 8,10,150. 

(iii) The said loan is interest free and will be repaid as and when the YK Ltd. has funds to repay the 

Loan amount. 

 

Based on the same, KK Ltd. has requested you to suggest the accounting treatment of the above loan in the 

stand-alone financial statements of KK Ltd. and YK Ltd. and also in the consolidated financial statements of 

the group. Consider interest for only one year for the above loan. 

Further the Company is also planning to grant interest free loan from YK Ltd. to KK Ltd. in the subsequent 

period. What will be the accounting treatment of the same under applicable Ind AS? 
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Solution 

Scenario (i) 

Since the loan is repayable on demand, it has fair value equal to cash consideration given. KK Ltd. and 

YK Ltd. should recognize financial asset and liability, respectively, at the amount of loan given (assuming 

that loan is repayable within a year). Upon, repayment, both the entities should reverse the entries that 

were made at the origination. 

Journal entries in the books of KK Ltd. 

At origination  

Loan to YK Ltd. A/c Dr.  Rs 10,00,000  

To Bank A/c  Rs 10,00,000  

On repayment  

Bank A/c Dr.  

To Loan to YK Ltd. A/c  

Rs 10,00,000  

Rs 10,00,000  

Journal entries in the books of YK Ltd. 

At origination  

Bank A/c Dr.  

To Loan from KK Ltd. A/c  

Rs 10,00,000  

Rs 10,00,000  

On repayment  

Loan from KK Ltd. A/c Dr.  

To Bank A/c  

Rs 10,00,000  

Rs 10,00,000  

 

In the consolidated financial statements, there will be no entry in this regard since loan receivable and loan 

payable will get set off. 

 

Scenario (ii)  

Applying the guidance in Ind AS 109, a ‘financial asset’ shall be recorded at its fair value upon initial 

recognition. Fair value is normally the transaction price. However, sometimes certain type of instruments 

may be exchanged at off market terms (i.e., different from market terms for a similar instrument if exchanged 

between market participants).  

If a long-term loan or receivable that carries no interest while similar instruments if exchanged between 

market participants carry interest, then fair value for such loan receivable will be lower from its transaction 

price owing to the loss of interest that the holder bears. In such cases where part of the consideration given 

or received is for something other than the financial instrument, an entity shall measure the fair value of the 

financial instrument. The difference in fair value and transaction cost will treated as investment in Subsidiary 

YK Ltd.  
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Both KK Ltd. and YK Ltd. should recognise financial asset and liability, respectively, at fair value on initial 

recognition, i.e., the present value of Rs10,00,000 payable at the end of 3 years using discounting factor of 

10%. Since the question mentions fair value of the loan at initial recognition as Rs8,10,150, the same has 

been considered. The difference between the loan amount and its fair value is treated as an equity 

contribution to the subsidiary. This represents a further investment by the parent in the subsidiary.  

 

Journal entries in the books of KK Ltd. (for one year) 

At origination  

Loan to YK Ltd. A/c Dr.  

Investment in YK Ltd. A/c Dr.  

To Bank A/c  

During periods to repayment- to recognise 

interest  

 

Rs 8,10,150  

Rs 1,89,850  

 

 

 

Rs 10,00,000  

Year 1 – Charging of Interest    

Loan to YK Ltd. A/c Dr.  

To Interest income A/c  

Rs 81,015   

Rs 81,015  

Transferring of interest to Profit and Loss    

Interest income A/c Dr.  Rs 81,015   

To Profit and Loss A/c  

On repayment  

Bank A/c Dr.  

To Loan to YK Ltd. A/c  

Rs 

10,00,000  

 

Rs 81,015  

 

Rs 10,00,000  

Note- Interest needs to be recognised in statement of profit and loss. The same 

cannot be adjusted against capital contribution recognised at origination.  

 

Journal entries in the books of YK Ltd. (for one year) 

At origination  

Bank A/c Dr.  Rs 10,00,000  

To Loan from KK Ltd. A/c  Rs 8,10,150  

To Equity Contribution in KK Ltd. A/c  Rs 1,89,850  

During periods to repayment- to recognise interest  

Year 1  

Interest expense A/c Dr.  Rs 81,015  

To Loan from KK Ltd. A/c  Rs 81,015  

On repayment  

Loan from KK Ltd. A/c Dr.  Rs 10,00,000  
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To Bank A/c  Rs 10,00,000  

In the consolidated financial statements, there will be no entry in this regard since loan and interest 

income/expense will get set off. 

 

Scenario (iii) 

Generally, a loan which is repayable when funds are available, cannot be stated as loan repayable on demand. 

Rather the entity needs to estimate the repayment date and determine its measurement accordingly by 

applying the concept prescribed in Scenario  

(iv) In the consolidated financial statements, there will be no entry in this regard since loan and interest 

income/expense will get set off. 

In case the subsidiary YK Ltd. is planning to grant interest free loan to KK Ltd., then the difference 

between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and its nominal value should be treated as 

dividend distribution by YK Ltd. and dividend income by the parent KK Ltd. 

 

 

Q 77 - (MTP MARCH19) 

On April 1, 20X1, Pluto Ltd. has advance a loan for Rs. 10 lakhs to one of its employees for an interest rate 

at 4% per annum (market rate 10%) which is repayable in 5 equal annual installments along with interest at 

each year end. Employee is not required to give any specific performance against this benefit. 

The accountant of the company has recognised the staff loan in the balance sheet equivalent to the amount 

disbursed i.e. Rs. 10 lakhs. The interest income for the period is recognised at the contracted rate in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss by the company i.e. Rs. 40,000 (Rs. 10 lakhs x 4%). 

Analyse whether the above accounting treatment made by the accountant is in compliance with the Ind AS. 

If not, advise the correct treatment alongwith working for the same.   

 

Solution: 

(c) The above treatment needs to be examined in the light of the provisions given in Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 

109 on Financial Instruments’ and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’.  

Para 11 (c) (i) of Ind AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ states that:  

“A financial asset is any asset that is:  

(c) a contractual right:  

(i) to receive cash or…..”  

 

 

Further, paragraph 5.1.1 of Ind AS 109 states that:  

“At initial recognition, an entity shall measure a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value”.  
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Further, paragraph 5.1.1 of Appendix B to Ind AS 109 states that:  

“The fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price (i.e. the fair 

value of the consideration given or received. However, if part of the consideration given or received is for 

something other than the financial instrument, an entity shall measure the fair value of the financial 

instrument. For example, the fair value of a long term loan or receivable that carries no interest can be 

measured as the present value of all future cash receipts discounted using the prevailing market(s) of interest 

rate of similar instrument with a similar credit rating. Any additional amount lent is an expense or reduction 

of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset”.  

Further, paragraph 5.2.1 of Ind AS 109 states that:  

“After initial recognition, an entity shall measure a financial asset at:  

a. amortised cost;  

b. fair value through other comprehensive income; or  

c. fair value through profit or loss.  

Further, paragraph 5.4.1 of Ind AS 109 states that:  

“Interest revenue shall be calculated by using the effective interest method. This shall be calculated by 

applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset 

Paragraph 8 of Ind AS 19 states that:  

“Employee Benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by 

employees or for the termination of employment”.  

 

The Accountant of Pluto Ltd. has recognised the staff loan in the balance sheet at Rs. 10 lakhs being the 

amount disbursed and Rs. 40,000 as interest income for the period is recognised at the contracted rate in the 

statement of profit and loss which is not correct and not in accordance with Ind AS 19, Ind AS 32 and Ind 

AS 109. 

 

Accordingly, the staff advance being a financial asset shall be initially measured at the fair value and 

subsequently at the amortised cost. The interest income is calculated by using the effective interest method. 

The difference between the amount lent and fair value is charged as Employee benefit expense in statement 

of profit and loss. 
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a) Calculation of Fair Value of the Loan  

Year Cash Inflow Discounting 

Factor (10%) 

Present Value 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

2,40,000 

2,32,000 

2,24,000 

2,16,000 

2,08,000 

0.909 

0.826 

0.751 

0.683 

0.621 

2,18,160 

1,91,632 

1,68,224 

1,47,528 

1,29,168 

8,54,712 Total 

 

Staff loan should be initially recorded at Rs. 8,54,712.  

 

Q 78 - (MTP MARCH19 - 8 Marks) 

On 1 April 2018, an 8% convertible loan with a nominal value of Rs. 6,00,000 was issued at par. It is 

redeemable on 31 March 2022 also at par. Alternatively, it may be converted into equity shares on the basis 

of 100 new shares for each Rs. 200 worth of loan.  

An equivalent loan without the conversion option would have carried interest at 10%. Interest of Rs. 48,000 

has already been paid and included as a finance cost.  

Present value rates are as follows: 

Year End  @ 8%  @ 10%  

1 0.93 0.91 

2 0.86 0.83 

3 0.79 0.75 

4 0.73 0.68 

How will the Company present the above loan notes in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2019?           

                                                                

Solution 

Step 1 There is an ‘option’ to convert the loans into equity i.e. the loan note holders do not have to accept 

equity shares; they could demand repayment in the form of cash.  

 

Ind AS 32 states that where there is an obligation to transfer economic benefits there should be a liability 

recognised. On the other hand, where there is not an obligation to transfer economic benefits, a financial 

instrument should be recognised as equity.  
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In the above illustration we have both – ‘equity’ and ‘debt’ features in the instrument. There is an obligation 

to pay cash – i.e. interest at 8% per annum and a redemption amount – this is ‘financial liability’ or ‘debt 

component’. The ‘equity’ part of the transaction is the option to convert. So it is a compound financial 

instrument. 

 

Step 2 Debt element of the financial instrument so as to recognise the liability is the present value of interest 

and principal  

The rate at which the same is to be discounted, is the rate of equivalent loan note without the conversion 

option would have carried interest at 10%, therefore this is the rate to be used for discounting  

 

Step 3 Calculation of the debt element of the loan note as follows:  

8% Interest discounted at a rate of 10% Present Value (6,00,000 x 8%) 

S. No Year Interest amount PVF Amount 

Year 1 

Year 2 

Year 3 

 

Year 4 

2019 

2020 

2021 

 

2022 

48,000 

48,000 

48,000 

 

648,000 

0.91 

0.83 

0.75 

 

0.68 

43,680 

39,840 

36,063 

1,19,583 

4,40,640 

5,60,223 Amount to be recognised as a liability 

 

Initial proceeds        (6,00,000)  

Amount to be recognised as equity      39,777  

 In year 4, the loan note is redeemed therefore Rs. 6,00,000 + Rs. 48,000 = Rs. 6,48,000.  

Step 4 The next step is to recognise the interest component equivalent to the loan that would carry if there 

was no option to cover. Therefore, the interest should be recognised at 10%. As on date Rs. 48,000 has been 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss i.e. 6,00,000 x 8% but we have discounted the present value of 

future interest payments and redemption amount using discount factors of 10%, so the finance charge in the 

statement of profit and loss must also be recognised at the same rate i.e. for the purpose of consistency.  

The additional charge to be recognised in the income statement is calculated as:  

Debt component of the financial instrument Rs. 5,60,000 

Interest charge (5,60,000 x 10%)  

Already charged to the income statement  

Additional charge required  

Rs. 56,000  

(Rs. 48,000)  

Rs. 8,000  
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Journal Entries for recording additional finance cost for year ended 31 March 2019 

Particulars Dr. Amount (Rs.) Cr. Amount (Rs.) 

Finance cost A/c Dr.  

To Debt component A/c  

(Being interest recorded for difference between 

amount recorded earlier and that to be recorded 

per Ind AS 32)  

8,000   

8,000  

Q 79 - (RTP – Nov. 19) 

An entity purchases a debt instrument with a fair value of ` 1,000 on 15th March, 20X1 and measures the 

debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income. The instrument has an interest rate of 

5% over the contractual term of 10 years, and has a 5% effective interest rate. At initial recognition, the 

entity determines that the asset is not a purchased or original credit-impaired asset.  

On 31st March 20X1 (the reporting date), the fair value of the debt instrument has decreased to ` 950 as a 

result of changes in market interest rates. The entity determines that there has not been a significant increase 

in credit risk since initial recognition and that ECL should be measured at an amount equal to 12 month 

ECL, which amounts to ` 30.  

On 1st April 20X1, the entity decides to sell the debt instrument for ` 950, which is its fair value at that 

date.  

Pass journal entries for recognition, impairment and sale of debt instruments as per Ind AS 109. Entries 

relating to interest income are not to be provided. 

 

Solution 

On Initial Recognition 

Financial Asset (FVTOCI) Dr.   1000 

 To Cash A/c     1000 

 

On impairment of debt Instruments 

Impairment Exp (P&L) Dr.   30 

OCI Dr.     20 

 To Financial Asset (FVTOCI) 50 

 

The cumulative loss in other comprehensive income at the reporting date was ` 20. That amount consists of 

the total fair value change of ` 50 (that is, ` 1,000-` 950) offset by the change in the accumulated impairment 

amount representing 12-month ECL, that was recognized (` 30). 

 

On Sale of Debt Instruments 



 

143 
 

Cash A/c Dr.     950 

 To Financial Asset (FVTOCI) 950 

 

Loss on Sale A/c Dr.    20 

 To OCI    20 

 

 

  

       Student Notes:-   
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Q 80 - (EXAM MAY 18) 

Seeds Ltd. is operating in oil industry. Its business segments comprise crushing and refining. Certain 

information for financial year 2017-18 is given below:  

(Rs in lakh) 

Segments External 

Sale 

Tax Other Operating 

Income 

Result Assets Liabilitie

s 

Crushing 1,00,000 2,500 20,000 5,000 25,000 15,000 

Refining 35,000 1,500 7,500 2,000 15,000 5,000 

 

Additional Information: (Rs in lakh)  

 Unallocated revenue net of expenses is Rs 1,500.  

 Interest and bank charges is Rs 1,000  

 Income-tax expense is Rs 1,000 (current tax Rs 975 and deferred tax Rs 25)  

 Investments Rs 5,000 and unallocated assets Rs 5,000  

 Unallocated liabilities, Reserves & Surplus and Share capital are Rs 10,000; Rs 15,000 and Rs 5,000 

respectively.  

 Depreciation amounts for crushing and refining are Rs 500 and Rs 150 respectively.  

 Capital expenditure for crushing and refining are Rs 2,500 and Rs 1,000 respectively.  

 Revenue from outside India is Rs 15,000 and segment assets outside India Rs 5,000.  

Based on the above information, how Seeds Ltd. would disclose information about reportable segment 

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities for financial year 2017-18?   

SOLUTION 

Segment revenues, results and other information  

(Rs in lakh) 

Revenue Coating Others Total 

1.  External sales (gross)  1,00,000 35,000 1,35,000 

Tax  (2,500) (1,500) (4,000) 

External sales (net)  97,500 33,500 1,31,000 

TOPIC 23.   
 

 
INDAS 108 

OPERATING SEGMENTS 
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Other operating income  20,000 7,500 27,500 

Total Revenue  1,17,500 41,000 1,58,500 

2.  Results     

Segment results  5,000 2,000 7,000 

Unallocated income (net of unallocated expenses)    1,500 

Profit from operation before interest, taxation 

and exceptional items  

  8,500 

Interest and bank charges    (1,000) 

Profit before exceptional items    7,500 

Exceptional items    Nil 

Profit before taxation    7,500 

Less: Income Taxes     

Current taxes    (975) 

Deferred taxes    (25) 

Profit after taxation    6,500 

3.  Other Information     

(a)  Assets     

Segment Assets  25,000 15,000 40,000 

Investments    5,000 

Unallocated assets    5,000 

Total Assets    50,000 

(b)  Liabilities/Shareholder’s funds     

Segment liabilities  15,000 5,000 20,000 

Unallocated liabilities    10,000 

Share capital    5,000 

Reserves and surplus    15,000 

Total liabilities / shareholder’s funds    50,000 

(c)  Others     

Capital Expenditure  2,500 1,000 3,500 

Depreciation  500 150 650 

 

(2) Geographical Information 

 (Rs in lakh) 

India Outside India Total 

Revenue  1,43,500 15,000 1,58,500 
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Segment assets  35,000 5,000 40,000 

Capital expenditure  3,500 - 3,500 

 

Note: Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of 

the segments.  

 

Q 81 - (RTP - MAY19) 

An entity uses the weighted average cost formula to assign costs to inventories and cost of goods sold for 

financial reporting purposes, but the reports provided to the chief operating decision maker use the First-

In, First-Out (FIFO) method for evaluating the performance of segment operations. Which cost formula 

should be used for Ind AS 108 disclosure purposes? 

 

Solution: 

The entity should use First-In, First-Out (FIFO) method for its Ind AS 108 disclosures, even though it uses 

the weighted average cost formula for measuring inventories for inclusion in its financial statements. Where 

chief operating decision maker uses only one measure of segment asset, same measure should be used to 

report segment information. Accordingly, in the given case, the method used in preparing the financial 

information for the chief operating decision maker should be used for reporting under Ind AS 108.  

However, reconciliation between the segment results and results as per financial statements needs to be 

given by the entity in its segment report. 
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       Student Notes:-   
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Q 82 - (RTP – Nov. 19) 

What will be the accounting treatment of dividend distribution tax in the consolidated financial statements 

in case of partly-owned subsidiary in the following scenarios:  

Scenario 1: H Limited (holding company) holds 12,000 equity shares in S Limited (Subsidiary of H Limited) 

with 60% holding. Accordingly, S Limited is a partly-owned subsidiary of H Limited. During the year 20X1, 

S Limited paid a dividend @ ` 10 per share and DDT @ 20% on it.  

Should the share of H Limited in DDT paid by S Limited amounting to ` 24,000 (60% x ̀  40,000) be charged 

as expense in the consolidated profit and loss of H Limited?  

Scenario 2 (A): Extending the situation given in scenario 1, H Limited also pays dividend of ` 300,000 to 

its shareholders and DDT liability @ 20% thereon amounts to ` 60,000. As per the tax laws, DDT paid by 

S Ltd. of ` 24,000 is allowed as set off against the DDT liability of H Ltd., resulting in H Ltd. paying ` 

36,000 (` 60,000 – ` 24,000) as DDT to tax authorities.  

Scenario 2(B)  

If in (A) above, H Limited pays dividend amounting to ` 100,000 with DDT liability @ 20% amounting to 

` 20,000.  

Scenario (3):  

Will the answer be different for the treatment of dividend distribution tax paid by associate in the 

consolidated financial statement of investor, if as per tax laws the DDT paid by associate is not allowed set-

off against the DDT liability of the investor? 

 

Solution 

Scenario 1: Since H Limited is holding 12,000 shares it has received ` 1,20,000 as dividend from S Limited. 

In the consolidated financial statements of H Ltd., dividend income earned by H Ltd. and dividend recorded 

by S Ltd. in its equity will both get eliminated as a result of consolidation adjustments. Dividend paid by S 

Ltd. to the 40% non-controlling interest (NCI) shareholders will be recorded in the Statement of Changes 

in Equity as reduction of NCI balance (as shares are classified as equity as per Ind AS 32).  

DDT of ` 40,000 paid to tax authorities has two components- One ` 24,000 (related to H Limited’s 

shareholding and other ` 16,000 (40,000 x 40%) belong to non controlling interest (NCI) shareholders of S 

Limited). DDT of ` 16,000 (pertaining to non-controlling interest (NCI) shareholders) will be recorded in 
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the Statement of Changes in Equity along with dividend. DDT of ` 24,000 paid outside the consolidated 

Group shall be charged as tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss of H Ltd.  

In accordance with the above, in the given case, CFS of H limited will be as under: 

Transactions H Ltd. S Ltd. Consol. Adju. CFS H Ltd. 

Dividend Income (P&L) 120000 - -120000 - 

Dividend in SOCIE by 

reduction of NCI 

- -200000 120000 -80000 

DDT in SOCIE by reduction of 

NCI 

- -40000 24000 -16000 

DDT (In statement of P&L) - - -24000 -24000 

 

Scenario 2 (A): If DDT paid by the subsidiary S Ltd. is allowed as a set off against the DDT liability of its 

parent H Ltd. (as per the tax laws), then the amount of such DDT should be recognised in the consolidated 

statement of changes in equity of parent H Ltd.  

In the given case, share of H Limited in DDT paid by S Limited is ` 24,000 and entire ` 24,000 was utilised 

by H Limited while paying dividend to its own shareholders.  

Accordingly, DDT of 76,000 (40,000 of DDT paid by S Ltd. (of which `16,000 is attributable to NCI) and ` 

36,000 of DDT paid by H Ltd.) should be recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of 

parent H Ltd. No amount will be charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss. The basis for such 

accounting would be that due to Parent H Ltd’s transaction of distributing dividend to its shareholders (a 

transaction recorded in Parent H Ltd’s equity) and the related DDT set-off, this DDT paid by the subsidiary 

is effectively a tax on distribution of dividend to the shareholders of the parent company.  

In accordance with the above, in the given case, CFS of H limited will be as under: 

Transactions H Ltd. S Ltd. Consol. Adju. CFS H Ltd. 

Dividend Income (P&L) 120000 - -120000 - 

Dividend in SOCIE  -300000 -200000 120000 -380000* 

DDT in SOCIE -36000 -40000 - -76000 

*Dividend of ` 80,000 and DDT of ` 16,000 will be reflected as reduction from non-controlling interest.  

Scenario 2(B): In the given case, share of H Limited in DDT paid by S Limited is ` 24,000 out of which only 

` 20,000 was utilised by H Limited while paying dividend by its own. Therefore, balance ` 4,000 should be 

charged in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.  

In accordance with the above, in the given case, CFS of H limited will be as under: 

 

Transactions H Ltd. S Ltd. Consol. Adju. CFS H Ltd. 

Dividend Income (P&L) 120000 - -120000 - 

Dividend in SOCIE  -100000 -200000 120000 -180000* 
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DDT in SOCIE - -40000 4000 -36000 

DDT in P&L -  -4000 -4000 

*Dividend of ` 80,000 and DDT of ` 16,000 will be reflected as reduction from non- controlling 

interest. 

Scenario (3): Considering that as per tax laws, DDT paid by associate is not allowed set off against 

the DDT liability of the investor, the investor’s share of DDT would be accounted by the investor 

company by crediting its investment account in the associate and recording a corresponding debit 

adjustment towards its share of profit or loss of the associate. 
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Q 83 - (RTP Nov19) 

An entity G Ltd. enters into a contract with a customer P Ltd. for the sale of a machinery for 20,00,000. P 

Ltd. intends to use the said machinery to start a food processing unit. The food processing industry is highly 

competitive and P Ltd. has very little experience in the said industry.  

P Ltd. pays a non-refundable deposit of 1,00,000 at inception of the contract and enters into a long-term 

financing agreement with G Ltd. for the remaining 95 per cent of the agreed consideration which it intends 

to pay primarily from income derived from its food processing unit as it lacks any other major source of 

income. The financing arrangement is provided on a non-recourse basis, which means that if P Ltd. defaults 

then G Ltd. can repossess the machinery but cannot seek further compensation from P Ltd., even if the full 

value of the amount owed is not recovered from the machinery. The cost of the machinery for G Ltd. is ` 

12,00,000. P Ltd. obtains control of the machinery at contract inception.  

When should G Ltd. recognise revenue from sale of machinery to P Ltd. in accordance with Ind AS 115? 

 

Answer: 

As per paragraph 9 of Ind AS 115, “An entity shall account for a contract with a customer that is within the 

scope of this Standard only when all of the following criteria are met:  

(a) the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other 

customary business practices) and are committed to perform their respective obligations;  

(b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;  

(c) the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;  

(d) the contract has commercial substance (ie the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows is 

expected to change as a result of the contract); and  

(e) it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the 

goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount 

of consideration is probable, an entity shall consider only the customer’s ability and intention to pay that 

amount of consideration when it is due. The amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled may 

be less than the price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable because the entity may offer the 

customer a price concession”.  
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Paragraph 9(e) above, requires that for revenue to be recognised, it should be probable that the entity will 

collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be 

transferred to the customer. In the given case, it is not probable that G Ltd. will collect the consideration to 

which it is entitled in exchange for the transfer of the machinery. P Ltd.’s ability to pay may be uncertain 

due to the following reasons:  

(a) P Ltd. intends to pay the remaining consideration (which has a significant balance) primarily from 

income derived from its food processing unit (which is a business involving significant risk because 

of high competition in the said industry and P Ltd.'s little experience); 

(b) P Ltd. lacks sources of other income or assets that could be used to repay the balance consideration; 

and  

(c) P Ltd.'s liability is limited because the financing arrangement is provided on a non-recourse basis.  

In accordance with the above, the criteria in paragraph 9 of Ind AS 115 are not met.  

 

Further, para 15 states that when a contract with a customer does not meet the criteria in paragraph 9 and 

an entity receives consideration from the customer, the entity shall recognise the consideration received as 

revenue only when either of the following events has occurred:  

(a) the entity has no remaining obligations to transfer goods or services to the customer and all, or 

substantially all, of the consideration promised by the customer has been received by the entity and 

is non-refundable; or  

(b) the contract has been terminated and the consideration received from the customer is non-refundable.  

 

Para 16 states that an entity shall recognise the consideration received from a customer as a liability until 

one of the events in paragraph 15 occurs or until the criteria in paragraph 9 are subsequently met. Depending 

on the facts and circumstances relating to the contract, the liability recognised represents the entity’s 

obligation to either transfer goods or services in the future or refund the consideration received. In either 

case, the liability shall be measured at the amount of consideration received from the customer.  

In accordance with the above, in the given case G Ltd. should account for the non-refundable deposit of 

`1,00,000 payment as a deposit liability as none of the events described in paragraph 15 have occurred—

that is, neither the entity has received substantially all of the consideration nor it has terminated the contract. 

Consequently, in accordance with paragraph 16, G Ltd. Will continue to account for the initial deposit as 

well as any future payments of principal and interest as a deposit liability until the criteria in paragraph 9 

are met (i.e. the entity is able to conclude that it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration) or 

one of the events in paragraph 15 has occurred. Further, G Ltd. will continue to assess the contract in 

accordance with paragraph 14 to determine whether the criteria in paragraph 9 are subsequently met or 

whether the events in paragraph 15 of Ind AS 115 have occurred. 
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Q 84 - (RTP – May19) 

KK Ltd. runs a departmental store which awards 10 points for every purchase of Rs500 which can be 

discounted by the customers for further shopping with the same merchant. Each point is redeemable on any 

future purchases of KK Ltd.’s products within 3 years. Value of each point is Rs0.50. During the accounting 

period 2017-2018, the entity awarded 1,00,00,000 points to various customers of which 18,00,000 points 

remained undiscounted (to be redeemed till 31st March, 2020). The management expects only 80% of the 

remaining will be discounted in future. 

The Company has approached your firm with the following queries and has asked you to suggest the 

accounting treatment (Journal Entries) under the applicable Ind AS for these award points: 

(a) How should the recognition be done for the sale of goods worth ` 10,00,000 on a particular day? 

(b) How should the redemption transaction be recorded in the year 2017-2018? The Company has 

requested you to present the sale of goods and redemption as independent transaction. Total sales of 

the entity is ` 5,000 lakhs. 

(c) How much of the deferred revenue should be recognised at the year-end (2017-2018) because of the 

estimation that only 80% of the outstanding points will be redeemed? 

(d) In the next year 2018-2019, 60% of the outstanding points were discounted Balance 40% of the 

outstanding points of 2017-2018 still remained outstanding. How much of the deferred revenue 

should the merchant recognize in the year 2018-2019 and what will be the amount of balance deferred 

revenue? 

(e) How much revenue will the merchant recognized in the year 2019-2020, if 3,00,000 points are 

redeemed in the year 2019-2020? 

 

Solution 

(a) Points earned on Rs 10,00,000 @ 10 points on every Rs 500 = [(10,00,000/500) x 10] = 20,000 points. 

Value of points = 20,000 points x Rs 0.5 each point = Rs 10,000 

Revenue recognized for 

sale of goods  

Revenue for points 

deferred  

Rs 9,90,099  

Rs 9,901  

[10,00,000 x 

(10,00,000/10,10,000)]  

[10,00,000 x 

(10,000/10,10,000)]  

Journal Entry 

  Rs Rs 

Bank A/c  

To Sales A/c  

To Liability under Customer Loyalty 

programme 

Dr  10,00,000  

9,90,099  

9,901  
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(b) Points earned on Rs50,00,00,000 @ 10 points on every Rs500 = [(50,00,00,000/500) x 10] = 1,00,00,000 

points.  

Value of points = 1,00,00,000 points x Rs0.5 each point = Rs50,00,000  

Revenue recognized for sale of goods = Rs49,50,49,505 [50,00,00,000 x (50,00,00,000 / 50,50,00,000)]  

Revenue for points = Rs49,50,495 [50,00,00,000x (50,00,000 / 50,50,00,000)]  

Journal Entries in the year 2017-18 

  Rs Rs 

Bank A/c  

To Sales A/c  

To Liability under Customer Loyalty 

programme 

(On sale of Goods)  

Liability under Customer Loyalty 

programme 

To Sales A/c  

(On redemption of (100 lakhs -18 lakhs) 

points)  

Dr

.  

 

 

 

 

Dr

.  

50,00,00,000 

 

 

 

 

42,11,002 

 

49,50,49,505 

49,50,495 

 

 

 

 

 

42,11,002 

Revenue for points to be recognized 

Undiscounted points estimated to be recognized next year 18,00,000 x 80% = 14,40,000 points 

Total expected points to be redeemed in 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 = [(1,00,00,000-18,00,000) + 

14,40,000] = 96,40,000 

Revenue to be recognised with respect to discounted point = 49,50,495 x (82,00,000/96,40,000) = 

42,11,002 

(c) Revenue to be deferred with respect to undiscounted point in 2017-2018= 49,50,495 – 42,11,002 = 

7,39,493 

(d) In 2018-2019, KK Ltd. would recognize revenue for discounting of 60% of outstanding points as follows: 

Outstanding points = 18,00,000 x 60% = 10,80,000 points 

Total points discounted till date = 82,00,000 + 10,80,000 = 92,80,000 points 

Revenue to be recognized in the year 2018-2019 = [{49,50,495 x (92,80,000 / 96,40,000)} - 42,11,002] 

= Rs 5,54,620. 

Journal Entry in the year 2018-2019 

Rs  Rs 

Liability under Customer Loyalty 

programme 

Dr.  5,54,620   

 

5,54,620 To Sales A/c  

(On redemption of further 10,80,000 points    
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The Liability under Customer Loyalty programme at the end of the year 2018-2019 will be Rs7,39,493 

– 5,54,620 = 1,84,873.  

(e) In the year 2019-2020, the merchant will recognized the balance revenue of Rs1,84,873 irrespective of 

the points redeemed as this is the last year for redeeming the points. Journal entry will be as follows:  

Journal Entry in the year 2019-2020 

 Rs  Rs 

Liability under Customer Loyalty 

programme 

Dr.  1,84,873   

 

1,84,873  To Sales A/c  

(On redemption of further 10,80,000 

points)  

  

  

 

 

Q 85 - (MTP – April19 – 6 Marks) 

An entity enters into 1,000 contracts with customers. Each contract includes the sale of one product for Rs. 

50 (1,000 total products × Rs. 50 = Rs. 50,000 total consideration). Cash is received when control of a 

product transfers. The entity's customary business practice is to allow a customer to return any unused 

product within 30 days and receive a full refund. The entity's cost of each product is Rs. 30.  

The entity applies the requirements in Ind AS 115 to the portfolio of 1,000 contracts because it reasonably 

expects that, in accordance with paragraph 4, the effects on the financial statements from applying these 

requirements to the portfolio would not differ materially from applying the requirements to the individual 

contracts within the portfolio. Since the contract allows a customer to return the products, the consideration 

received from the customer is variable. To estimate the variable consideration to which the entity will be 

entitled, the entity decides to use the expected value method (see paragraph 53(a) of Ind AS 115) because it 

is the method that the entity expects to better predict the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled. 

Using the expected value method, the entity estimates that 970 products will not be returned.The entity 

estimates that the costs of recovering the products will be immaterial and expects that the returned products 

can be resold at a profit. Determine the amount of revenue, refund liability and the asset to be recognised by 

the entity for the said contracts. 

 

Solution 

The entity also considers the requirements in paragraphs 56–58 of Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of 

variable consideration to determine whether the estimated amount of variable consideration of Rs. 48,500 

(Rs. 50 × 970 products not expected to be returned) can be included in the transaction price. The entity 

considers the factors in paragraph 57 of Ind AS 115 and determines that although the returns are outside 

the entity's influence, it has significant experience in estimating returns for this product and customer class. 

In addition, the uncertainty will be resolved within a short time frame (ie the 30-day return period). Thus, 
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the entity concludes that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative amount of revenue 

recognised (i.e. Rs. 48,500) will not occur as the uncertainty is resolved (i.e. over the return period).  

The entity estimates that the costs of recovering the products will be immaterial and expects that the 

returned products can be resold at a profit.  

Upon transfer of control of the 1,000 products, the entity does not recognise revenue for the 30 products 

that it expects to be returned. Consequently, in accordance with paragraphs 55 and B21 of Ind AS 115, the 

entity recognises the following:  

(a) revenue of Rs. 48,500 (Rs. 50 × 970 products not expected to be returned); 

(b) a refund liability of Rs. 1,500 (Rs. 50 refund × 30 products expected to be returned); and  

(c) an asset of Rs. 900 (Rs. 30 × 30 products for its right to recover products from customers on settling 

the refund liability). 
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Q 86 - (RTP – Nov. 19) 

Comment on the following by quoting references from appropriate Ind AS.  

(i) DS Limited holds some vacant land for which the use is not yet determined. the land is situated in a 

prominent area of the city where lot of commercial complexes are coming up and there is no legal 

restriction to convert the land into a commercial land.  

The company is not interested in developing the land to a commercial complex as it is not its business 

objective. Currently the land has been let out as a parking lot for the commercial complexes around.  

The Company has classified the above property as investment property. It has approached you, an expert 

in valuation, to obtain fair value of the land for the purpose of disclosure under Ind AS.  

On what basis will the land be fair valued under Ind AS? 

(ii) DS Limited holds equity shares of a private company. In order to determine the fair value' of the shares, 

the company used discounted cash flow method as there were no similar shares available in the market.  

Under which level of fair value hierarchy will the above inputs be classified?  

What will be your answer if the quoted price of similar companies were available and can be used for fair 

valuation of the shares? 

 

Solution 

(i) 

As per Ind AS 113, a fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

The highest and best use of a non-financial asset takes into account the use of the asset that is physically 

possible, legally permissible and financially feasible, as follows:  

(a) A use that is physically possible takes into account the physical characteristics of the asset that market 

participants would take into account when pricing the asset (eg the location or size of a property).  

(b) A use that is legally permissible takes into account any legal restrictions on the use of the asset that 

market participants would take into account when pricing the asset (eg the zoning regulations applicable to 

a property).  

(c) A use that is financially feasible takes into account whether a use of the asset that is physically possible 

and legally permissible generates adequate income or cash flows (taking into account the costs of converting 
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the asset to that use) to produce an investment return that market participants would require from an 

investment in that asset put to that use. 

Highest and best use is determined from the perspective of market participants, even if the entity intends a 

different use. However, an entity’s current use of a non-financial asset is presumed to be its highest and best 

use unless market or other factors suggest that a different use by market participants would maximise the 

value of the asset.  

To protect its competitive position, or for other reasons, an entity may intend not to use an acquired non-

financial asset actively or it may intend not to use the asset according to its highest and best use. 

Nevertheless, the entity shall measure the fair value of a non-financial asset assuming its highest and best 

use by market participants.  

In the given case, the highest best possible use of the land is to develop a commercial complex. Although 

developing a business complex is against the business objective of the entity, it does not affect the basis of 

fair valuation as Ind AS 113 does not consider an entity specific restriction for measuring the fair value.  

Also, its current use as a parking lot is not the highest best use as the land has the potential of being used 

for building a commercial complex.  

Therefore, the fair value of the land is the price that would be received when sold to a market participant 

who is interested in developing a commercial complex.  

 

(ii) 

As per Ind AS 113, unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant 

observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market 

activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. The unobservable inputs shall reflect the 

assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions 

about risk.  

In the given case, DS Limited adopted discounted cash flow method, commonly used technique to value 

shares, to fair value the shares of the private company as there were no similar shares traded in the market. 

Hence, it falls under Level 3 of fair value hierarchy.  

Level 2 inputs include the following:  

(a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  

(b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.  

(c) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.  

If an entity can access quoted price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities of similar companies 

which can be used for fair valuation of the shares without any adjustment, at the measurement date, then it 

will be considered as observable input and would be considered as Level 2 inputs. 
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Q 87 - (MTP) 

An asset is sold in 2 different active markets (a market in which transaction for the asset or liability takes 

place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis) at different 

prices.  

An entity enters into transactions in both markets and can access the price in those markets for the asset at 

the measurement date.  

In Market A:  

The sale price of the asset is Rs. 26, transaction cost is Rs. 3 and the cost to transport the asset to Market A 

is Rs. 2 (i.e., the net amount that would be received is Rs. 21).  

In Market B:  

The sale price of the asset is Rs. 25, transaction cost is Re. 1 and the cost to transport the asset to Market B 

is Rs. 2 (i.e., the net amount that would be received is Rs. 22).  

 

Determine the fair value of the asset by supporting your answer with proper reason. 

 

Solution 

If Market A is the principal market for the sale of asset (i.e., the market with the greatest volume and level 

of activity for the asset), the fair value of the asset would be measured using the price that would be received 

in that market, after taking into account transport cost of Rs. 24. The price in the principal (or most 

advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for 

transaction costs.  

 

If neither market is the principal market for the sale of asset, the fair value of the asset would be measured 

using the price in the most advantageous market. The most advantageous market is the market that 

maximises the amount that would be received by selling the asset, after taking into account transport cost 

(i.e., the net amount that would be received in the respective markets).  

 

Since the entity would maximise the net amount that would be received for the asset in Market B, the fair 

value of the asset would be measured using the price in that market ie. sale of asset Rs. 25 less transport cost 

Rs. 2, resulting in a fair value measurement of Rs. 23.  
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Q 88 - (RTP NOV 19) 

Mathur India Private Limited has to present its first financials under Ind AS for the year ended 31st March, 

20X3. The transition date is 1st April, 20X1.  

The following adjustments were made upon transition to Ind AS:  

(a) The Company opted to fair value its land as on the date on transition.  

The fair value of the land as on 1st April, 20X1 was ` 10 crores. The carrying amount as on 1st April, 20X1 

under the existing GAAP was ` 4.5 crores.  

(b) The Company has recognised a provision for proposed dividend of ` 60 lacs and related dividend 

distribution tax of ` 18 lacs during the year ended 31st March, 20X1. It was written back as on opening 

balance sheet date.  

(c) The Company fair values its investments in equity shares on the date of transition. The increase on 

account of fair valuation of shares is ` 75 lacs.  

(d) The Company has an Equity Share Capital of ` 80 crores and Redeemable Preference Share Capital of ` 

25 crores.  

(e) The reserves and surplus as on 1st April, 20X1 before transition to Ind AS was ` 95 crores representing 

` 40 crores of general reserve and ` 5 crores of capital reserve acquired out of business combination and 

balance is surplus in the Retained Earnings.  

(f) The company identified that the preference shares were in nature of financial liabilities.  

What is the balance of total equity (Equity and other equity) as on 1st April, 20X1 after transition to Ind 

AS? Show reconciliation between total equity as per AS (Accounting Standards) and as per Ind AS to be 

presented in the opening balance sheet as on 1st April, 20X1.  

Ignore deferred tax impact. 

 

Solution 

Computation of balance total equity as on 1st April, 20X1 after transition date to IndAS  

   In Crore 

Share Capital – Equity Share Captial    80 

Other Equity     

General Reserve  40  
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Capital Reserve  5  

Retained Earnings (95-5-40) 50   

Add: Increase in Value of Land (10-4.5) 5.5   

Add: De Recognition of Proposed Dividend (0.6 + 0.18) 0.78   

Add: Increase in Value of Investment  0.75 57.03  

Balance Total Equity as on 1st April 20x1 after 

Transition date to IndAS 

  182.03 

 

Reconciliation between Total Equity as per AS and Ind AS to be presented in the opening balance 

sheet as on 1st April, 20X1 

   

Equity Share Capital  80 

Redeemable Pref. Share Capital  25 

  105 

Reserves and Surplus  95 

Total Equity as per AS  200 

Adjustment due to reclassification   

Pref. Share capital classified as Financial Liab.  -25 

Adjustment due to derecognition    

Proposed Dividend not Considered as liability as on 1st April 

20X1 

 0.78 

Adjustment due to remeasurement    

Increase in the value of Land due to remeasurement at Fair 

value  

5.5  

Increase in the value of Investment due to remeasurment at fair 

value  

0.75 6.25 

Equity as on 1st April 20X1 after transition to IndAS   182.03 

 

Q 89 - (RTP MAY18) 

ABC Ltd is a government company and is a first-time adopter of Ind AS. As per the previous GAAP, the 

contributions received by ABC Ltd. from the government (which holds 100% shareholding in ABC Ltd.) 

which is in the nature of promoters’ contribution have been recognised in capital reserve and treated as part 

of shareholders’ funds in accordance with the provisions of AS 12, Accounting for Government Grants.  
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State whether the accounting treatment of the grants in the nature of promoters’ contribution as per AS 12 

is also permitted under Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government 

Assistance. If not, then what will be the accounting treatment of such grants recognised in capital reserve 

as per previous GAAP on the date of transition to IndAS. 

 

Solution: 

Paragraph 2 of Ind AS 20, “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance” 

inter alia states that the Standard does not deal with government participation in the ownership of the entity.  

 

Since ABC Ltd. is a Government company, it implies that government has 100% shareholding in the entity. 

Accordingly, the entity needs to determine whether the payment is provided as a shareholder contribution 

or as a government. Equity contributions will be recorded in equity while grants will be shown in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss.  

 

Where it is concluded that the contributions are in the nature of government grant, the entity shall apply 

the principles of Ind AS 20 retrospectively as specified in Ind AS 101 ‘First Time Adoption of Ind AS’. Ind 

AS 20 requires all grants to be recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 

entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Unlike AS 

12, Ind AS 20 requires the grant to be classified as either a capital or an income grant and does not permit 

recognition of government grants in the nature of promoter’s contribution directly to shareholders’ funds.  

 

Where it is concluded that the contributions are in the nature of shareholder contributions and are 

recognised in capital reserve under previous GAAP, the provisions of paragraph 10 of Ind AS 101 would be 

applied which states that, which states that except in certain cases, an entity shall in its opening Ind AS 

Balance Sheet:  

 

(a) recognise all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS;  

(b) not recognise items as assets or liabilities if Ind AS do not permit such recognition;  

(c) reclassify items that it recognised in accordance with previous GAAP as one type of asset, liability 

or component of equity, but are a different type of asset, liability or component of equity in accordance 

with Ind AS; and  

(d) applyInd AS in measuring all recognised assets and liabilities.”  

Accordingly, as per the above requirements of paragraph 10(c) in the given case, contributions recognised 

in the Capital Reserve should be transferred to appropriate category under ‘Other Equity’ at the date of 

transition to Ind AS. 
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Q 90 - (RTP MAY19) 

Angel Ltd. has adopted Ind AS with a transition date of 1st April, 2017. Prior to Ind AS adoption, it followed 

Accounting Standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (hereinafter referred 

to as "IGAAP"). 

It has made investments in equity shares of Pharma Ltd., a listed company engaged in the business of 

pharmaceuticals. The shareholding pattern of Pharma Ltd. is given below: 

Shareholders (refer Note 1) Percentage shareholding as 

on 1st April, 2017 

Angel Ltd.  

Little Angel Ltd. (refer Note 2)  

Wealth Master Mutual Fund (refer Note 3)  

Individual public shareholders (refer Note 4)  

21% 

24% 

3% 

52% 

 

Notes: 

(1) None of the shareholders have entered into any shareholders' agreement. 

(2) Little Angel Ltd. is a subsidiary of Angel Ltd. (under Ind AS) in which Angel Ltd. holds 51% voting 

power. 

(3) Wealth Master Mutual Fund is not related party of either Little Angel Ltd. or Pharma Ltd. 

(4) Individual public shareholders represent 17,455 individuals. None of the individual shareholders hold 

more than 1% of voting power in Pharma Ltd. 

All commercial decisions of Pharma Ltd. are taken by its directors who are appointed by a simple majority 

vote of the shareholders in the annual general meetings ("AGM”). The following table shows the voting 

pattern of past AGMs of Pharma Ltd.: 

Shareholders AGM for the financial year: 

 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Angel Ltd.  Attended and voted 

in favour of all the 

resolutions  

Attended and voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions  

Attended and voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions  

Little Angel 

Ltd.  

Attended and voted 

as per directions of 

Angel Ltd.  

Attended and voted as 

per directions of Angel 

Ltd  

Attended and voted 

as per directions of 

Angel Ltd  

Wealth Master 

Mutual Fund  

Attended and voted 

in favour of all the 

resolutions except for 

the reappointment of 

the retiring directors  

Attended and voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions except for 

the reappointment of 

the retiring directors  

Attended and voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions except for 

the reappointment of 

the retiring directors  
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Individuals  7% of the individual 

shareholders 

attended the AGM. 

All the individual 

shareholders voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions, except 

that 50% of the 

individual 

Shareholders voted 

against the resolution 

to appoint the 

retiring directors.  

8% of the individual 

shareholders attended 

the AGM. All the 

individual 

shareholders voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions, except 

that 50% of the 

individual 

Shareholders voted 

against the resolution 

to appoint the retiring 

directors.  

6% of the individual 

shareholders 

attended the AGM. 

All the individual 

shareholders voted in 

favour of all the 

resolutions, except 

that 50% of the 

individual 

Shareholders voted 

against the resolution 

to appoint the retiring 

directors.  

 

Pharma Ltd. has obtained substantial long term borrowings from a bank. The loan is payable in 20 years 

from 1st April, 2017. As per the terms of the borrowing, following actions by Pharma Ltd. will require prior 

approval of the bank: 

 Payment of dividends to the shareholders in cash or kind; 

 Buyback of its own equity shares; 

 Issue of bonus equity shares; 

 Amalgamation of Pharma Ltd. with any other entity; and 

 Obtaining additional loans from any entit 

Recently, the Board of Directors of Pharma Ltd. proposed a dividend of Rs 5 per share. However, when the 

CFO of Pharma Ltd. approached the bank for obtaining their approval, the bank rejected the proposal citing 

concerns over the short-term cash liquidity of Pharma Ltd. Having learned about the developments, the 

Directors of Angel Ltd. along with the Directors of Little Angel Ltd. approached the bank with a request to 

re-consider its decision. The Directors of Angel Ltd. and Little Angel Ltd. urged the bank to approve a 

reduced dividend of at least Rs 2 per share. However, the bank categorically refused to approve any payout 

of dividend. 

Under IGAAP, Angel Ltd. has classified Pharma Ltd. as its associate. As the CFO of Angel Ltd., you are 

required to comment on the correct classification of Pharma Ltd. on transition to Ind AS. 

 

Solution 

To determine whether Pharma Limited can be continued to be classified as an associate on transition to lnd 

AS, we will have to determine whether Angel Limited controls Pharma Limited as defined under Ind AS 

110. 
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An investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following: 

(f) Power over investee  

(g) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 

(h) Ability to use power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Since Angel Ltd. 

does not have majority voting rights in Pharma Ltd. we will have to determine whether the existing 

voting rights of Angel Ltd. are sufficient to provide it power over Pharma Ltd. Analysis of each of 

the three elements of the definition of control: 

 

Elements / conditions  Analysis  

Power over investee  Angel Limited along with its subsidiary Little Angel Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as "the Angel group") does not have 

majority voting rights in Pharma Limited.  

Therefore, in order to determine whether Angel group have 

power over Pharma Limited. we will need to analyse whether 

Angel group, by virtue of its non-majority voting power, have 

practical ability to unilaterally direct the relevant activities of 

Pharma Limited. In other words, we will need to analyse 

whether Angel group has de facto power over Pharma 

Limited. Following is the analysis of de facto power of Angel 

over Pharma Limited:  

- The public shareholding of Pharma Limited (that is, 52% 

represents thousands of shareholders none individually 

holding material shareholding,  

- The actual participation of Individual public shareholders in 

the general meetings is minimal (that is, in the range of 6% 

to 8%).  

- Even the public shareholders who attend the meeting do not 

consult with each other to vote.  

- Therefore, as per guidance of Ind AS 110, the public 

shareholders will not be able to outvote Angel group (who 

is the largest shareholder group) in any general meeting.  

Based on the above-mentioned analysis, we can conclude that 

Angel group has de facto powerover Pharma Limited 

Exposure, or rights, to 

variable returns from its 

Angel group has exposure to variable returns from its 

involvement with Pharma Limited by virtue of its equity stake.  
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involvement withthe 

investee  

Ability to use power over 

the investee to affect the 

amount of the investor's 

returns  

Angel group has ability to use its power (in the capacity of a 

principal and not an agent) to affect the amount of returns from 

Pharma Limited because it is in the position to appoint directors 

of Pharma Limited who would take all the decisions regarding 

relevant activities of Pharma Limited.  

Here, it is worthwhile to evaluate whether certain rights held 

by the bank would prevent Angel Limited's ability to use the 

power over Pharma Limited to affect its returns. It is to be 

noted that, all the rights held by the bank in relation to Pharma 

Limited are protective in nature as they do not relate to the 

relevant activities (that is, activities that significantly affect he 

Pharma Limited's returns) of Pharma Limited.  

As per lnd AS 110, protective rights are the rights designed to 

protect the interest of the party holding those rights without 

giving that party power over the entity to which those rights 

relate.  

Therefore, the protective rights held by the bank should not be 

considered while evaluating whether or not Angel Group has 

control over Pharma Limited. 

Conclusion: Since all the three elements of definition of control is present, it can be 

concluded that Angel Limited has control over Pharma Limited.  

 

Since it has been established that Angel Limited has control over Pharma Limited, upon transition to lnd 

AS, Angel Limited shall classify Pharma Limited as its subsidiary. 
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Q 91 - (RTP Nov18) 

Mr. X, is the financial controller of ABC Ltd., a listed entity which prepares consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with Ind AS. Mr. X has recently produced the final draft of the financial 

statements of ABC Ltd. for the year ended 31
st

March, 2018 to the managing director for approval. Mr. Y, 

who is not an accountant, had raised following queries from Mr. X after going through the draft financial 

statements: 

(a) One of the notes to the financial statements gives details of purchases made by ABC Ltd. from PQR 

Ltd. during the period. Mr. Y own 100% of the shares in PQR Ltd. However, he feels that there is no 

requirement for any disclosure to be made in ABC Ltd.’s financial statements since the transaction is 

carried out on normal commercial terms and is totally insignificant to ABC Ltd., as it represents less 

than 1% of ABC Ltd.’ s purchases. 

(b) The notes to the financial statements say that plant and equipment is held under the ‘cost model’. However, 

property which Is owner occupied is revalued annually to fair value. Changes in fair value are sometimes 

reported in profit or loss but usually in ‘other comprehensive income’. Also, the amounts of depreciation 

charge do plant and equipment as a percentage of its carrying amount is much higher than for owner 

occupied property. Another note states that property owned by ABC Ltd. but rent out to others is 

depreciated annually and not fair valued. Mr. Y is of the opinion that there is no consistent treatment 

of PPE items in the accounts. Elucidate how all these treatments comply with the relevant Ind AS. 

(c) In the year to March, 2018, ABC Ltd. spent considerable amount on designing a new product. ABC 

Ltd. spent the six months from April, 2017 to September, 2017 researching into the feasibility of the 

product. Mr. X charged these research costs to profit or loss. From October, 2017, A Ltd. was confident 

that the product would be commercially successful and A Ltd. is fully committed to finance its future 

development. A Ltd. spent remaining part of the year in developing the product, which is expected to 

start from selling in the next few months. These development costs have been recognised as intangible 

assets in the Balance Sheet. State whether the treatment done by Mr. X is correct when all these 

research and development costs are design costs. Justify your answer with reference to relevant IndAS. 

Provide answers to the queries raised by the managing director Mr. Y as per Ind AS. 

TOPIC 28.   
 

 
MIXED INDAS QUESTIONS 
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Solution 

Ongoing through the queries raised by the Managing Director Mr. Y, the financial controller Mr. X 

explained the notes and reasons for their disclosures as follows:  

(a) Related parties are generally characterized by the presence of control or influence between the two parties. 

Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ identifies related parties as, inter alia, key management personnel 

and companies controlled by key management personnel. On this basis, PQR Ltd. is a related party of ABC 

Ltd.  

The transaction is required to be disclosed in the financial statements of ABC Ltd. since Mr. Y is Key 

Management personnel of ABC Ltd. Also at the same time, it owns 100% shares of PQR Ltd. ie. he controls 

PQR Ltd. This implies that PQR Ltd. is a related party of ABC Ltd.  

Where transactions occur with related parties, Ind AS 24 requires that details of the transactions are 

disclosed in a note to the financial statements. This is required even if the transactions are carried out on 

an arm’s length basis.  

Transactions with related parties are material by their nature, so the fact that the transaction may be 

numerically insignificant to ABC Ltd. does not affect the need for disclosure.  

(b) The accounting treatment of the majority of tangible non-current assets is governed by Ind AS 16 

‘Property, Plant and Equipment’. Ind AS 16 states that the accounting treatment of PPE is determined on 

a class by class basis. For this purpose, property and plant would be regarded as separate classes. Ind AS 

16 requires that PPE is measured using either the cost model or the revaluation model. This model is 

applied on a class by class basis and must be applied consistently within a class. Ind AS 16 states that when 

the revaluation model applies, surpluses are recorded in other comprehensive income, unless they are 

cancelling out a deficit which has previously been reported in profit or loss, in which case it is reported in 

profit or loss. Where the revaluation results in a deficit, then such deficits are reported in profit or loss, 

unless they are cancelling out a surplus which has previously been reported in other comprehensive income, 

in which case they are reported in other comprehensive income.  

According to Ind AS 16, all assets having a finite useful life should be depreciated over that life. Where 

property is concerned, the only depreciable element of the property is the buildings element, since land 

normally has an indefinite life. The estimated useful life of a building tends to be much longer than for 

plant. These two reasons together explain why the depreciation charge of a property as a percentage of its 

carrying amount tends to be much lower than for plant.  

Properties which are held for investment purposes are not accounted for under Ind AS 16, but under Ind 

AS 40 ‘Investment Property’. As per Ind AS 40, investment properties should be accounted for under a 

cost model. ABC Ltd. had applied the cost model and thus our investment properties are treated differently 

from the owner occupied property which is annually to fair value.  

As per Ind AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, the treatment of expenditure on intangible items depends on how it 

arose. Internal expenditure on intangible items incurred during research phase cannot be recognised as an 

asset. Once it can be demonstrated that a development project is likely to be technically feasible, 
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commercially viable, overall profitable and can be adequately resourced, then future expenditure on the 

project can be recognised as an intangible asset. The difference in the treatment of expenditure upto 30th 

September, 2017 and expenditure after that date is due to the recognition phase ie. research or development 

phase. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

174 
 

 

  

       Student Notes:-   
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


